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INDIPENDENT AUDITORS, RXPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the Mulicipal Legislature
Municipality ofJuana Diaz, puerto Rico

We have audited the- accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, business type
activities, each major_fund_and lhe aggregale remaining fund informaiion ofthe Municiparity ofJuana Diaz(Municipality), as of and for lhe fiscal year ended June 30. 20i0, which collectiveiy comprise the
Municipalitl"'s basic financial statements as listed in the table ofcontents. These financial statemenis are the
responsibility ofthe Municiparity's management. o,r responsibirity is to express opinions on these financial
statemenrs based on our audit. we did not audit the financiar statements ofviras d;r parque (F,HA project
No. 63-033-0690660049), a business-type activity (proprietary fund) ofthe Municipaliry, whicn Singte auait
repon, reflects total assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues and expenses of g i,40g,b67,'$ I,: t:,SZA,iSS,Zg;,
$423,325 and $477,573. respectively, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 10, 2010. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been fumished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts incruded for villasder parque, is based on the report ofthe other auditors.

we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generary accepted in the united states of
America and the standards applicabre to financiar audlts containJin Governneit Auditing stancranls, issred
by the Comptroller General ofthe united states. Those standards require that ue pran ani perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemen;s are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining' on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and discrosures in the financial
statements. An audit also incrudes assessing the_accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
managemenr, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. w; believe that our audit and
the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for ouropinilns.

As discussed in Note 8. the tr4unicipality did not have a complete, updated and accurate accounting records of
the capltal.assers reported in the govemmentar activities at June 30,2010, which are recoided in the
accompanying statement ofnet assers for $68,361,479, net ofaccumulared depieciation of$24,g20,640. The
amount by which this departure would affect the assets, net assets and expenses ofthe govemmentar activities
is not rcasonably determinable_

A^s discussed in Note- r 2. the Nluniciparity did not compry with the requirements estabrished by statement No.
18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Ldn.lfill Ciosure and pist Closure Cale (.osrr. issued bv the
Govemmental Accounting standards Board and the regurations set fonh b) the u.s. Environ."ni p-r""t;on
Agency in its "Solid Waste Disposal Facility Crireria.'. issued on October 9, l9ql. At June 30, 2010, the
accompanying statement ofnet assets does not include the required riability for closure and post crosure care
costs ofthe Municipality's sorid rvaste randfir using 

"u.."nt "o.1. 
a oc;ted based on the actual Iandfill

capacity used at June 30. 2010. Ihe amount by uhich this departure would affect the net assets and expenses
ofthe govemmental activities is not reasonablv determinable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

:: O]...r:::1 
ll_f:,: l0(g). rhe Municipality did not comply with the requirements established by Statement

).u0' tb. 4ccountrng Jor ( otnpeDs.rted Ahsences, issued by the Govemmentar Accounting Standards Board. Inaddition, the Municiparity did not have comprete, accurate and ,pdut"d .."o.as oitr,e .ompensated absencesat June 10,2010. Furthermore. the liability for compensated absences. recorded in tire accompanjing
stalemenl ofnel assets for $2,311.554, does nol include ihe accumulated compensatory time ofatt em!toyeei
of the Municipality.- The amount by rvhich lhis depanure wourd affect lhe'net assets and expenses of thegovemmental activities is not reasonably determinable.

ln our opinion' because of the effects of the mafter discussed in the preceding paragraphs, the financial
statements referred to previousry do not present fairry, in conformity with acco-untinglprincipr.r g"r"iuif
accepted in lhe united states of America, the financiar position of the govemmentar activities of the
Municipality, as ofJune 30, 2010, or the changes in financial position, thereof-for the year then ended.

In addition' in our opinion, based on our audit and the repon of the other auditors, the financiar statements
referred to previously present fairry, in aI material respeci. the respective financiar position ofthe business-
type activiries ofthe Municiparity. as ofJune 10,20r0 and the changes in financiar position and cash flows
thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting priniipres genemly accepted in the united
States ofAmerica.

In addition' in our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financiar statements
referred to previously present fairry, in arr materiar respects, the respective financial position of each major
fund, proprietary fund and aggregate remaining fund information oftie Municipality, as ofJune 30, 2010 a'nd
the respective changes in financiar position and, where appricabre, cash flows ihereoi for the year ihen ended
in conformity with accounting principles genemlly accepied in the United States ofAmeflca.

In accordance with Gouernment Audhing Standards, we have also issued our repon dated March 29, 201 l,
on our consideration of the Municiparity's intemar contror over financiar reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with cedain provisions of laws, regulations, contmcts, and grant agree;ents and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope ofour testing of inteirar coitror over financial reporting
and compliance and the resurts of that testing, and not to prov-ide an opinion on the intemar contror ovei
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part olan audit performed in accordance
\r;th Government Audiring stdnduftrs and sho! rd be considerid in assessing the resurts ofour audit

Accounting principles generarry accepted in the united states of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and the budgetary comparison information on pages 5 tirrough l7 and glthiough E2
be presented to supplement the basic financial starements. Such informat;n, althou!f, not a part ofthe basic
financial statements. is required by the Go\remmentar Accounting standards Boardl who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational. economic, or historicar cont€\t.. we have applied certain rimited proc€dures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generafiy accepted in the united slates oF
Americ4 which consisted of inquiries ofmanagement about the ;efiods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistenc) $ith managemenr.s.".ponr., to our'inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowredge we obtained diring our uudit ofth. basic fin;ncia! statements.we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 

'h; 
information because the rimited procedures

do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' RIPORT

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that colleclivelycomprise the Municipality's financial staremenrs as; ;hole. ff," u."orpunf;ngl"Ldute of expendiruresof federal arvards is presented for purposes of add itiona r anarl sis as req,i[J iy r-i. i. om"" or rururug.rn"ntand Budget Circular A-133. Au(lits of st.tes, Local Go|emnlents, 
"ii i.*' er"j,'Orgrrizations, and isalso not_a required pan ofthe financiar starements. The schedule of e\pendilures of f-ederal awards is theresponsibiliry ofmanagement and was deri\ed from and relate dire*l) i" ,"J..(i"g 

"""or"ting 
and otherrecords used to prepare the financial stalements. The information has u"." iru'1*t.a to the auditingprocedures applied in rhe audit of the financiar sratemenr5 and certain addiiionaiprocedures, incrudingcomparing and reconciring such information direcrry to rhe underrying u."uun,ing una'o*,". ."cords used toprepare the financial statements or the financial stirements rt"r..tuis, una otG uaairional procedures in

:-::.r::f-.-yl,l,::d,t,lg srandards genera y accepred in ihe United St"". of a.".i*. rn our opinion, thernrormalon ts tarrly slaled in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

K,{",,Q.W
License Number 5200.

Guayama, Puerto Rico
March 29.201 I
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010
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MUNICIPALITYoFJUANA DiAz,
coMMoNwf,ALTH oF PUERTo RICo

Managemeot's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal year Ended June 30.20I0

As management of the Municipality of Juana Diaz (the Municipality), we offer readen the following
*:y::::.:.11L:,1:,s !f rhe Municipatity,s finaniial activitie's ..ffi.J in 

- 
,"' *"o.panying basicrnancrar starements as or and Ior rhe fiscar yeaf ended June J0. 20r 0. we encourage readers to considerrhe informalion presenred here in conjunction with addirionar l" r".."ri"n 

- 

rr,"i i, fumished in theaccompanytng Itnancial stalements. \ hich follow this narrarive.

Besides' this document incrudes compamtive data with prior year as this information was avairable for thenscar year ended on June 10, 2009, eighth year of implementation of Govemmental Accounting
Standards Board (CASB) Statement No. 34, -Baric F;ndncial Statenefis _ and lvlanagement,s
Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Goyenmehts. ,, This MD & A is p..parea ln o.a". to" 

"omftywith such pronouncement and, among other purposes, to provide the financi;l statements users with theroltowrng maJor lnlormation:

r a broader basis in focusing important issues;

. acknowledgement ofan overview ofthe Municipality,s financial activities;

' provides for an evaruation of its financiar condirion as ofthe end offiscar year 2009-2010 compared
with pior year results;

. identification ofuses offtrnds in the financing ofthe Municipality,s variety ofactivities and;

. asses management's ability to handle budgetary filnctions.

FINANCIAL IIIGHLIGHTS

G ov e m me nt- W i de H ig h I ig hts :

Total Net Assers ofthe Municiparity Govemmental Acrivities as of fie end ofthe indicated fiscal
year amounted to $47,616,733 or fifty seven percent (57%) oftoralassets.

The Municipality's Covemmental Activities total Net Assets increased by $2,697,45g ot a six (6%)
from the prior fiscal year-end balance.

As reflected in the Slatement of Activities, the Govemmental Activities generated revenues
contributed to the increase in the Ner Assets Figure by $2,697,45g.

At the end offiscal yeai 2010, total liabilities ofthe Municipality Govemmental Activities amounted
l:^$::,::!,-618 out ofsaid amount, $30,0E8,857 

"o.."riond"d 
ro ton;_i;; 

-l;;;il;ies 
of which

$1s.412.000 represenred lhe outsranding balarce of bonds i.,r.a. ff,. i_lrri"ip"firy continued to
meet atl debl servtce requirements. most ofwhich was paid from selfgenemted rerenuer,

Govenmen al Funds, Eightights:

As_of the close of the cu[ent fiscal, the ]\4unicipality,s Covemmental Funds reported combined
ending fund balances ofg6.8ll.856 or S1.150.4b0 over rhe similar figure coilsponaing to theprcvious fiscal year 200E-2009.



MUNICIPALITY oF JUANA DL{2,
Co}TMoNWEALTH of PUf, RTo RICo

Management's Discussion and Analvsis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2010

. j}l^,ry 
^"ld 

of the current fiscal year, the deficit of the Municipality,s General Fund amounted ro
$886,208, or $476,218 less than the previous fiscal year.

. The actual General Fund budgetary activities resulted in a favorable balance of$442,166.

Prop rietary Fund High I ig h ts:

. The total restricted fund net assets ofthe proprietary fund amounted to $95,291, which are restrictedfor the operations of federally funded prog"ams. lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt,
presented a deficit of$19,229.

. The total restricted fund net assets ofthe proprietary fund decreased by $54,24g during the fiscal year
ended on June 30, 2010.

OVERVIEW OF TI{E BASIC FINAIICIAL STATEMENTS

The purpose. of financial reporting is to provide extemal users of basic fioanciar statements with
information that wilr herp them to make decisions or draw conclusions auout the vuniciparity. there are
many extemal parties that use the basic fmancial statements of the Municipality; however, ihese parties

9:-l:l:ll"rr !1" lk..1m: specific.objectives. In order to address tt"'r""i. oi 
". 

many parties as
reasonabty possible. the Municipaliry. in accordance with required financial reponing standards, presents
this Managemeot's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) as an inrroduction tJ tt. ic"o.panylng tasic
finanrial statements. -This narrative repreients an overview and analysis ofthe finarrciat activities ofthe
Municipality for the fiscal year ended June 10,2010. Because rhis i4D&A is deiignea to focus on thecur*nl )€ar acliviries. resulring changes and currenlry known fac6. we encourage reiders lo consider thernlormalron presented in this [4D&A in conjunction wifi rhe addilional information fumished in the
accompanying basic fi nancial statements.

The M,nicipality's basic financiar statements incrude three components: (r) govemment-wide financial
statements (GwFs), (2) fund financial statements (FFS), and (3j notes to thetsic financial statements(NBFS). This report also contains additional required informition in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves. These components a-re described below.

The basic financial statements focus on: (r) the Municiparity as a whore (govemment-wide financial
reporting) an4 (2)_ the Municipality,s major individual gove-."nra *j-p.opil.t ry funds. Bothperspectives allow the users to address rele\,ant questions, broaden a basis for comparison(year to year orglvemment to govemment) and enhance the Municipality.s accountability. The components ofthe basic
fi nancial statements are described below.

a) Governmentvide Financial Stalements

The GWFS are composed of: ( l) the statements ofnel assets (SNA) and (2) the sratement ofactivities(SA). These financial statements can be found immediarely following this Ubta. GWfS are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Municipaliry.I operations as a whole in amanner similar to private-sector business.. 

_ 
These statements provide silon-term and long-term

information about the Municipality,s financial position, which assisr the Munl"if"flty,. ._ug-"."rt

6



MUNIcIPALITY oF JUANA DiAz,
coMMoNwEALTH oT PUERTo RICO

Management's Discussion and Analvsis
Fiscal year Ended June 10.20t0

to determine the economic condition at June J0, 2010. The CWFS are prepared using methods thar
are similar to those used by most private busrnesses.

Both of the govemment-wide financial statements distinguish linctions of the Municipality that are

fr.inlinaft1, 
sinnorya by raxes and intergovemmental actlv ities 1gou"*."ii)i o"tir,Ties) from otherruncrons ,rat are rntended lo recover ar or a significant portion oftheir costs through user fees and

charges (business-tyry actirities ).

1. Statement ofNet Assets

The purpose of_SNA is to aftempt to report all assets owned and all liabilities owed by the
Municipaiity. The Municipality reports ofall of its assets when it acquires ownership ov;r the
assets and reports all of irs liabilities when they are incurred. For example, the Municipality
reports buildings and infrastructur€ as assets, even though they are not ;v;ilable to pay th;
obligations incurred_by the Municipalit). On the other han-d, the-Municipality reports liaiiiities,
such as claims and judgments, bonds and nores payable, obligarions unier capital leases,
compensated absences and cenain accounts payable and accrued liabilities, even tilough thes;
liabilities might not be paid until several fiscaiy;ars into the future.

The difference between the Municipariry's rolar assers and toral riabiriries reported in sNA is
presented as net assets, which is similar ro the total owners. equity reponed by a commercial
enterpdse in its financial statements. Allhough the purpose of the Municipality is not to
accumulate net assets. as this amounr increases or decreasejover time, such am;unt represents a
usefirl indicator of whether the financial position of the Municipality is either improving or
deteriorating, respectively.

2. StateEent of Activiti€s

The SA pre"ents information showing hovr' the Municipality,s net assets changed during the fiscal
year_ended June 30,2010, by presenting all ofthe Municipality,s revenues-a.d expenses. As
previously discussed, the items reported jn SA are ,"asr.j in a ."nner similar to the approach
used ty a commercial enterprise in that revenues are recognized when earned or established
criteria are satisfied, and expenses ar€ 

.recorded when' incuned by the Municipality.
c^onsequently, revenues a.e reported even when they may not be colected for severar months
after the. end. of the fiscal year and expenses are recordej even though they may not have used
cash during the cunent year.

Although SA looks different from a commercial enterprise,s income statement, the difference is
only in format, not substance. Whereas the bottom line in a commercial enterprise represents ats
net income, the Municipality reports an amount described as net change in niet asserr, which is
essentially the same concept.

The focus of SA is on the ,re, cosl of_\,arious a(ivilies provided by the Municipality. The
statement begins wirh a column rhar identifies rhe cosr ;f each of ttre l,tunicipality,i ma.lor
functions. Another column identifies the rcvenues that are specifically related i; the classifiedgovemmental functions. The dillereflce between the expenses and re;enues related to specific
functionyprograms identifies the extent to which each function of the Mrnicipaiity a.aws f.om
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Management's Discussion and Analvsis
Fiscal year Ended June i0.20ld

general revenues or is self-financing through fees, intergovemmental aid, and other sources of
resources.

This statement 
-also1_resenrs 

a comparison b€tween direct expenses and program revenues for
each tunction ol the Municipalit).

CWFS and FFSlresent all ofthe Municipality,s govemmental and business_type activities, which are
s'pported mosdy by ta\es, intergovemmental revenues (such as federai'and state gmnts and
contributions), and charge for sewices. All services normaily associated with the Municipality fall
into this category, including culture, recreation and education; general govemment; health and
sanitationj public safety; public housing aad welfare; and economic ind urban'development.

F urrd Fi n ancial Staterr@nts

The Municipality's FFS consist of: (l) the balance sheet _ govemmental funds, (2) the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds, (3) the statement of net
assets - proprietary fund, (4) the statement of revenues, expenses and change; in fund net assets _
proprietary fund, and (5) the statement of cash flows - propriaary fund. These financial statements
report the financial position, the results of op€rations and cash flows of the Municipality,s
govemmental and proprietary funds, with an emphasis on the Municipality,s major govemmental and
proprietary firnds.

A firnd is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Municipality, Iike most other stare and local
govemments, uses fund accounting to ensurc- and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. Each fund is considered an independent fiscal entity;ccounted for within a set ofse]f_
balancing accounts that comprise its asse6, liabilities, fund equiry, revenue, and expenditures. Fund
accounting.segregates funds according to their intended purpor and is used to aii management in
demonsaating compliance with legal, financial and contractual provisions. All of the funds of the
Municipality can b€ divided into two categories: govemmental firnds and proprietary funds.

l. Governmental funds

Govemmental funds are used to account for_most of the services provided by the Municipality.
These funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as govemmental
activities in the CWFS. Unlike GWFS, rhe focus ofSovemrnental firnds in the FFS is directed to
specific activities. of tfie Municipality rather rhan the Municipality as a whole; therefore,
govemmental funds in FFS report the Municipality,s operations in more derail than the CWFS.

Govemmental funds in FFS provide a detailed short_term view ofthe MunicipaliB,s finances that
assist in determioing whelher there will be adequate financial resources availaile to meet the
current needs of the Municipality, which is, evaluating the Municipality,s neaHerm financing
lequirements. . For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality classifies its govemmental
funds wirhin rhe follo\ring rlpes: tl) Beneral fund. 121 debt service fund. (J) specral re\enue
tunds. (4) capital projects funds and (5tpermanent funds.

Govemmental fltnds FFS are prepared on an accouoting basis that is significantly different from
that used to preparc GwFs. In generar, govemmentar runds FFS focus 

-on 
near-term inflows and
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Management.s Discussion and Analvsis
Fiscal year Ended June l0- 2010

outflows ofexpendable financial resources, consequently, they measure and account for cash and
other assets that can easily be converted to cash_ For eiampL, amount, .eponeJon rtre U"tan"e

:$t li"',Id., 
*p,."1 

Tsers 
wirhin a rery shorl period of rim". b* d; ;;i;i;il.aprtat assels

sLrcn as land and buildings. Covemmental fund liabilities generally include amounts thatnormally are going to be paid within a shon period after the end;fthe fiJ"a y"u.- ft" airr"."n""
between a fund's total assets and total liabiliries is reponed as the fuJ Uui*ce o. Oen"it, anagenerally indicates the amount that can be used to finance the next fiscal year,s activities.
Likewise, the. operating statement for govemmental limds reports only thoJ revenues and
expenditures that we.e collected in cash or paid with cash, respectively, d-uring the cunent fiscal
year or very shortly after the end ofthe fiscal year.

Because the focus ofgovemmental funds FFS is narrower than that ofthe CWFS, it is useful to
compare. the fund information presented for govemmental f'nds with similar inlbrmation
presented for govemmental activities in the GWFS. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-lerm impacr oflh€ Municipaliry.s near+erm fi nanc iaI dec ision.. Bot'h the gouemr.ntal
runos Dalance sheet and the govemmental funds. statement of revenues, exDenditures and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the compa'rison between
govemmental lirnds and the govemmental activities reporred in the govemment_wide financial
Statements,

The Municipality has six major govemmental fitnds. Each major fund is presented in a separate
column in the balance sheet - govemmental funds and the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds. The six major govemmental funds are: ( I )generalfund, (2) debt service fund, (l) head stan fun( (4) comrnuni-ty development block grani
fund. (5) legislatire joint resolutions fund. and (61capital improremenibona fuiJ.

Pmprietary fund

Ih p."trylql fund is a fund used ro repon rhe financial posirion. resuhs ofoDeration and cashIt"l: 
-9t 

vi11 g.t larque^1Fn]H4..ProJecJ 
No. 6l-0ll-0690660049y. is a housing developmenr

:,"I:llTq.:t :iChy-t"rr 
(E4) d$elling unirs tocaled in Juana Diaz. Ihe project iiowned Ly rhe

Munrcrpatrty. blrt tts operalions are carried out by a private managemenl agenr unrelated lo the
Municipality. The housing development projecr of Villas del parq-ue has belen designed to assist
vadorrs segments of the general public in obtaining adequale and reasonable 

_priced 
rental

housing. The project operares under financing through rhi secrion g New conlt uction ana
Substantial Rehabilitation program ofthe U.S. Departrient of Housing and Urban Development
and the Se$ion 51.5 RUml Rental Housing Loans program ofthe U.S. iepartmeni of agricutture.
lhe purpose of villas del Parque is to provide adequate housing to row-income residents of the
Municipality.

The activities of Villas del Parque have been.reported as a proprietary fund in the accompanying

l:i:,filTrl .I"r."nrs since CAAP.permitsihe use of enterprise tunds to report any activity
tor whlch a lee is charged to extemal users of goods or services, regardless of whether the
govemment intends to fully recover the cost of the goods or servicei provided. Thus, it is
common to use proprietary fund reporting to account for s€rvices where the govemment intends
to recover only a ponion of its costs lhrough fe€s or us€r charges.

Proprietary funds pmvide the same type ofinformation as the GWFS, but in more detail.



c) Notes to Basic Financial Stotumenls

The NBFS provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data
provided in the GWFS and FFS. The NBFS can be found immediately following the 6'asic financial
statements.

d) Other Supplementar! Ihlomation

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of other supplementary infonnation
, consisting of budgetary comparison schedule _ general fund.

MuNtcIpaLrry oF JUANA Di{2,
CoMMoNwf,ALTH oTPUERToRICo

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010
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MUNICIPALITYOFJUANA DiAZ!
coMMoNwEALTH oT PUERTo RICo

Management,s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal year Ended June J0.2010

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVER]\Mf,NT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMf,NTS

The statement ofNet Assets serves as an indicalor ofthe Municiparity's financial position at the end ofthe fiscal year. In the case ofrhe [4unicipaliry ofJuana O;* go*",i,n'"nrui u"riiiie. 
"sser, "xc..dedrotal.liabiliries by $4?,6t6,7J3 ar rhe en; of20t0, as compared with $44,9t9,275 at the end of theprevious;ear- ln the case ofrhe MunicipariD ofJuana Diaz business-qp.'""riri,i"a *r"t. .xceeded lotalliabilities by 995.201 at rhe end of20t0. as compared wirh $14q.54t ,iif,. 

""J "iif,. 
p_"i"us year. Tfiefollowing condensed Statement ofNet Assets oirhe primary Govemment ,hor*, on J 
"ompu.atir" 

basi.the most important components ofthe $2,697,45g incremeni reflected in the govemmental activities Net
Assets figure, and the $54,248 decrease reflected in rhe business-q4r acrivities-Ner Aisets figure

Covernmertrl rctivities Bu.iners.tyDc actir iti.r Tot l
Jrne30,

2010
Jtne30,

2009
June30,

20t0
Jrne30,

2009
June.30,

20t0
June30,

2m9

Capilal ds€ts. ner

Oiher non-cunenr assels

$14,50E,900

68,361.179

t0{,,9'72

Er9?5J51

$14,109,195

63,80r,701

l03,l3 t

-- 7U16.1r7

$14r,668 S139,683

1.267,199 t.357.837

t.408,867 t,497.520

$14,650,568

69,628,67a

t04.912

84,3&42t S-

st4,449.t7a

65,t61.538

t0l,l3l
- 1! 73.U7

Currcnt liabilities, excluding
long-term obligations 5.269.76t
Long-t€.m obligariors:

Due wi$in one year 4,099.1t6
Due aner one ye 2'.989,j4t

rorar liabilities _ftldff-

5.723.219 27,116 5.759,61',7

49,249.t38 45,452.3t4

4,774.399 5,533,778
(6,311.51I) /.5.9t7,276)

647,7t2.026 $45.068.6!6

36,398 5.296.907

3,094.155 30,600 28.492 4,t29.716 3.t22,647
24.479.67E r,2J5,826 1,283,0E9 27,245,569 25,762,167

-JJ.rrl.Ol' I-X rJr+ - tl41r7' - J6"6?rJq r4545,0tt

Inv€sted in capiral assers5 ,er of
related debt 49,268,36j 45,406,058 (tg,22g) 46.256
Restricted 4.659.A77 5.4t0.493 114,522 103,285Un.esrricted (6.31r,5!l) 15.917.276)

roratnerasos 
--E 

a"lI- 
:- 

$4dqrtrj - sq5l9 - st4rj4t

The statement of Activities reflects that for fiscar year 20 r0, the net effect of the revenues derived rlom
seveml programs plus cunent operating revenues, amounted ro $2,697,458 in govemmental activities, and($54,24E) in. business-type activities. Approximately fony one percent t+jy"i oi tf," Municipaiity,sgovemmental activities total revenue came,from raxes, while fifty four percent (54%) resufted from gra;b
and contributions, including federal aid. ln-rhe case of the business_rype, upproii_ately ninety-three
percent (93yo) of total revenues resulted fiom federal grant. fne Uiunicipaiity,s govemmentat andbusiness-type activities expenses included items such ai general gor"-rri*i *U_ and economic
developmen!.health and sanitation, pubric safety, public housing uil *ar".", 

""rrr.", 
recreation and

education, and interest o long term obligations.
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MUNICIPALITY oF JUANA DiAZ,
coMMoN\ EALTH oFPUERTo ITCO

Management,s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal year Ended June 30- 20 t0

Approximately twenty two percent (22%) oftotal expenses resuked from geneml govemment, twenty tive
percent (25%) oftotal expenses resulted fiom urban and economic development, iix percent (6%) oitotal
expenses rcsulted from health and sanitation, seven percent (7%) of to."i expenses resulted from public
safety, five percent (5%) of total expenses resulted from public housing and welfare, thirty one percent
(31%) of toral expenses resulted from culture, recreation;nd education, while four percent (4%) oftotal
expenses resurted from interest on rong term obligations. The following is a condensid presentation ofthe
y*,:ip{iry. } results 

-of 
operarions as repofted in rhe sratemenr of activities for the hscal years ended

June 30,2010 and 2009:

20092010 20to

Progm{peific op.6ting smr rrl conr.ihrrions

P.ogM.peinc Ep,El Ctur d onributions

Toial proam @en6

Comnucdm dcie tr\6
Un6lricLd gar! md conEibuiios

oths Bee.dl ,tm6 (vri@s m6)
Tohl smml revq!6

Urh6n od .@omic dd€logDmt

Publa houiry dd relfm
cuhre, lt@Iim ,nd eduB.ion

Inl€€r @ long1em ohtigaions

N. itultu(ddta*) h Glen
N.t etl .t b.gitrtrt4 oa fel ,an s Ea.t d

Nd a$.9 .t dd ol r!.d yar

12,249,425

5,50&2,rO

2,518,053

2,152,911

2.163,529

rZ6sr,on

29,938,476

5,8J9,r22

6,7%916

2.05t,918

t279.s2O

,fi.ots

44.919,215

qlar.

$3,r06.876

1$.2a3

-l5Jr6ld-

4,711.159

l,3lt,9lo

2.1a3,542

t2@949

tr94,776 $338,7t7

25.407

t8,50t55'

-t,6nF

2,513,053

2,\s2911

2,t63,529

{68t,611

665,392

t3.078,829

481,923

- G,olo,ss-

I,3Il,910

2,133,5.12

4,630,7a4

422.610 411144

685 1,552

15.557.267 63J

1t,t51.975 421',125

17.6A9,736

l0.16t_301

5,859,122

1,770,894

2,051,938

15.553.319

31,569,671

\.298,M2

,,933,033

2,501,212

3,128.574

1,266,133

415.6%

5,678,569

t,D8,62

3,98&oll

2921,615

3j123,514

| 26,133
--r7@.1N

3,519.219

-sl+9i!l?5

417.511

(54218)

-Err3-

479111

(53.921)

211.442

$l4rJ4l

27,7tA,59\

2,643,210

-frin.ui-

23.U4.351

1,455,3t3

,11 ,613..193

=io6s,sl-
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MuNICtpALrTy oF JUANA DiAz,
CoMMoNw[ALTH oF PUERTo fuCo

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 10, 2010

FINAI{CIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Analysis of Findncial posiriol of Gotemmenrol Funds

As discussed earlier, the Municipality uses firnd accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. The focus of the l,runicipality's govemmental funds ii to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and barances ofexpendable resources. such information is
useful in assessing the Municipality's compliance with finance-ielated legal requircments. Specifically,
unreserved firnd balance may serve as a usefirl measure ofthe Municipality's nit resources avairable for
spending at the end ofthe fiscalyear.

As ofthe end ofthe current fiscalyear, the Municipality,s govemmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances amounting to 98,81 1,856, which represents an increase of$t,150,4b0 when compared witf,
the prior year. Total Municiparity's ftrnd barances were reserved or committed for the folrowing
purposes: (1). to liquidate contracts and F,urchase orders coresponding to prior fiscal year ($ 167,237);2\
for debt service payments ($2,311,632); 3) to pay for capital projects ($S,leZ,SZt); and 4) for othei
purposes ($1,623,51l).As ofJune 30, 2010, the Ceneral Fund, which is the main operating iund of the
Municipality, reflected an undesignated fund deficit of$1,053,445.

The following table presents the condensed financial position ofgovemmental lirnds at June 30, 2010 and
2009:

2010 2009
Assels:

Total assets - major govemmental funds
Total assefs - other govemmental fimds

Combined total assets

Liabilities:
Total liabilities - major govemmental funds
Total liabilities - other govemmental fitnds

Combined total liabiliries

Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved - major govemmental funds
Reserved - other govemmental funds
Unreserved - major govemmental funds

Combined total fund balances 8,811,856 7,66t,456

$ 12,123,76s

3,732,218
$ t3,422,434

2,44t,194
15,855,983 15,863,628

5,272,769

1,77 t,358
6,418,761
I,783,41I

7,044,127 8,202,172

7,904,441

1,960,660
( 1,051,44s)

8,646,920

657,783
(1,643,241)

Totat litbitities aad fund Mances

l3
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MUNIcIPAI,ITY oF JUANA DiAz,
CoMNToNWEALTH oF PUERTo fuCo

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30- 2010

FINANCIAL AI\ALYSIS OF BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES

Alollsis of Finonciol Posirion of Proptietary Fuad

At June 30, 2010, the total assets of proprietary fund amounted to g 1,408,867, which consisted principally
of: (l) restricted cash in commercial banks of $133,543, and (2) capital assets of 91,267,199, net of
accumulated depreciation $2,594,4 52.

At June 30,2010, the total liabilities ofthe proprietary fund arnounted to $1,313,574, which consisted
principally of: (1) mortgage notes payable of$1,286,428, and (2) accounts payable and acc.ued liabilities
of $27,t46.

The total restricted net assets of proprietary fund amounted to $95,293 at June 30, 2010, which are
reserved for progmm activities. The following table presents a summary of the financial position of the
proprietary fund (PF) at June 30, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009

Assets:

Total current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Total current liabilities
Total nonrunent liabilities

Toral liabilities

Nel assets:

lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for federal funded progmm

Total Eslticled net ossels

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

1,408,867 I,497,520

1,3 t3,57 4 t,347,979

$ 95,293 $ r49,541

$ r4r,668
1,267,t99

$ 139,683

13s7,a37

51,746

1,255,828

64,890

1,2E3,089

(19,229)

t 14,522

46,256

103,28s

a) Geoeral Fu[d

The original and the final budget of the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
amounted to $14,431,616 and $16,419,047, respectively. Over the course of the fiscal year, the
Municipality revised the GF's budget in order to include increases and decreases in revenues that
were identified during the course of the fiscal year based on current developments that positively
alfected the Municipality's finances. The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth mandate a
balanced budget.
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CoMMoNwE-{LTH oF PUf,RTo ITCo

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June J0. 2010

The total actual revenues (budgetary basis) of the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010 were $16,834,1IE, which is three percent (3%), or $415,071 more than the budgeted revenues.
In addition, the total actual expenditures and other financing sources (budgetary basis) ofthe general
fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 were $16,391,952, which is $27,095 less than the
bldgeted expenditures.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DIBT ADMINIST&{TION

a) Capital Assels

The Municipality has invested $93,182,119 in capital assets used in govemmental activities, which
have an accumulated depreciation and amonization of$24,820,640 ar June 30, 2010. The net capital
assets of govemmental activities increased during the current fiscal year due to the current fiscal
year's capital additions ($6,711,449), which were partially offset by the depreciation and
amortization expense ($2,153,671) for the same period.

The capital additions made to capital assets during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2OI0 were the
following:

Construction in progress
Buildings, structures and improvements
Machinery, equipment, fumiture and fixtures
Licensed vehicles

Other capital additions forthe fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010

$ 4,1s3,822
t,t2't,632
I,409,E75

20,120

$ 6,7llj4

Duaing the current year, construction in progress amounted to $17,624,6g0 was reclassified to
building, structures and improvements category.

b) Debt Administration

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general obligation municipal
bonds and notes for the payment ofwhich the good faith, credit and taxing power of each municipaiity
may be pledged. The applicable law also requires that in order for a Municipality to be able to issue
additional general obligation bonds and nores, such Municipality must have sufficient .'payment 

capacity,,
as defined in Act No. 64. Such Act establishes that a Municipality has sufficient ..paymint capacity,,io
incur additional general obligation debt if its deposits in the Redemption Funds ani the annuai amounts
collected with respect to such Municipality's sales and use Tax and special Additional rax (as defined
below), as projected by GDB, will be sulficient to service to maturity the Municipality,s outstanding
general obligation debt and the additional proposed general obligation debt

The Municipality is required under prevailing applicabre law to lery a speciar Additionar rax and a Sales
and use Tax in such arnounts as shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal
bonds and notes. In addition, principal ofand interest on all general obligation muniiipal bonds and
notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation ofthe issuance of general obligation bonds issued
by the Municipality constiture a first lien on rhe Municipality's Basic Tar revenuei. Accordingly, the
Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be available to make debt service payments on general

l5
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COMMONryEALTH OT PUERTO fu CO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

obligation municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special Additional Tax and the Sales and Use
Tax levied by the Municipality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality,s Redemption
Funds, are not sufTicient to cover such debt service. In the particulai case ofthe Municipality of Juana
DiaZ it has never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes to pay debt service on general obligation debt of
the Municipality.

ECONOI{IC FACTORS AI\D NEXT Yf,AR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Municipality rclies primarily on property and municipal ta\es as well as federal and state grants to
carD/ out the govemmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have bein very
predictable with increases of approximately five percent; but for the fiscal year 2010-2011, the property
tax and subsidies from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico,s Generul Fund a.nd contributions from thi
Traditional and Elecronic Lottery sponsored by said Govemment were drastically reduced. Federal and
State grant revenues may vary ifnew grants are available, but the revenue can be also predictable. Those
factors werc considered when preparing the Municipality's budget for the fiscal year 2010-201 l.

But the Municipality of Juana Diaz had filed legal and administrative actions against the Municipal
Revenue Collection Center ("CRIM", by its Spanish acronym) changeling the final liquidations of
remittances for fiscal years 2008-2009 and 2009-2010, which reflect unfavorable outcomel against the
Municipality of Juana Diaz by $1,502,303 and $1,0E3,410, respectively, principally as a consequence ofa
misleading distribution by CRIM of subsidies iiom the Commonwealth of pueno Rico's Ge;eral Fund
and contributions fiom the Tmditional and Electronic Lottery sponsored by said Covemmen! for the
fiscal year 2008-2009.

FINAI COMMENTS

The Municipality ofJuana Diaz is an autonomous govemmental entity whose powers and authority vested
on its Executive and Legislative Branches arc specifically established in the Municipal Autonomous Act
approved in August l9l. By virtue of such powers, it provides a wide range of services !o its
constituents which inchdes, among orhers, public works, educarion, public safety, public housing health,
community development, recreation, waste disposal, welfare and others. The Municipality,s principal
sources of revenues are derived from property t&xes, sales taxes, municipal license taxes, subsidies from
the commonwealth of Puerto Rico's General Fund and contributions from the Traditional and Electronic
Lottery sponsored by said Govemment.

since the Municipality is significantly dependent on the intergovemmental gi.ants and contributions
received from the govemment of the Commonv,,ealth of puerto Rico and from property tax advances
received from CRIM, the municipality could suffer a significant financial burden for certain scheduled
intergovemmental revenues that could not be col lected during the fi scal years 20 I 0-20 I I and 20 I I _20 12,
and for the collection by CRIM of final liquidation for fiscal year 2008-2009 (retained fiom currcnt
remittances), and accordingln management is currently evaluating altematives for the permanent
financing of the operations ofthe geneml fund and the Municipality.

Among the actions curently taken by the management of the Municipality in relation to these mafters arc:(l) the implementation ofa cost reduction plan and related activities, (2) the implemenlation ofincreased
collection efforts over accounts receivable and inter-fund balances, and (3) the evaluation of different
altematives through possible long-term financing agreements with GDB.

I6



MUNICIPALITYoFJUANA DiAZ,
CoMMoNWEALTH oF PUf,RTO RICO

Managemenl's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June J0, 2010

In order to achieve its budget control and cost reduction objectives, management is currently trying to
manage the Municipality within its cash and budget constmints, including the periodic review and update

of its cash flows projections, actual vs. budget comparisons for budget adjustments as needed, and the

monitoring oftheexecution of the collections.

The success of the foregoing plans and strategies to reduce the general fund's accumulated deficit, to
improve the cash flows and liquidity of the Municipality and to achieve excess rcvenues over
expenditures in the general fund of the Municipality cannot be assured, as it is significantly dependent

upon events and circumstances which outcome cannot presently be determined. However, management is

committed to undertake whatever actions may be necessary to prevent operating deficiencies in the firture,
but without affecting its fiduciary duty with its citizens regarding services and city improvements.

REQUEST FOR INTORMATION

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayer, customers,

investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the
Municipality's accountability. If you have questions about the report or need additional financial
information, contact the Municipality's ChiefFinancial Officer at P.O. Box 1409, Juana Diaz, PR 00769,

or call (787) 837-2185.

t'1
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MUNICIPALITY oF JUANA DL{4
CoMMoNwf,ALTH oF PUf,RTo RIco

Statement ofNet Assets
June 30, 2010

Assets

Current assets:

Cash in commercial banks

Accounts receivable:
Ta\es:

Constru€tioo excise taxes

Sales and use taxes

Intergovemmental gmnh and contributions
Interests

Other
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash ill commercial banks

Cash in fiscal agent

Cash equivalents in commercial banks
Accounts receivable:

Property laxes receivable

Sales and use taxes receivable
Intergovemmental grants and contributions
Other r€c€ivables

Other current assets

Total curent assets

Non-current assGts:

capital assets:

Depreciabl€ capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation of $24,820,640 and $2,594,452 for
govemmental and business-twe activities,
respectively.

Non{epreciable capital assets

Deferred charges, net of accumulated amonization
of$8s,683.

Total non-curent assets

Total assets

Covernmentrl
activities

Business-typ€
activilies Total

1,910
t34,521
89,086

15,500

33,994

3,260,022
9,096,186

27,600

27,319
20,550

t,200,009
3,45

7,910
t34,527
89,086
15,500

33.994

9,096,r 86
27,600

27,319
20,550

1,200,009

8,027
3,723

14,650,568

133,543_

4,402
3,123

r4,508,900 14r,668

55,349,648
r3,01t,831

t,170,970
96,229

68,466,4s1

55,520,618
13,108,060

104,9'72

69,733,650

tM,972
1,267,t99
1,408,867 84,i84,2r8

The accompanying notes tothe basic financial statements are an integralparl ofthjs statement.

82,975,351
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MUNICIPALITY OT JUANA DiAZ,
CONIMONWf,ALTH OF PUf,RTO RICO
Statement olNet Assets (concluded)

June 30.2010

Liabilities and net assets (liabilities)
Covernmental

activiti€s
Business-typ€

,ctivities Totrl
Current lirbilitics (du€ within one year):

Accounts payable:

Tmde payables

Intergovemmental payables

Accrued liabilities:
Accrued interests on bonds and notes payable

Accnred christmas bonuses of employees

Uneamed revenues

Currert portion of long-term obligations:
Bonds payabl€

Notes payable

Obligation under capital leases

Compensated absences

Total currcnt liabilities

Non-current lisbilities, excluding curr€nt portion
(due in more than oneyeir):
Bonds payable

Notes payable

Compensated absences

Toral non-cuFent liabilities
Totalliab;lities

Net sssets (liabilities):
Invested in capital assets, net of related debi

Restricted for:
Debt service

Other purposes

I Jnrestricted net liabilities

Total net assets

2,047,213
592,963

304,334
191,803

2.133,448

769,000

2,',775,845

4,271
550,000

2t,t46-

30,600

2,014,359
592,963

304,334
19t,803

2,t33,448

769,000
2,806,445

4,271
550,000

9,368,8',77 57,t46 9,426,623

18,643,000

5,583,187

|,163,554

18,643,000

6,839,0r5
t.'763,554

27,245,569

1,255,828

25,989,141 I,255,828

35,358,618 t,313,574 36,672,t92

49.268,367 (te22e) 49.249,t38

2,841,632

r,818,245
(6,31l,5lt)

$ 41.616,133

2,84t,632
1.932,767

(6,1u,5 )
$ 47,7 t2,026

ll4.s2;_

The accompanying notes 1o the basic financial statements are an integnl part ofthis statement.
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ,
COMMONWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO

Statement of Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ,
CoMMoNwE{LTE OF PUf, RTO fu CO

Balance Sheet -Covemmental Funds

June 10,2010
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MuNIcIPALITY oF JUANA DiAa
COMMONWL{LTE OFPUERTOfuCO

Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Chaflges in Fund Balances (Deficits) - Covemmental Funds

FiscalYear Ended June 30,2010
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MUNICIPALITY of JUANA DiAa
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO I.ICO

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Govemmental Funds

and the Statement ofNet Assets - Proprietary Fund

lo the Statement ofNet Assets
June 30,2010
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MuNIcIPALITY oF JUANA DiAz,
COMMONWEALTH OF PUf,RTO RICO

Reconciliation ofthe Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances (Deficits) - Govemmental Funds and the Statement ofRevenues, Expenses

and Changes in Fund Net Assets Proprietary Fund to the Statement ofActivities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ'
CoMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Statement ofNet Assets - Proprietary Fund
June 30- 2010

Business-Type Activities - Ent€rprise Fund

Restricted Ass€ts

Currel|t rssets:
Restricted assets:

Cash in commercial banks (includingcash
for opelations of M4,482)

Tenants accounts receivable
Accounts receivable from HUD
Prepaid insurdnce

Other assets

Total current assets

Non-current essets:

Depr€ciable capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation of $2,594,452
Non-depreciable capital assets

Total non-current assets

Toal ass€ts

Liabilities and fund net assets

Current liabilities (due within otreycar):
Accounts payables and accrued liabilities

Cunent potion ofmo(gag€ notes payable

Total curent liabilities

Non-curr€nt liabilities, excluding current portion
Mortgage notes payable - due in more thao one year

Toral liabilities

Fund net asset!:
Invested in capital assets, net of re,ated debt

Resmcted for other purposes

Total restri€ted net assets

vill.s del Prrque
FmHA Project

No.6 33-0690660049

l]3,543
3,092
1,310

1,398

t41,668

1,170,970
96,229

1,261,199

1,408,867

21,146
30,600

57,746

1,255,828

t,313,574

(t9,229)
114,522

The accompanying notes to the basic fina.cial statements ale an integral part ofthis statement'
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ,
COMMON}VEALTH OF PUORTO fu CO

Statement ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Fund

Fiscalyear ended June J0,2010

Operrting r€venues:
lniergo!emmenlal glants and contribu(ions -

tenants assistance Payments fiom U S.

Department of Housing and Urban Development

Charge for services rental income from tenanb

Miscellaneous

Total opemting revenues

Operrting expens€s:

Gen€ral and administmtive

Utilities
Maintenance

Taxes and insumnce

Interest on mongage notes Payable
Depreciation of capital ass€ts

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Non-opGrating incom€ - inaerest on deposits

Net decrease in restricted fund net assets

R6tricted fund net assels at b€gin nirlg of fiscel ye.r

RAtricted fund nct assets 3t end of fiscal year

Vilhs d€l Parque
FmHA Project

No. 63-0310690660049

s 394,t76
z',t,864

15t

422,791

\M,ls7
18,875

6,4,214

37,853
96,518

I t 5,856

471,513

(54,782)

534

(s4,248'

149,54t

_!.__rsL

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statemellts are an integral pan ofthis statemert'
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MUNICTPALITY OT JUANA DiAZ,
COM}IONWEALTE OF PUIRTO RICO

Statement ofcash Flows
Proprietary Fund

Year Ended June 30,2010

Business-tlpe Activities-f trt€rprise Fq4!L
Villa del Parque

FmHA Projcct No.
63-033-06m660049

Cash flows from operating rctivities:
Receipts from rent

Interest received

Other cash rec€ived

Payments to suppliers and employees

Payment of mo(gage interests

Net cash provided (used) by op€rating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest deposited on replacement r€serve

withdrawals Irom replacement reserve

Decrease in other reserves

Deposit to rcplacement reserve

Acquisitior of capital assets

Net cash pmvided (used) by investing activities

Cash llows from finadcing activities:
Principal payments on mortgage

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

C.sh aod Cash Equivalents - Beginning

Crsh ard Crsh EquivalenB - Ending

Displayed on statement of net assets as a component oi
Cash in commercial banks (cash for operations)

Recotrciliation ofoperating income (loss) to oet crsh

provided (us€d) by operrting activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

nel cash pro\ ided (used) by operating activilies:

Depaeciation expense

lncrease (Decrease) in:

Tenants accounls receivable

ftepaid expenses

Accoun6 payable and accrued pa,T oll ta\es

Tolal adjustments

Net cash pro!ided (used) by oPemling activ;lies

s 422,640
534

l5l
(219,s94'

(96,618)

4t.l t3

(465)
12,033
10,927

(19,620)

Qs,218\
Q2,343\

(25,rs3)

(383)

40,865

-9___________44.4n_

_9_j4,4n

(54,248)

I t5,856

(3,955)
(1,054)
(9,486)

l0r,36l
47,113

The accompanying noles lo the basic financial statements arc an integal part to this statement.
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ,
COMMONWf,ALTS OT PUERTO IICO
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 10,2010

1, Srmmary ofsigtrificant Accounting Policies

The Municipality of Jlana Diaz Commonwealth of Pue(o Rico (the Municipality)' is a local

rn""i"ipuf gi*-i."nt 
"onstituted 

in 1798 in the Commonwealth of Puerto fuco The Municipality

i.* iriii"gi.l"ir", fiscal and all other govemmental powers and responsibilities expressly assigned

U, I-"* f.f".. 8l of August 10, 1991, aiamended, kllown as Autonomow Municipallies Act of the.

Vo^rrni*"ottn of Puiro Rico (Ao No. 6l ). The Municipality is one of seventy-eight municipal

gore-."nts legily separated from the state govemment ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the

Commonwealth).

TheConstitutionoftheCommonwealthprovidesfortheseparationofpowersoftheexecutive,
legislative and judicial branches of the Commonwealth and the municipalities However' the

M"unicipality's govemmental system consists of executive and legislative branches only A Mayor'

"i;"r"d'*; 
fiur years by the citizens, exercises the executive power of the Municipality The

leeislative power oithe Municipality is exercised by the Municipal Legislature, whose members arc

alio electei euery four years The judiciary power is exercised by the Ceneral Justice Court System

ofthe Commonwealth, which hasjurisdiction over the Municipality'

TheMunicipalityassumeseitherpartialorfullresponsibilityforproviding.servicestoitscitizens
,"Ut"a to potti" housing, welfare, public safety, health, sanitation, education-, culture, recreation,

urban devilopment, ecoiiomic devilopment, and many other fiscal, general and administrative

a) Fiiancial Reponing Model

The accompanying basic financial statements pres€nt the financial position.ofthe govemmental

activities, tire business-type activities, each major govemmental and proPrietary funds, and the

aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality at June 30, 2{10, in conformity with

Aiointing Principles Generally Accepted in the United Stales of America (GAAP)' as

prescribed by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (CASB) ln addition, the

lccompanyin! basic financial statements present the changes in the financial position (results of
operationsi oithe govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major govemmental

"ia 
p-pti"tu.y fuids, and ttre aggtegate remaining frlnd information for the fiscal year ended

Jrn"io, ZOfoin 
"onformity 

witt Caaf. Furthermore, the basic financial statements referred to

above present the cash flows ofthe business-type activities (proprietary fund) for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2010 in conformity with GAAP.

According to the financial reporting model established by GASB Statement No 34' Baric

Financi; Stalemenls - and Mana[enent's Discussion ond Ahalysis lor State a d Local

Cor"^^"rr, (GASB No. l4), the ;quired basic financial statement presentation applicable to

ttre Iraonicip"iity is compoied ol the following elements: (1) govemmenFwide financial

statements (bWFS), (2) govemmental and proprietary fund financial statements (FFS)' (3) notes

to basic financial statements, and (4) required supplementary information (RSI)'

rRsl consists of: (l) a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and (2) a budgetary

comparison scheduie - general fund RSI is unaudiled supplementary information requircd by

GAAP presented along with, but sepamte from, the Municipality's basic financial statements'
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ,
COMMON\lEALTH OFPUf,RTO fuCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

MD&A is a narmtive report that introduces the accompanying basic financial statements and

provides an anallical overview ofthe Municipality's financial activities for the fiscal year ended

iune 30, 2010, based on the Municipality's knowledge ofthe transactions, events and conditions

reflectei in the basic financial statements. The MD&A also highliShts certain key fiscal policies

that control the Municipality's operations.

In addition to the required financial reporting requirements refened to above, the accompanying

basic financial statements are accompanied by additional supplementary information consisting of
a budgetary comparison schedule - general fund and the notes to the budgetary comparison

schedu-le 
'general 

fund, which have been subjected to the auditing procedures apPlied in the

audit ofthe accompanying basic financial statements as ofand for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2010.

b) Fi anciol Reporting EntW

The accompanying basic financial statements include all depanments, agencies and municipal

operational units that are under the legal and administrative control of the Mayor, and whose

financial resources arc under the legal custody and contlol of the Municipality's Director of
Finance, as prescribed by Act No. 81.

The accompanying basic financial statements include the financial statements of Villas del Parque

(FmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049), an operational unit and a business-type activity
(proprietary fund) ofthe Municipality which single audit report reflect total assets, liabilities, net

"i.eis, 
.eu"nu"s and exPerses of $1,408,867, $1,313,574, $95'293' $423'325 a $477 '573,

respectively, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The financial position, results of
operations and cash flows of Villas del Parque as of and for the fiscal year ended June 10, 2010

aie reported in the accompanying statement of net assets - Proprietary fund, the statement of
revenues, expenses and chanSes in fund net assets - proprietary fund, and the statement of cash

flows proprietaryfund,respectively.

Villas del Parque is a housing development project consisting of eighty-four (84) dwelling units

located in Juana Diaz. The project is owned by the Municipality, but its operations are can'ied

out by a private management agent untelated to the Municipality The housing development

project ofvillas del Parque has been designed to assist various segments ofthe Seneral public in

;bAining adequate and reasonable priced rental housing. The project operates under financing

through the Section 8 New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation Program of the U.S.

Deparment of Housing and Urban Development and the Section 515 Rural Rental HousinS

Loans Program of the U.S. Depanment of Agriculture The purpose of Villas del Parque is to

provide adiquate housing to low_income residents ofthe MuniciPality. Separate audited financial

;atements oi Villas del Parque can be obtained directly from the management agent's offices al

Professional Center Building, Suite 302, San Juan, Puerto Rico 00927.

On July 1, 2005, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 39,

Detenfiining Whethet Certain Otganizations ale Componenl Unils - an Afiendment of GASB

Statement No. 1l (GASB No. 39). CASB No. 39 stales that certain organizations for which a

primary govemment is not financially accounlable nevertheless warrant inclusion as part of the

financial reponing entity because of the nature and significance of their relationship with the
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ,
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

primary govemment, including theii ongoing financial support ofthe primary govemment and its

other component units.

According to GASB No. 39, a legally separate, ta,x-exempt organization should be reported as a

discretely presented component unit ofa reporting entity ifall ofthe following criteria are met:

. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entircly or

almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary govemment, its component units, or

its constituents.

. The primary govemment, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the sbility to
otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate

organ ization.

. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific
primary govemment, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise

access, are significant to that Primary govemment.

ln addition, GASB No.39 states lhat other organizations should be evaluated as potential

component units if they are closely related to, or financially integrated with, the primary

govemment. Such types of entities may be presented as either blended or discretely Presented
component units, depending upon how they meet the criteria for each specified in GASB No. 14.

The Municipality's management has concluded that, based on the aforementioned criteri4 there

are no legally separate entities or organizations that should be reported as component units ofthe
Municipality as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

c) Goternmerrt-Wide Financial Slaremenls

The accompanying GWFS are composed of: (l) the statement of net assets and (2) the statement

ofactivities. These financial statements rcport information ofall govemmental and business_q?e

nonfiduciary activities ofthe Municipality as a whole. These statements arc aimed at presenting a

broad overview of the Municipality's finances by reporting its financial position and results of
operations using methods that are similar to those used by most private businesses

The focus ofCwFs is on the operational accountability ofthe Municipality as a single economic

unit and not on compliance with budgets, regulalory requirements or on lhe use of available or
currently expendable financial resources (refened to as fiscal accountability). Operational

accouftability is the Municipality's responsibility to report to the extent to which it has met its

operating objectives efficiently and effectively, using all resources available for that purpos€. It
focuses on the Municipality's principal operating objective, which is to provide services to its
citizens.

The accompanying statement of net assets provides short-term and long-term information about

the Municipality's financial position by presenting all ofthe Municipality's assels and liabilities,
with the difference between these two items reported as "net assets" (equity) and./or net liabilities
(accumulated deficit). This statement assists management in assessing the level of services that

can be provided by the Municipality in the future and its ability to meet its obliSations as they
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ,

Co!TMoNwEALTH or PUf,RToRICo
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

FiscalYear Ended June 30,2010

become due. lfl addition, this statement reports the extent to which the Municipality has invested

in capital assets and discloses legal and contractual restdctions on resources'

Net assets (liabilities) are classified in the accompanying statement of net assets within the

following three categories:

. Ilvested in capital asseb, net of related debt - This net asset category consists ofcapital

assets, net ofa;umulated depreciation and amortization, reduced by the outstanding balances

of bonds payable, notes payable and other debts that are attributed to the acquisition'

construction ;r improveme;t of those assets. For the purposes of determining the outstanding

debt attributed to capital assets, the total long-term debt related to the acquisition.

constuction or improv;ment of capital assets has been reduced by any related unspent debt

proceeds and any related unamortized debt issuance costs.

. Restricted tret esseb - This net asset category consists ofnet resources restricted by extemal

parties (such as creditors, gmntors, contributors, laws or regulations of other govemments,

etc.), or net assets for which constraints are imposed by constitutional provisions or enabling

legiilation. Enabling legislation consists of legislation that authorizes the Municipality to

asiess, lerry, charge or otherwise mandate paynent of resources (ftom extemal resource

providers).' Enabling legislation establishes restrictions if it includes a legally enforceable

requirement that those resources be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the

legislation.

. Unr6tricted net liabiliti$ - This category consists of the excess of liabilities over related

assets (accumulated deficit) that are neither extemally nor legally restricted, neither invested

in capital assets. However, assets reported within unrcslricted net liabilities often are

designated to indicate that management does not consider them to be available for general

operations. Assets reported within this category oftefl have constmints that are imposed by

management but can b€ removed or modified. When both restricted and unrestricted

,"rou,-"", u." available for use, it is the Municipality's policy to generally use rest cted

resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The accompanying statement of activities presents the Municipality's results of op€rations by

showing how ihJMunicipality's net asseis or liabilities chaoged during the fiscal year ended

June 30-, 2010, using a net (expense) revenue format- This statement presents the cost ofeach

function/program as well as the extent to which each ofthe Municipality's frlnctions, programs or

other serviceis either contributes to or dmws fmm the Municipality's general revenues (such as

property ta-\es, municipal license taxes, construction excise ta\es' etc.).

A function/program describes a Sroup of activities that are aimed at accomplishing a major

service or riguiatory responsibility. The functionVprograms reported in the accompanying basic

financial statements are: (l ) gene.al govemment, (2) urban and economic development, (3) public

safety, (4) health and sanitation, (5) cultur€, recreation and education and (6) public housing and

welfare. The govemmental opemtions of the MuniciPality's departments and operational units

are classified ;ithin lhe following linctions/programs in the accompanying basic financial

statements:
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General govemmetrt:
MuniciPal legislature
Mayols otfice
DePartment of finance

Department of human resources

Department of municiPal secretary

Department of intemal audit
Offi ce of communications
Olfice of admini(mtive sewices

Department of Purchasing

Urbsr and economic deYelopmenl:
Department of public works
Department of planning and development

Public safety:
Depattment of emergency management - civil defense

Departrnent of municipal Police

Health and senit.tionl
Department of recycling services

Municipal enterprises
Department of health

Culture. rccrertion ard educatiol:
Department of sports and recreation

Department of art, culturc and tourism

Public housing atrd n'elfrre:
Department of citizen affairs

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which progxam revenues offset direct

expenses of a given functior/program or segments. Direct expenses are those that are clearly

identifiable with a specific function, segment or operational unit This statement reports revenues

in three broad categones: (1) progam revenues, (2) geneml revenues and (l) sPecial items'

Progrom revenues are gineraled directly flom a pIogmm itselfor may come fiom parties outside

the Municipality's uxpayers or citizens. In the statement of activities, program revenues reduce

the costs (eipenses) ofthe filnction/program to arrive ati (l) the net cost ofthe functiorvprogmm

that must be financed from the Municipality's general revenues or (2) the net progmm revenue

that contributes to the Municipality's general r€venues. The accomparying statement ofactivities
sepamtely reports the following categories ofprogmfl revenues:

. Chsrges for services - These revenues generally consist of exchange or exchange_like

transactions involving charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly

benefit from the goods, services or privileges provided, or are otherwise directly affected by
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theservices.Theserevenuesincludefeeschargedforsp€cificservices'rent,chargesfor
licenses and permits, and fines and forfeitures, among others

. Program-specific operatilg and capital glrols atrd contributions - These revenues

"o"iriof"lntu"ti.na 
that a;e either mandatory or voluntaiy non-exchange transactions with

o,ho gor.*a"na, organizations, or individuals that restrict the resources for use in a

particuiar program. Op;raring gants and contributions consist of resources that are required

[o b" ur"d to-finun". the costs of operating a specific program or can be used either for

oDeratinq or capital purposes ofa specific progam. Capital grants and contributions consist

oi' ..r.n-u., o. ,"aorr"es thar ue restricted for capital purposes - to purchase, consfuct or

renovate capital assets associated with a specific program. Restricted operating.and capital

grants and iontributions are prograrn revenues because they are specifically athibutable to a

irogram and reduce the net expense of that progmm to the Municipality They are reported

net of estimated uncollectible amounts.

General rerenues are the default category for revenues. It includes all revenues and gains that do

;ot meet the definition ofprogram revenues. Property ta.xes, municipal Iicense taxes, construction

excise iaxes and sales and use ta,xes are reported as geneml revenues All othel nontax revenues

(including unrestricted interest on deposits, grants and contributions not restricted for specific

programiand miscellaneous revenues) that do not meet the delinition of progmm revenues are

it"iit"a ^ 
geneml revenues. Resources that are dedicated intemally by the Municipality are

reported as gineral revenues rather than as progra revenues All gtneml revenues arc reported

net of estima'ted uncollectible amounts, which are recorded as reduction ofrevenues ratler than as

expenses.

special items consist of revenues arising fiom significant transactions or other events within the

control ofmanagement that arc either unusual in nature or inftequent in occurence

Extfaordinary itefis consist ofrevenues arising from significant transactions or other events that

are both unusual in nature and infiequent in occurrence.

The general govemmer, functior/program reported in the accompanying statement of activities

inclu"des expinses that are, in essence, indirect or costs of other functions/programs of the

Municipality. Even though some ofthese costs have been charged to certain funds in the FFS as

indireci cost allocations permitted under some federal programs, the Municipality has reported

these indircct costs as direct expenses of the geneml govemment function Accordingly, the

Municipality generally does not allocate general govemment (indirect) costs to other fi'nctions'

The effects of all inter-fund govemmental activities (revenues, expenditures and other financing

sources/uses among govemmental funds) have been removed fiom the accompanying statements

of net assets and activities.

The Municipality classifies the most significant portion of ils activities as govemmental activities

in the accompanying GWFS. These are activities generally financed throlgh taxes,

intergovemmental revenues ard other non_€xchange revenues that can be used to support the

Municipality's programs or se ices. These Sovemmental activities ar€ also generally reported in

the FFS. On the other hand, the op€rations of Villas del Parque are reported as business-type
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activities in the accompanying GWFS These activities are primarily financed iiom grants and

a"."itrii""a and charges-for-services. These business-type activities arE also reported in the

FFS.

The Municipality has no fiduciary activities, which are those in which the Municipality would be

f,.iair[ ". 
.u""gi"g n"t urr"t fo, specific individuals or other extemal pafiies in accordance

with trust agreemenls or olher custodial arrangemenls'

The Municipality has operations and activities that are financed and operated in a manner similar

to private business enterprises, where the costs of providing goods or services to the general

pudli" 1"*p"nr"., including depreciation) is financed primarily through user charges; and where

ih" gor"-ing body has decided thal p€riodic determination of revenues eamed, expenses

incui"d, ana7o. nei income is apPropriare for capital maintenance' public policy, manag€ment

control, accountability, or other pu(poses.

d) Futd Financial Stdlenenls

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity consisting of a self_balancing set of accounts used to

record ass€ts, liabilities and residual equilies, deficits or balances, and changes therein' which are

segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or-attaining certain objectives in

aciordance with CAAP and/or special regulations, restrictions or limitations

The accompanying FFS are composed of: (l) the balance sheet govemmental funds, (2) the

statement ;f reve;ues, expenditur€s and changes in fund balances (deficits) - govemmental

funds, (3) the statement of net assets proprietary fund, (4) the statement of revenues, expenses

and chinges in firnd net assets proprierary Iirnd, and (5) the statement of cash flows -
proprietary fund.

These financial statements report the financial position and results opemtions of the

Municipality's govemmental and proprietary funds and fund q?es bJ-presenting sources, uses

and balancei of current and non-current financial resources. Some of these financial statements

have a budgetary orientation and focus primarily on: (l) the Municipality's major govemmental

fund and fu-nd types, as defined below, (2) the fiscal accountability and (3) the individual parts of
the Municipality;s govemment. Fiscal accountability represents the Municipality's responsibility

tojustifl tliat iti actions in the current fiscal year have complied with public decisions conceming

thi raising and spending ofpublic moneys in the short term (generally one fiscal year)'

The accompanying FFS segregate govemmental funds, proprielary funds and fund tyles

according to their intended purpose and are used in demonstmting compliance with legal,

financial and contracrual provisions. The minimum number of govemmental funds and fund

tlpes is maintained consistent with legal and self_imposed managerial requirements established

by the Municipality. For financial reportinS purposes, the Municipality classifies its

govemmentaland proprietary funds within the following categories:

. Ge e.al fuid - The general fund is the Municipality's main operating fund and a major

govemmental fund, as defined below, used to account for all financial r€sources and

lovemmental activities, except for financial .esources required to be accounted for in another
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fund. It is Dresumed that the Municipality's govemmental activities have been repo(ed in the

".n".rr fu,ia .*ceot for na.nsacrions for which one of the following compelling reasons has

Lori..a ,1" use of anolher fund: (1.) legal requirements. (2) CAAP requir€menls or (3) lhe

demands of sound financial administralion requiring lhe use of a Solemmental fund olher

than the general fund.

Debt senice iund - The debt service fund is a major govemmental fund, as defined below'

used by the Municipality to account for the accumulation ofrcsources for, and the payment

of, principal and interest for: (l) bonds payable for which debt service payments are legally

mandati to be accounted for in a debt servic€ fund and/or (2) bonds payable or any geneml

long-term debt for which the Municipality is being accumllating financial.resources in

adv-ance to pay principal and interest payments maturing in future yea$ During the fiscal

year ended tunJ lo, ,010, the financial activity accounted for in the debt service fund was

specifically related to bonds payable.

The outstanding balance ofgeneml long-teIm obligations for which debt s€rvice pa)Tnents do

not involve thi advance accumulation of resources (such as notes payable and obligations

under capital leases) are only accounted for in the accompanying statement of net assels The

debt service paynents of such debts, as applicable, are generally accounted for as debt

service - princiial and debt service _ interest expenditures in the general fund, except for

certain notes paiable to HUD, which are accounted for in the commlnity development blmk

grant fund and other debt which are accounted for within other govemmental funds'

Speciot retenue funds - The special revenue funds are major and non-major govemmental

funds, as defined below, used by the Municipality to account for revenues derived fiom

gEnts, contributions or other revenue sources that are either self-r€stricted by the

i4unicipality or legally restricted by outside panies for use in specific purposes (except for

.erenui. that a." 
"armarked 

for expenditures in major capital proiects which are accounted

for in the capital project firnds). The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are

specified by muniiipal ordinances or fedeml and state statutes However, resources restricted

to expenditure for purposes normally financed fiom the general fund are report€d in the

Muni;ipality's general fund provided that all applicable legal requirements are ap?ropriately

satisfied. In this case, a special revenue fund to account for such kind oftransactions will be

used only iflegally mandated.

Copiral prujects funds - Capital projects funds are major and non-major govemmental funds,

as defined below, used to account for the financial resources used for the acquisilion,

construction or improvement of major capital facilities and other assets. Significant capital

outlays financed trom proceeds of general obliSation, public improvement or special

obligation bonds accounted for also in the capital projects funds.

The use of the capital projects funds has been reserved only for major capital acquisitions'

construction or improvement activities that would distort financial resources trend data ifnot
reported sepaately from the other Municipality's op€rating activities. The routine purchases

of minor capitalizable assets (such as fumiture, ofiice equipmen! vehicles and other minor

capital asseis or improvements) have been reported in the govemmental fund from which

financial resources were used for the payment.
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. ProD.ieron luttd - Proprietary fund is a fund used to report the financial position' results of

op..u,ion una cash flows of Villas del Parque (Fm!IA Project No 63-033-0690660049)'

rihich are activities for which the intent of management is to recover, partially firough user

charges for services lrent) and mostly through fedeEl grants, the cost of low_income housing

services to the general Public.

The activities of Villas del Parque have been reported as a proprietary fund since GAAP

permits the use of enterprise funds to report any activity for which a fee is charged to extemal

users of goods or serviies, regardless ofwhether the govemment intends to fully recover the

cost oftlie goods or services provided. Thus, it is common to use propdetary fund reporting

to account ior services where the govemment intends to recover only a portion of its costs

through fees or user charges (GASB No. 34, paragraph 67).

As required by GASB No. 34, the proprietary fund of the Municipality- applies all

p.onour""*"nti issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its
predecessor bodies, such as the Accounting Principles Board (APB) and the Committee on

iccounting Procedure, issued on or before November 30, 1989, provided those

pronounc;ents do not conflict with or contradict the standards of the Govemmental

iccounting Standards Board. However, the Municipality has elected to continue following

.o." .""Jnt FASB guidance, provided it neither conflicts nor contadicts GASB

pronouncements,

The focus of the FFS is on major Sovemmental funds, proprietary funds and fund types, which

genemlly represent the Municipality's most important funds. Accordingly, the Municipality is

Lquired to iegregate govemmental funds, proprietary funds and fund types between major and

non-major catigoiies within the FFS. Major individual govemmental and proprietary funds and

firnd tyies are ieported individually as separate columns in the FFS, while data from all non-

major-govemmental and proprietary fuods are aggegated into a single column, regardless offund

type.

By definition, the Municipality's general fund is always considered a major Sovemmental fund

for financial reporting purposes. In addition, any other govemmental fund is classified as a major

govemmental iund in the FFS if its total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures of that

individual govemmental fund are at least l0 percent of the corresponding element total (assets,

Iiabilities, revenues or expenditures) for all govemmental firnds. In addition, the same element

that meets the l0 p€rcent criterion must be at least 5 Percent olthe corresponding element total

for all govemmenial and enterprise (proprietary) funds combined. For the purposes of applying

the afo;ementioned major fund criteria, no eliminations of inter-fund balances have been made'

Total revenues for these purPoses means all revenues, including oPerating and non-operating

revenues (net of allowaflces for uncollectible accounts), except for other financing sources Total

expenditures\expenses for these purposes mean all expenditures\expenses, including operating

and non-operating exp€nditures\expenses, except for other financing uses.

Based on tle aforementioned criteria, the Municipality's major govemmental funds reported in

the accompanying FFS are: (l) the general fund, (2) the debt service fund, (3) the head start fund,

(4) the legislativejoint resolutions tund, (5) the community development block gant fund and (6)
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the caDital imD'ovement bond fund. ln addition, villas del Parque has been rcported separately

i.o, gon"*menrul frnds as the only proprieury fund oflhe Vunicipality

The head start fund is a sp€cial revenue fund used to account for lhe receipts and disbuBements

.iin" fr""a start program grant administered by the Administation for the lntegal Care and

i"rllp.*a 
"i 

ir,iri'*n oi the Commonwealth of Pueno Rico, as a pass-through entity of the

U.S. Department ofHealth and Human Services.

Thelesislativeiointresolutionsfundisamajorcapitalprojectsfundusedtoaccountforfinancial
,"iouJ", ,ttut it" *tigned by lhe Legislature of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico principally

for use in the acquisitidn, construction or improvement ofmajor capital facilities and assets'

The community development block grant fund is a major capital projects fund used to account for

financiat resources thai are assigned by the US Housing and Urban Development Agency and by

the PR office of the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs principally for use in the community

development projects

The capital improvement bond fund is a major capital projects fund used,to account for proceeds

of geniral obligation, public improvement or special obligation bonds These proceeds are used

forihe acquisitLn, construction or improvement of major capital facilities and other assets'

The accompanying FFS are accompanied by other statements and schedules required by GAAP:

ft; th" recon"iiiation ofthe balance sheet govemmental funds to the statement ofnet assets, and

i2!the reconciliation ofthe statement of.evenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances -
govemmenlal funds lo the statemenl ofaclit ilies.

e) Measarement Focus and Basis oJ Accout ting

Government-wide f;ortrcial statements iod oroDrietarv fuDd -The accompanying GWFS and

p."p;"t"ry f*d ,* p."pr"d *ing the economic resources measunement focus and the accrual

Lasis of iccounting.' S;bject to the additional rules and limitations detailed below, revenues

(including interest;n deposits and rent) are generally recorded when eamed and expenses are

generall/recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless ofthe timing ofrelated cash flows

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-

like transactions are genirally recorded when the exchange takes place. In exchange transactions.

each party to the tra;saction receives and gives up essentially equal values An exchangeJike

transaction is one in which there is an identifiable exchange and the values exchanged, though

related, may not be quite equal. Nevertheless' the exchange chamcteristics ofthe exchange-like

transaction are strong enough to justi& treating it as an exchanSe for accounting pLrrposes

(examples include ceiain charges for sewices and miscellaneous revenues, which are recorded as

ievenues *hen collected because they are generally not measurable until actually received)'

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses and assets resulting from non-exchange transactions are

recorded using tire criteria set forth by CASB Statement No. 33, Accounlinglnd Financidl

Reporting;for-Non-etchange frarsacriorr (GASB No.33) CASBNo 33 established accounting

und ."poning standards f;r non-exchange transactions involving cash and financial or capital
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resources (for example, most taxes, grants and private donations) ln a non'exchange transaction'

ii" rtir"l"jp"fLry gfi* (or receiveslvalue without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in

r"rr-. ft,i'. it iift..nt from an exchange transaction, in which each party receives and gives up

"r..nliuliy "qrot 
,ulr",. According to GASB No. 33' the Municipality groups its non-exchange

transactio;s into the following foui classes in the accompanying basic financial statements: (a)

a"iir"a u* revenues, (b) iriposed non-exchange revenues, (c) govemment mandated non-

exchange transactions, and (d) voluntary non_exchange transactions'

Proorietary funds distinguish operating revenue and exp€nses from non-operating items'

Operaring- revenue and eipenses Senerally result lrom providing services and producing and

detiverin-g goods in conneciion with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing opemtions- Revenue

and expeisis not meeting this definition are reported as non-opemting tevenue and expenses The

major operating revenuJ of the Municipality's enterprise fund is from rent charges collected

p.in"ip"ily fro,i a Section 8 New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation Pmgram housing

urristan"i g.ant 
"g.eement 

with U.S. Department ofHousing and Urban Development'

In the case of derived tax revenue transactions, which result from assessments the Municipality

places on exchange fiansactions, receivables and revenues are recorded when the underlying

exchange has occurred.

ln the case of imposed non_exchange revenue transactions (such as property ta'\es and municipal

license taxes), which result from ass€ssments made by the Municipality on nongovemmental

entities, including individuals, other than assessments on exchange transactions, receivables are

generaliy recorded in the period when an enforceable legal claim has arisen. Property taxes and

irunicipal license are genimlly recorded as revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible)

in the fiscal year when resources are required to be used or the first fiscal year that the use ofthe

resources is permitted.

Covemment-mandated non-exchange transactions (such as Smnts and contributions) result when

a govemment at one level (such as the federal or state govemment) provides resources to the

M;nicipality and the provider govemment requires the Municipality to use.those resources for a

specifii purpose or purposes established in the provider's enabling legislation' In these g?e of
tiansactions, receivables and revenues are generally recorded when all eligibility requirements

imposed by the provider have been met. For the majority of grants, the Mxnicipality must expend

resources on the specific purpose or project before the provider reimburses any amounts'

Revenue is, therefori, generally recognized as qualirying reimbursable expenditures are incurred'

Voluntary non-exchange transactions (such as donations and certain gBnts and entitlements)

result liom legislative or contractual agrcements, other than exchanges, willingly entered into by

t*o or more 
-parties. In these t)?es of transactions, receivables and revenues ate genemlly

accounted lor in the same manner as govemment-mandated non-exchange tmnsactions discussed

above. Events that are neither exchange not non-exchange tmnsactions ale recorded when it is

probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount ofloss is reasonably estimable

Receipts of any type ofrevenue sources collected in advance for use in the following fiscal year

are recorded as uneamed revenues.
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According to GASB No 34, all general capital assets and the unmatured long-term liabilities are

"""ia"a 
Lfy in the accompanling statement of net assets and the statement of net assets -

o.oiuury lirna. Th. ..asu..meni foc,ts and the basis ofaccounting used in the accompanying

6ilii'-# irt. p.p.i.tary tund differ significantly from the measurement-focus and basis of

uccounting u..a in tt" p.epamlion ofthe accompanying.Sovemmental .fund 
financialstatements'

ih.."fore]the a""omp"nying governmental fund financial statements include reconciliations' as

i","i"J i, ift" u""o.ponyi,ig-toUt" of contents, to better identify the relationship between the

GWFS and the govemmental fund financial statements'

Corerumentd fund firatrcial strtemetrts - The accompanying govemmentalfrnd financial

;at;fi;;"p"n.d *lrg th..r""r, financial resources measurement focus (floN of cunent

iin-"iui *.ou*"tl and ihe modified accrual basis of accounting Accordingly' the

accomoanvins statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances (deficits) -
*.""-i"iruin nat. rePorts changes in the amount of financial resources available in the near
_future 

as a result of transactions and events of the fiscal year reported Therefore, revenues arc

n"n"*tt" i."oenir"a ua soon as they are both measurable and available Revenues are considered

io u. nuuir"ut"'*rt.n rttey are colleitible within the curent fiscal year or soon enough thereafter

to oav liabilities of rhe current fiscal year. For this purpose, the Municipality considers most

;;"';; ; be available if collecred generally within 90 days after June 30, 2010, except for

;;.;;;;* for which the availabiiity period is 60 days Revenue sources not meeting this

lrritrtitiw 
".it..ion 

or collected in advance are recorded as defered (eafied and unavailable)

revenues at June 30, 2010.

The principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include property taxes' municipal

ti"en'se t *es, sales and l,se t&(es, constnrction excise taxes, intergovemmental grants and

contributions, interest on deposits and charges for services These principal revenue- sources meet

Uoitr .easuotitity and availability criteria in the accompanying govemmental fund financial

statements, excepi for amounts recorded as deferred (eamed and unavailable) revenues'

In a manner similar to the GWFS, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria discussed

oreviouslv. all revenues. expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting ftom exchange

lnd exchange-like transactions are also generally recorded when the exchange- takes place'

Accordinglyl certain charges for services and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues

when coli-eited because thiy are generally not measurable until actually received'

AII revenues, expenses, gains, losses afld assets resulting fiom non-exchange tmnsactions are

recorded in a similar m;ner to the GWFS, using th€ previously discussed criteria set forth by

Geig No. 33 fo, non-"xchange transactions, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria

discussed atrove. Accordingly, pmperty tax and municipal license tax receivables ar€ also

generally recorded in the fiscal year when an enforceable legal claim has arisen wlile property

iax and'municipal license tax ievenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) are also

qenerallv record;d in the fiscal year when r€sources are required to be used or the first fiscal year
"thal 

lhe;se of the resources is p€rmitted. Rec€ivables and revenues from federal and state grants

and contributions. donations and entitlements arc also genemlly recorded when all eligibility

requirements imposed by the provider have been met (generally, as qualifying reimbursable

expenditures are incurred for expenditure{ ven grants)
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Interest on deposits is recorded when eamed only ifcollected within 90 days after the fiscal year_

end since these revenues would be considered both measurable and available.

Pursuant to the provisions of CASB Interpretation No. 6, Recoghition and Meostement of
Ce ain Liabililies ahd Expenditures in Govemmental Fund Finahcial Slatements (CASBI No'

6), in the absence of an explicit requirement (i.e., the absence of an applicable modification,

discussed below) the Municipality genemlly accrues a govemmental fund liability and an

expenditure (including salaries, professional services, supplies, utilities, etc.) in the period in

which the govemment incurs the liability, to the extent that these liabilities arc normally expected

to be liq;idated with current available financial resources. CASBI No. 6 modified the

recognition criteria for certain expenditures and liabilities reported under the modified accrual

basis of accounting prior to CASB No. 34, and clarified a number of situations in which the

Municipality should distinguish between govemmental fund liabilities and general long-tem
liabiliti;s. Therefore, the accompanying balance sheet - govemmental funds Senemlly reflects

assets that will be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities. Long_term assets (except for
accounts receivables and inter-fund advances) and those assets that will not be converted into

cash to satisry cunent liabilities are generally not accounted for in the accompanying balance

sheet - govemmental funds. At the same time, long_term liabilities (generally, those unmatured

that wili not require the use of current financial resources to pay them) are not accounted for in
the accompanying balance sheet - govemmental funds.

Modifications to the accrual basis ofaccounting in accordance with GASBI No. 6 include:

o Principal and interest on bonds payable are recorded when they mature (when payment is

due), except for principal and interest due on July l, 2010, which have been recorded as

governmental fund liabilities at June 30, 2010, which is the date when rcsources are available

in the debt sewice fund (generally, June 30).

. Notes payable, obligations under capital leases, compensated absences, and amounts subject

to accrued claims and judgnents under litigation are recorded only when they mature (when

pa,T nent is due).

o Certain accrued liabilities not due and payable or not normally exp€cted to be liquidated with

current available and expendable financial resources are recorded in the accompanying

statement of net assets. Such liabilities are recorded in the govemmental funds when they

mature.

o Executory purchase orders and contracts are recotded as a res€rvation of fund balance in the

govemmental frrnds FFS.

The measurement focus of the govemmental funds financial statements is on decreases of net

financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measumble and

are recorded when the related govemmental fund liability is incurred Allocation ofcosts, such as

depreciation and amortization, are recorded in the accompanying statement of activities and the

statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets, but ale not recorded in the

accompanying govemmental fund fi nancial statements.
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fl Stewodship, Compliarce and Accounlabiliv

Budpetarv Control

According to Law No. 81, the Mayor and its Adminisrrative Cabinet prepare annual budgets each
fiscal year for the Municipality's general fund and debt service fund. Such legally adopted
budgets are based on expected expenditures by program and estimated resources by source. The
annual budgets are developed using elements ofperformance-based program budgeting and zero-
based budgeting, and include estimates ofrevenues and other resources for the ensuing fiscal year
under laws and regulations existing at the time the budgets are prepared.

The Mayor must submit, for each fiscal year commencing on July l, an annual budgetary
resolution project (the Project) to the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs ofthe Commonwealth
(the Commissioner) and the Municipal Legislature no later than the immediately preceding May
l0 and May 15, respectively. The Commissioner preliminarily verifies that rhe Project complies
with all the applicable laws and regulations and may provide comments and suggestions to the
Mayor on or before the immediately preceding June 13.

The Municipal Legislature has 10 business days, up to the immediately preceding June 13, to
discuss and approve the Project with modifications. The Municipal Legislature may amend the
budgets submitted by the Mayor but may not increase any items so far to caus€ a deficit without
imposing taxes or identirying other sources ofrevenue to cover such deficit. After the Municipal
Legislature modifies and preliminarily approves the Projec! the modified Project is sent back to
the Mayor for his approval or rejection within 6 days. The Mayor may decrcase or eliminate any
line item but may not increase or insert any new line item in the budgets. The Mayor may also
veto the budgets in their entirety and retum it to the Municipal Legislature with his objections. If
the Mayor rejects the Project, the Municipal Legislature will have up to eight (8) days to adopt or
reject the recommendations or objections ofthe Mayor. The approved Project is sent again to the
Mayor, which then would have 3 days to sign and approve it.

If the budgets are not adopted prior to the end of the deadlines refered to above, the annual
budgets for the preceding fiscal year, as approved by the Legislature and the Mayor, are
automatically renewed for the ensuing fiscal year until the Municipal Legislature and the Mayor
approve new budgets. This regulation permits the Municipality to continue doing payments for its
operations and other purposes until the new budgets are approved.

The annual budgets may be updated for any estimate revisions as well as fiscal year-end
encumbrances, and may include any additional information requested by the Municipal
Legislature. The Mayor may request subsequent amendments to the approved budgets, which are
subject to the approval ofthe Municipal Legislature.

The Municipality's Depafinent of Finance and Budget has the responsibility to ensure that
budgetary spending control is mainiained. For day-to-day management control purposes,
expenditures plus encumbrances may not exceed budgeted amounts at the expenditure-typ€ level
of each cost center (activity within a program within a fund). The Mayor may transfer
unencumkred appropriations witiin programs rvithin firnds. The l\4unicipal Legislature may
transfer afiounts among programs within and among funds.
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The legal level of budgetary contml (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriation) is at the functior/prcgram level (general govemment, urban and economic
development, public safety, health and sanitation, culture, recreation and education, and public
housing and welfare) within a fund.

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the appropriations made for any fiscal
year shall not exceed the tolal revenue, including available surplus, estimated for said fiscalyear
unless the imposition of taxes sufficient to cover said appropriations is provided.

Budsetarv AccountinE

The Municipality's annual budgets are prepared using the budgetary (statutory) basis of
accounting, which is not in accordance with GAAP.

According to the budgetary basis of accountin& revenue is generally recorded when cash is
received. Short{erm and long-term borowings may be used to finance budgetaD/ excess of
expenditures over r€venues.

The Municipality uses encumbrance accounting to record the full amount of purchase orders,
contmcts and other commitments of appropriated resources as deductions from the appropriation
prior to actual expenditure. [n the govemmental firnds, encumbmnce accounting is a significant
aspect of budgetary control. Accordingly, expenditures are generally recorded when the related
expenditure is incurred or encumbered. Available appropriations and encumbrances are
established to lapse one fiscal year after the end of the fiscal year. Amounts required to settle
claims and judgments against the Municipality, and certain other liabilities, are not recognized
until they are encumbered or otherwise processed for pa),rnent. Unencumbered appropriations
and encumbrances lapse at fiscal year-end. Other appropriations, mainly capital projects
appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has authorized that
an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made available for current
spending.

The accompanying budgetary compadson schedule - general filnd and the budgetary cornparison
schedule - debt service fund provide information about the geneml and debt service funds'
original budgets, its amendments, and the actual results ofoperations ofsuch major govemmental
funds under the budgetary basis of accounting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 I 0. Further
details of the Municipality's budgetary control at the legal level may be obtained ftom the
Budgetary Liquidation Report for the fiscal year ended June 10, 2010.

Because accounting principles applied for the purposes of the developing data on a budgetary
basis differ significantly from those used to present the govemmental firnd financial statements in
conformity with CAAP, a reconciliation ofthe differences between the general and debt service
funds' budgetary bases and CAAP actual amounts are presented at the bottom of the respective
budgetary comparison schedules.
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I U reslricled ond Reslricled Deposils

The Municipality's deposits are composed oi (1) cash on hand, (2) demand deposits in
commercial banks, (3) demand deposits in the Covemment Development Bank for Puerto Rico
(fiscal agent) and (4) cash equivalents in commercial banks.

The Municipality follows the practice ofpooling cash. The balance in the pooled cash account is
available to meet current operating requirements and any unrestricted excess, if any, is invested in
certificates of deposit with commercial banks. Any deficiency in the pooled cash account is
assumed by the general Iirnd and covered through future budgetary appropriations.

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, public funds deposited by the
Municipality in commercial banks must be fully collateralized for the amounts deposited in
excess ofthe federal depository insurance generally provided by the Federal Deposits Insurance
Corporation (FDIC). All securities pledged as collateral are held by agents designated by the
Commonwealth's Secretary ofthe Treasury, but not in the Municipality's name.

Cash in fiscal agent in the debt service fund consists of cash related to property t&\ and sales and
use ta)a collections amounting to $3,098,097 which are restricted for the payment of the
Municipality's debt service of bonds payable, as required by law. Restricted cash in commercial
bank in the Capital improvement bond fund, amounting to $98,289, and Cash in fiscal agent in
the capital improvement bond fund and other govemmental funds, amounting to $5,568,1t? and

$406,184, respectively, consists principally of unspent proceeds of bonds and federal public
assistance grants funds, which are restricted for the acquisition, construction or improvement of
major capital assets.

Restricted cash in commercial banks ofthe head start firnd, amounting to $l I 1,835, represents the
balance of a non-interest bearing account restricted to finance the operations of this federal
financially assisted program. Restricted cash in commercial banks ofthe community development
block grant firnd, amounting to $17,583, represents the balance ofa non-interest bearing account
restricted to finance the operations of this federal financially assisted piogram. Cash in fiscal
agent and Restricted cash in commercial banks for the legislative joint resolutions firnd,
amounting to $23,718 and $425,776, respectively, represents the balance ofan interest b€aring
account whose proceeds arose from grants and contributions from the Legislature of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico which are restricted to principally finance the acquisition,
constuction or improvemeflt of major capital assets and other activities. Restricted cash in
commercial banks for other govemmental funds, amounting to $2,606,539, represents the balance
of interest bearing and non-interest b€aring accounts restricted to finance the operations ofcertain
federal. state and local funded programs.

Restricted cash equivalents ofthe other govemmental funds, consist of certificate ofdeposit with
original maturity of three months or less, amounting to $27,600 at June 30, 2010, which arose
from unspent funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Section 8
housing choice voucher program, which is restricted to finance program activities.
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Restricted cash in commercial banks of Villas del Parque (proprietary fund), amounting to
$133,543, repres€nts the balance of interest and non-interest bearing accounts restricted to finance
the project operations. Villas del Parque is required to set amounts for the replacement of
property and other project expenditures, as approved by the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. Accordingly, the restricted cash balances of Villas del Parque include a
replacement reserve of $69,635, a cash balance for operations of $44,482, leoants' security
deposits of$7,409 and a cash balance reserved for ta,\es and insurance of$12,017.

Uhresticted and Restricted Accounx Receivable

Accounts receivable consist ofall revenues earned but not collected at June 30, 2010. These
accounts receivables arc stated net of estimaled reserved for doubtful accounts, which are
determined based upon past collection experience, historical trends, curent economic conditions
and the periodic aging of accounts receivable.

Activities among govemmental funds that are representative of lending/borrowing aftngements
outstanding at the end ofthe fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other firnds" (i.e. the
current portion of inter-fund loans) or "advances tolfrom other funds" (i.e., the non-current
portion of inter-fund loans), as applicable. All other outstanding balances between funds are
reported as "due to/liom other tunds."

Other Cunent Assets

Other current assets in the accompanying statement of net assets and the balance sheet -
govemmental funds consist principally ofprepaid costs, which are capitalized rather that charged
to opemtions.

Delened Charges

Deferred charges in the accompanying statement of net assets consist of debt issue costs
associated with the issuance ofbond and notes. Deferred charges are reported net ofaccumulated
amortization. Deferred charges are amortized over the term ofthe related debf using the straight-
line method. In the govemmental funds FFS, bond issuance costs are recordd in the cunent
period as expenditures, whether or not withheld from the actral debt proceeds received.

Capitol Assets

Capital assets used in govemmental and business-type activities include land and land
improvements, buildings, structures and building improvements, machinery and equipment
(including equipment held under capital leases), firmiture and fixtures, licensed vehicles,
construction in progress, and infrastructure. These assets are capitalized and reponed in the
accompanying statement of net assets and the statement of net assets - proprietary firnd.
Inftastructure assets are generally stationary in nature and include roads, bridges, streets and
sidewalks, drainaSe systems and other similar assets.

For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality defines capital assets as assets with an
individual cost basis of$100 or morc at the date ofacquisition, construction or improvement, and

i)

k)
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with useful lives extending beyond one year. All assets with individual costs under $100 or with
useful lives not exceeding one year, are charged directly to expense in the government-wide
statement ofactivities and the statement ofrevenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets. In
the govemmental funds, all capital assets are recorded as capital outlays (expenditures), while all
assets with individual costs under $100 are recorded as expenditures in the corresponding
functiodprogram identified with the asset.

In the statement ofne! assets and the statemeot of net assets - proprietary fund, all capital assets

are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost ifactual cost was unavailable, except for donated
capital assets, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date ofdonation. Estimated
historical costs based on deflated curent costs were used to value a portion ofthe inliastructure
constructed or acquired pdor to June 30, 2003 and certain lards, buildings, structures and
building improvements. The method used to deflate the cunent costs with an approximate price
index was used only in the case of certain items for which the historical cost documentation was
not available. Actual historical costs were used to value the infrastructure acquircd or constructed
after June 30, 2003 as well as, construction in progress, machinery and equipment and licensed
vehicles acquired prior or after such date.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in the statement of net assets as
projects are constncted. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to
the asset ormaterially extend capital asset lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation and amortization expense is recorded only in the govemment-wide statement of
activities. However, there is no depreciation or amortization recorded for land and construction
in pro$ess. Depreciable capital assets are generally depreciated or amortized over their
estimated useful Iives under the straight line method, except for machinery and equipment held
under capital leases which is depreciated over the shorter of its estimated useful life or the lease
term. The estimated useful lives of major capital asset categories arc:

Land improvements
Buildings, structures and building improvements
Infrastructure
Motor vehicles
Fumiture, fixtures, machinery and equipment,

excluding those held under capital leases

Office equipment held under capital leases

Years
20

30 to 50
20 to 50

5

5to20
3to5

Depreciation and amortization expense of capital assets is recorded as a direct expense of the
function/program specifically identified with the asset. Depreciation and amortization of
infiastructure is not allocated to various functionyprograms but reported as direct expenses ofthe
urban and economic development firnction.

Dele ed Revenues

In the govemmental firnd financial statements, deferred revenue arises when one ofthe following
situations occur:
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. Potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for revenue

recognition in the cunent period (repo(ed as "eamed and unavailable revenue' ia lhe
accompanying balance sheet-govemmental funds). As previously discussed, available is

defined as due (or past due) at June 30,2010 and collected within 90 days (60 days for
property ta,xes) ther€after to pay obligations due at June 10. In subsequent periods, when

both criteria (measurable and available) are met, the liability for deferred revenue is removed

and revenue is recognized.

. The Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (reported as

"uneorned rerehue" in the accompanying balance sheet-govemmental firnds). In subsequent

periods, when lhe revenue recognition criterion is met, the liability for deferred revenue is

removed and re!enue is rccognized,

Uneamed revenues at the govemment-wide and the proprietary fund levels arise only when the
Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (reported is "uneamed

revenue " it the accompanying statement of net assets). No "earied and unavailable retehue " is
accounted for in the accompanying statement of net assets nor the statement of net assets -
proprietary fund.

m) Co mpe nsoled A bse nces

The liability for compensated absences recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets is

limited to leave that: (l) is attributable to services already rendered on or before June 30, 2010

and (2) is not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control ofthe Municipality and the
employee (such as illness). Compensated absences that relate to future services or are contingent
on a specific event outside the control ofthe employer or the employee are accounted for in the

period when those services are rendered or those events take place.

The liability for compensated absences includes salary-related costs, which are directly and

incrementally related to the amount of salary paid to the employee (such as employer's share of
social security taxes and medicare ta,,(es).

The vacation policy ofthe Municipality provides for the accumulation of regular vacations at a

rate of2.5 days per month (30 days per fiscal year) per employee. Employees accumulate regular
sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month (18 days p€r fiscal year). Employees accumulate

compensatory time at a mte of L5 times the overtime worked. All vacation and sick Ieave days

accumulated by employees in excess oF30 days and 90 days, respectively, are paid to employees

each fiscal year, if not consumed, as required by law. In the case of compensatory time, the

excess of240 houm is paid to employees each fiscal year, ifnot consumed.

Upoo termination ofemployment, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated unpaid

regular vacation leave at the cunent rate. ln the case of regular sick leave, if the employee

terminates his or her employment before reaching l0 years ofservices, such regular sick leave is

not paid to the employee, if not consumed. In addition upon termination of employment, an

employee does not receive comp€nsation for compensatory time, if not consumed previously.
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After_ I0 yean ofservices, any regular sick leave balance is paid to the employee. Accumulated
vacation time is [ull] vesled to rhe emplo]ee at an] lime.

The liability for compensated absences is in the statement of net assets. A liability for
compensated absences is reported in the govemmenral fund financial statements onlv when
matured (when pa)ment is due), for example, as a result of employee resignations or retire'mentr

n) Long-term Deb,

The long-term liabilities reported in the accompanying statements of net assets include the
Municipality's bonds payable, notes payable, obligitions under capital leases, accrued
compensated absences and accrued legal claims andjudgments.

All long-term debt to be repaid from govemmental resources is reported as liabilities in the
accompanying statement of net assets. principal and interest payments on bonds due on July I ,
2010 have been recorded as govemmental fund liabilities in ihi debt service fund at June 30,
2010, when resources were available. In the govemmental fund financial statements. the face
amount of debt issued (gross debt proceeds) is reported as other financing sources when issued.

In the govemmental activities of the GWFS, debt issuance costs have been capitalized and
reported as deferred charges, which are being amortized under the straightJine meihod over the
resp€ctive lives ofthe debts. ln the GFFS, such costs are recorded as expinditures as incurred.

Non-interest bearing notes payable are accounted for under the provisions of Opinion No. 21,
Intelest_on Receiyables and Payables, issued by the Acconnting principles Board (ApB No. 2l).
According ro APB No. 21, the Municipality has recorded such notes at present value with an
imputed interest rate that approximates the mte that would have been used, using the same terms
and conditio-ns, if it had been negotiated by an independent lender. In thi accompanying
statement of net assets, such notes payable are rcported net of the applicable unamortized
discount, which is the difrerence b€tween the present varue and the face arnount ofthe notes. The
discount is amortized over the rife of the notes using the efrectiv€ interest method. Amonization
of the notes discount is recorded as par of interest expense in the statement of activities. In the
GFFS, notes discount is recognized as other financing uses as incuned.

o) Leases

The M,nicipality classifies its lease agreements either as operating or capitar reases obrigations
according to Statement No.13, Accountingfor Leases, issued by Fi-nanciai Accounting Stidards
Board (FASB No. I3). Capital lease agreements are generally non_cancelable and involve,
substance over form, the transfer ofsubstantialry all benefits and risks inherent in the ownership
ofthe.leased property, while operating leases do not involve such transfer. Accordingly, a capital
lease involves the recording ofan asset and a related lease obligation at the inception ofthe lease.
According to FASB No. 13, the Municipaliry classifies a leasi agreemenr as a capital lease if at
its inception the lease meets one or more oflhe folloring four criteria:

. By the end
Municipality.

of the lease term, owneBhip of the leased property is transferred to the
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. The lease agreement contains a bargain purchase option.

. The lease term is substantially equal (75 percent or more) to the estimated useful life of the
leased property.

. At.the inception ofthe leas€, the present value ofthe minimum lease payments, with certain
adjustments, is 90 percent or more ofthe estimated fair value ofthe leaied propeny.

Although the Municipality is prevented legally from entering into obligations extending beyond
one fiscal year, most capital Iease agreements entered by the Municipaiity contain fiscai funding
clauses or cancellation clauses that make the continuation of the agreements subject to futu;
appropriations. Leases that meet at least one ofthe aforementioned four criteri4 and have a fiscal
funding or a cancellation clause, have been accounted for as capital leases in the accompanying
CWFS. since the likelihood of invoking the provision is considired remote. ttre Municipal-ityi
leas€ agreements do not include contingent rental pa),rnents nor escalation clauses.

In the GWFS, the obligation under capital leases is recorded at the lesser of the estimated fair
value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum Iease payments, excluding any
portion representing executory costs and profit thereon to be paid by the iessor. A portion oieacit
minimum lease payment is allocated to interest expense and the b;hnce is applied to reduce the
lease obligation using the effective interest method.

In the govemmental fund financial statements, the net present value of the minimum lease
payments at the inception ofthe capital lease, if applicable, is recorded simultaneously as: (l)
capital outlays and (2) other financing sources. Minimum lease payments are recorded as
expenditures in the govemmental filnd financial statements.

p) Accourrtinglor Pension Costs

For the prrpose of applying the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting fot
Pensions by State and Local Goyemment Employers (GASB No. 27), the state govemment ofthe
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is considered to be the sponsor of the Empldyees, Retirement
System ofthe Govemment of Puerto

Rico ard Its Instrumentalities (ERS) and System 2000, a multi-employer cost_sharing defined
benefit pension pla, and a hybrid defined contribution plan, respectiv;ly, in which the employees
of the Municipality participate. The Municipality is considered a participang and not a sponsor, of
these retirement systems since the majority ofthe participants in ihe aforementioned pe;sion trust
funds are employees ofthe Commonwealth of puerto Rico and the basic financial statements of
such r€tirement systems arc part ofthe financial reporting entity of the commonwealth of puerto
Rico. Accordingly, no portion of the net pension obligation (NpO) related to ERS has been
allocated to the Municipality in the accompanying basic financial statements. The basic financial
sratements of lhe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico report the total amount of the net pension
obligation ofERS, including any amount that may correspond to the Municipality.
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The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the srandpoinr of a participaat in a multiple_
employer cost-sharing plan. Accordingly. pension cosls recognized in-the accompanying basic
financial statements arc equal to the staturorily required contribitions, with a liability recorded for
any unpaid required contributions.

A Risk Marragement

The Municipality carries commercial insumnce covering casualty, theft, tort claims and other
losses. Insumnce policies are negotiated by the Commonwealth,s Department of Treasury (the
Department of Treasury) on behalf of all municipalities of puerto Rico. the Departnini of
Treasury pays the insurance premiums on trehalfofthe Municipality and then is reim-bursed each
fiscal year thrcugh monthly equal payments deducted fiom the Municipality,s gross property tax
collecrions made by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (.iCniM,,, by its-spanish
acronym), a govemmental entity responsible for billing and collecting property taxes on behalfof
all municipalities ofPuerto Rico.

The Municipality canies insumnce coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by automobile
accidents. This insurance is obtained thrcugh the Automobile Accidents iompensation
Administration (ACAA, by its Spanish acron),rn), a component unit ofthe Commonwealth. This
insurance is compulsory for all licensed vehicles used on public roads and highways in puerto
Rico. The annual premium applicable at June 30,2010 is $35 per licensed motir vehicle, which
is paid directly to ACAA.

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance covemge through the State Insurance
Fund Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth. Thi, insu.or,"" 

"or"r"wo*ers against injuries, disability or death because of work or employment_related accidents, or
because of illness suffered as a consequence of their employment. Workers, compensation
insurance premiums are also paid rhrough monthly deductions made by CRIM from the
Municipality's gross property tax collections.

The Municipality obtains unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability, and drivers,
insuiance coverage for its employees through various insurance progmrns admi;istered by the
Commonwealth's Department ofLabor and Human Resources (DOL). These insurance prograrns
cover workers against unemployment and provide supplementary insurance coverag-e for
tempomry disability, or death trecause of work or enployment-related accidents or because of
illness suffered as a consequence of their employment. Unemployment compensation, non-
occupational disability and drivers' insurance premiums are paid directly to DbrL based on a
percentage of the palroll.

The Municipality also obtains medical insurance coverage from several health insurance
companies for its employees. Different health insurance covemge and premium options arc
negotiated each year by the Deparrment of Treasury on behalf of the Municipality. The current
insurance policies have not been cancelled or terminated at June 30, 2010. primiums are paid on
a monthly basis directly to the insumnce cornpany. In the past three years, the Municipaiity has
not settled claims that exceeded insurance coverage.
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Resenaliot s of Furrd Baldnces

Reservations of lind balances represent portions of fund balances in the govemmental fund
financial statements that are legally segregated for specific future uses or are not appropriated for
expenditure. The Municipality has recorded the following types olreservations of lirnd balances
in the govemmental funds:

. Et curnbrances - Represenl resewations of fund balances for commitments related to
unperformed (executory) contmcts for goods or services (future expenditures under purchase
orders, contracts and other commitments). These committed amounts rcpresent reservations
of unexpired appropriations and generally will become liabilities in future fiscal years as the
goods or services ar€ received.

. Debl senice - Represent firnd balances available and restricted to cover fitture debt service
payments (principal and interest) on bonds payable, which are accounted for in the debt
service ltnd.

. Capilal projects - Represent the reservation of financial resources that are restricted for the
acquisition, consfuction or improvement of major capital assets under contracts and other
commitments. These amounts arc accounted for in the capital projects funds.

. Federul and state furrded prcgrorns Represent financial resources set aside for use in
federal and state grant programs.

l rr re r-fu nd A c t iv i, i e $

The Municipality has the following types of reciprocal and non-reciprocal inter-fund activities
recorded among govemmental funds in the accompanying FFS:

. Inter-fand loens Represent resources (assets) provided by one govemmental fund to other
govemmental fund with a requirement and commitment for repayment (reimbursement),
which are recorded as "due from" in the lender govemmental fiind and ,,due to" in tha
bonower govemmental fund. Inter-lind receivables, which are not considered to be
currently available financial resources, are reported as "adyances". For amounts not
expected to be collected, inter-fund receivableypayables are reduced to their estimated
realizable (settlement) value, and the portion ofthe inter-fund loan that is not expected to be
repaid is reported as a "tansfel-in" fromthe govemnental fund that provided the loan.

. Inrer-Iund trantferr (t.anslets-in/(out)) - Represent flows of assets (permanent reallocation
of financial resources among govemmental funds) without equivalent flows of assets in
retum and without a requircment for repayment. Tmnsfers are reported as ',other lnancing
,rrer " in the govemmental fund making transfers and as 'other Jinancing sources', jn the
govemmental fund receiving transfers.
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. Inrerfand rcimbufie ents - Represent repayments (reimbursements) from the
glvemmental {irnd responsible for particular expenditures or expens€s lo the govemmental
tund that initially paid for them.

In the FFS, inter-fund activiry has not b€en eliminated, as permitted by CAAP.

Use of Eflirnates

The preparation of the accompanying basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires management to make significant estimates and assumpfions that affe;t the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosurc of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the basic financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ liom those estimates.

Falire Adoplion of Accounling Pronouncements

The GASB has issued the following standards that have effective dates after June 30, 20 I 0:

. GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reportihg and Gowrnmental Fund TWe Definitiohs
(GASB No. 54). This Statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on the extend to which a govemment is bound to observe constrains
imposed upon the use of the resources reported in govemmental funds. This Statement is
effective for periods b€ginn ing after June I 5, 20 I 0.

. GASB Statement No.57, Fmd OPEB Measurements by Ageht Employers and Agent Mukiple-
Employer Plans (CASB No. 57). The objective ofrhis Statement is to address issues related to
the use of the altemative measurement method and the frequency and timing of measurements
by employers that participate in agent multiple-€mployer other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) plans (that is, agent employers).. : The provisions of Starement No. 57 related to the
use and reporting of the altemative measurement method are effective immediatelv_ The
provisions rclated to the fiequency and timing of measurements are effeclive for adtuarial
valuations first used to report funded status information in OPEB plan financial statements for
periods beginning after June 15, 201 l.

. GASB Statement No.59, Financittl Instrungrlrr O /rirus (CASB No. 59). The objective of
this Statement is to update and improve existing standards regarding financial reporting and
disclosure requirements of certain financial instruments and extemal investmeni poois for
which significanr issues have been identified in practice. This Statement is effective for
periods beginn ing after June I 5, 20 I 0.

. GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting ahd Financiql Reporting lot Serrice Concession
Atangements (GASB No. 60). The objective of rhis Statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to service concession arangements (SCAs), which are a
q?€ of public-private or public-public parrnership.. This Statement is effective for p€riods
beginning after December 15, 201 l.
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. GASB Statement No.61,'Ihe Finahcial Repo ing Entity: Omnibus an anetujme ofGASB
Statements No. 1J and l{o. 3.1 (CASB No. 6l). The objective of rhis Statement is to improve
financial reporting for a govemmental financial reporting entity. The requiremenis of
Statement No. 14, The Financial Repo ing Entity, and the related financial reporting
requirements of Statement No. 34, Bosr? Finoncial Statements atd Mmagementi
Discussion and Analysis Jor State md Local Goyemments, were amended to better meet user
needs and to address reporling entity issues that have arisen since the issuance of those
Statements. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2012.

The impact ofthese sratements on the Municipality,s basic financial statements has not yet been
determined.

2, Deposits

The Municipalio/ maintains its deposits in various commerciar banks located in puerto Rico and the
Govemment Development Bank for puerto Rico (GDB). proceeds from all bonds and the funds
related to certain federal g-ant awards are required by law to be held with GDB.

On July l, 2004, the Municipaliry adopted the provisions ofGASB Starement No. 40 (GASB No. 40),
Deposit and lnyestment Risk Disclosure, an Amendme t to GASB Stalement No. J. This statement
reqlires that state and local govemments disclose essential risk information about deposits and
investments The disclosure requirements cover four main areas: (l) credit risk, (2) interesi rate risk,
(3) custodial credit risk, (4) foreign exchange exposure.

. Credil rfuk, This is the risk ihat an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations. In compliance with rhe laws and regulations ofthe Commonwealth, the
Municipality has adopted, as its custodial credit risk policy, the Statefient of Investmeht
Guidelines for the Govemment of th" Connonwealth of puefto Rico. Accordingly, the
Municipality is only allowed to invest its obligations of the Commonwealth, obligations of
the United States ofAmerica, certificates of deposit, commercial paper, bankers, ;eptances
or in pools ofobligations ofthe Municipalities of puerto fuco, which are managed by GOn.
According to the aforementioned investment guidelines, the Municipality is not allowed to
invest in marketabre securities orany other type ofinvestments for which iredit risk exposure
may be significant. Therefore, the Municipality,s management has concluded that thscredit
risk related to any possible Ioss related to defaults by commercial banks on rhe Municipality,s
deposits is considered low at June 30,2010.

. lnterest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest mtes of debt investments will
adversely affect the fair value of al investment. The Municipality manages its exposure to
declines in fair values by: (l) not including debt investments in its invesiments porrfolio at
Jlne 30, 2010, (2) limiting the weighted avemge maturity of its investments to periods of
three months or less and (l) keeping most of its banks deprosits in interest bearing accounts
generating interest at prevailing market rates. At June 30, 2010, the interest rate risk
associated with the Municipality,s cash and cash equivalent is considered low.

. Custodial credit sk - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in rhe event of a bank
failure, the Municipality,s deposits may not be recovered. pursuant to the Stateme of
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Investmenl GuidelinesJor the Goyernfie t ofthe Conmonwealth of Puerto Nco, the balances
deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corpomtion (FDIC), generally up to a ma,ximum of $250,000 per depositor. In
addition, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are fully
collateralized for the amounts deposited in excess of the federal depository insurance. All
securities pledged as collateml are held in the Municipality's name by the agents of the
Commonwealth's Secretary ofTreasury. Deposits ofGDB, amounting to $9,096,186 at June
30, 2010, are uninsured and uncollateralized. Howevet no losses rclated to defaults by GDB
on deposit transactions have been incuned by the Municipality through June 30,2010. lt is
management's policy to only maintain deposits in banks affiliated to FDIC to minimize the
custodial credit rislq except for CDB. Therefore, the Municipality's management has
concluded that at June 30,2010, the custodial credit risk associated with the Municipality's
cash and cash equivalents is considered low.

Foreiqo ercharqe risk - This is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely afrect
the value of an investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investment
guidelines, adopted by the Municipality, the Municipality is prevented from investing in
foreign securities or any other types of investments for which foreign exchange risk exposure
may be significant. Accordingly, management has concluded that the foreign exchange risk
related to the Municipality's deposits is considered low at June 30, 2010.

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2010, ar€ classified in the accompanying balance sheet

- govemmental funds a follows:

D$r Had
G.rEl snic. CDac
fmd lutrd tutrd ru.d

joint hp o.!t ort r
dlunoE bord sov.mD.lt t

6ird frrd tu(b

cah iD c(ym.Eiar b€nls
Torzr u@*id.n &ros,B

c:3h in cDB. 6 fisal ,scnr

Tod ca,iyiu dour of
llo?a) r0q3.0o 

"3n 
._.53r ,.040.r2r t.:q7o.r3o

3. MuDicipal LiceNe Taxes

The Municipality is authorized by Law No. 8l to impose and collect municipal license taxes to any
natural or legal person having trade or business activities within the territory ofJuana Diaz. This is a
self-assessed tax generally based on ihe business volume of taxpayers, measured by grcss nevenues.
The Mlnicipality establishes the applicable tax rates. At June 30,2010, the municipal license tax
rates imposed by the Municipality were 1.50 percent for financial institutions and 0.50 f,ercent for
other types of taxpayers. Any ta-xpayers that have been granted with a partial tar exemption under
any ofthe tax incentive acts ofthe Commonwealth ultimately pay municipal license taxes at reduced
tax rates, generally between 60 percent and 90 percent under standard mtes.
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Each ta-rpayer must assess the corresponding municipal license tax by declaring the volume of
business through a ta,\ retum to be filed every April 15, based on the actual volume of business
(revenues) generated in the preceding calendar year. Tarpayers with a sales volume of$3 million or
more must include audited financial statements with their 1ax retum filings. The ta-x can be paid by
the taxpayer in two equal installments due on July 15 and January 15, subsequent to the filing ofthe
declaration on April 15. The first installment of the ta\ covers the six-month period ended December
31, subsequent to the filing date ofthe declaration, while the second installment ofthe tax cove6 the
six-month period ended June 30 of the subsequent calendar year. lf a ta\payer elects to pay the tax in
full on the filing date of the declaration (generally April i5), a 5 percent discount is ganted
automatically on the total tax amount due.

Any municipal license taxes collected in advance (that is, pertaining to a future fiscal year) are
recorded as unearned revenues in the CWFS and the general fund. Uneamed municipal license tax
revenues recorded in the accompanying GWFS and the general fund amounted to $1,671,525 at June
30, 2010. Those unearned municipal license revenues collected in advance pertain to the general
Iind's op€rating budget of the fiscal year 2010-2011, therefore, generally cannot be used to pay
obligations ofthe fiscal year 2009-2010.

These unearned municipal licenses were collected in advance from taxpayers between January and
June, 2010 (known in Spanish as "Patente en Suspenso").

4. Sales and Use Taxeg

The Municipality is authorized by Law No. I l7 ofJuly 4, 2006, as amended by Law No. 80 ofJuly
29, 2007, to impose and collect sales and uses taxes ofone point five ( 1.5) percent to substantially all
products and services sold or provided within the teritorial limits ofthe Juana Diaz. The mentioned
Laws establish the applicable tax rate. At June 30, 2010, the municipal sales and uses tar( rate
imposed by the Municipality was 1.50, from which the Municipality collect one (l) percen! and .the
Puerto Rico Secretary of the Treasury collect the remaining point five (.5) percent without including
food and food ingredients as defined in Section 2301(a) ofthe Act No. 107.

The tax collected by merchants during a given month is due and must be paid accompanied by a sales
and use ta.\ retum to the Municipality and to the Pue(o Rico Treasury Department on or before the I0
days ofthe following month.

The sales and use tax receivable is recognized as revenue when it becomes measurable and available
base on actual collection during the J0 days following the fiscal year-end related to sales and use tax
retums due trefore year end.

Sales and use ta,\ receivable of $134,527 and $20,550 in the general and debt service frrnds,
respectively, represent actual collection during the 30 days following the fiscal year-end related to
sales and use tax refums due before year end.
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Properfy Trxes

The Municipality is authorized by Law No. 8l to impose and collect property taxes from any natuml
or legal person that, at January I of each calendar year: ( I ) is engaged in tmde or business and is the
owner of personal or real Foperty used in trade or business or (2) owns residential real property with
a value in excess of$|5,000 (at 1957 estimated market prices).

The Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM, by its Spanish acronym) is a govemmental entity
flot related to the Municipality which is responsible for the billings and collections of real and
personal property ta,\es on behalf of the Municipality and all other municipalities in the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, CRIM informs to the
Municipality the estimated amount of propery taxes expected to be collected for the ensuing fiscal
year. Th$ughout the fiscal year, CRIM advances firnds (estimated collections) to the Municipality
based on the initial estimated (forecasted) collection amounts for the fiscal year. CRIM is required by
law to prepare a settlement statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made b€tween
the amounts advanced to the Municipality and the property t&\ amounls actually collected fiom
taxpayers on behalfofthe Municipality during the fiscalyear. This settlement has to be completed on
a final basis not later than December 3l following the fiscal year end. If in any given fiscal year,

CRM remits to the Municipality property tax advances that are less than the property taxes actually
collected by CRIM on behalfofthe Municipality, then CRIM will increase the amount ofthe monthly
property tax advances during for the next fiscal year. However, if advaaces exceed the amount
actually collected by CRIM, then CRIM will reduce the amount ofthe monthly property tax advances
during the next fiscal year.

Personal property ta,\es are self-assessed by t&rpayers every year using the book value of peBonal
property assets owned by the t&apayer at January I (assessment date) and reporting such taxable value
through a personal property tax retum filed on May 15 subsequent to the assessment date. The total
personal property tax rate in force at June 30, 2010 was 7.03 percent (of which taxpayers pay 6.83
percent and the remaining 0.20 p€rcent is paid by the Department of Treasury, as a subsidy).

Real property taxes are assessed by CRIM. The assessment on real property is made every January I
and is based on estimated current values ofthe property, deflated to 1957 market prices. The total
real property ta\ rate in force at June 30, 2010 was 9.03 percent (of which 8.83 percent is paid by
taxpayers and the remaining 0.20 percent is also paid by the Department ofTreasury, as a subsidy).

Residential real property occupied by its owner (not engaged in trade or business) is exempt from
property ta-l(es only on the first $15,000 of the assessed value (at 1957 market prices). For exempt
arnounts, the Department of Treasury assumes the payment of the basic tax (4.00 percent and 6.00
percent for personal and real prop€rty, respectively), except for property assessed for less than $3,500
(at 1957 market prices), for which no payment is made by the Department ofTreasury.

According to Law No. 81, included within the total personal and real property tax rates of 7.03
percent and 9.03 percent, respectively, there is a lely ofan annual special tax of L03 percent of the
assessed value ofall real and personal property not exonerated fiom ta.\ation. This special tax is
levied by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico but is collected by CRIM. Collections ofthis special tax
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are directly remitted by CRIM to the debt service fund ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, for rhe
payment ofthe general long-term debt ofthe state govemment.

ln addition, included within the total personal and real property tar mtes of 7.03 percent and 9.03
percent, respectively, there is a portion ofthe tax rate in the amount of2.00 percent that is restricted
for the Municipality's debt service requirements of bonds. Such amounts are recorded in the
Municipality's debt service fund.

The portion of the property taxes recorded in the general firnd is used to finance the operating
activities ofthe Municipality, including the payment of: ( I ) the insurance premiums acquired throuSh
the Puerto Rico Department ofTr€asury, (2) the monthly contributions to CRIM, which are statutorily
required as the Municipality's share of CRIM'S operating expens€s, (4) statutory contributions to the
Puerto Rico Health Services Administration (PRHSA), as the Municipality's share ofthe cost ofthe
public health insumnce covemge provided to qualifl,ing low-income citizens, (5) certain notes
payable to CRIM and the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury and, (6) certain a.rnounts due to certain
agencies and component units of the Commonwealth, which are recorded within intergovemmental
payables in the accompanying GWFS and GFFS. The 0.20 percent of unrcstricted personal and real
property ta\es paid by the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury as a subsidy is recorded in the
Municipality's general fund.

The Additional Loftery System of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Additional Lottery) is an
operational unit reported as an enterprise fund in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's basic financial
statements, which currently operates several betting altematives to the citizens of Puerto fuco. The
Additional Lottery is required every fiscal year to distribute a portion of its excess of revenues over
expenses as follows:

. Thirty five percent of its net eamings (defined as the excess of revenues over expenses less an
amount earmarked for the Fund for Rent and Home Improvement Subsidy Program for the Low-
Income Qualirying Elderly) is eamarked to the municipaliries ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico, of which a maximum of $26 million, on an annual basis, is distributed to the Municipal
Equalization Fund held by CRIM to cover operating expenses and permanent improvements of
the municipalities.

. An additional arnount not exceeding $16 million, on an annual basis, is distributed to the
Municipal Equalization Fund, provided it is within the thirty-five percent conesponding to the
municipalities of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Wlen the accumulated municipal
appropriations from the municipalities'Puerto Rico Health Reform are covered up to June 30,
1997, these resources will b€ assigned to PRHSA.

At June 30, 2010, property taxes receivable recorded in the debt service fund amounted to $27,319.

This Spoce Has Been Lefi Blar* Intentionally
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6. Itrtergovernmeotal Receivables add Pay&bles

Intergovemmental receivables and payables recorded in the accompanying GWFS
follows:

and GFFS are

l e,goww,talre@iwbles:
G6nts &d @ntribuiions:

U S. Dqartnfl of Houlm8 ed Ultd Developm.nl -
Commuity Dselopm.nl Blek cmrs Progm

PEno Rio Hiehqay Auilrodty -
Plmiig ard F.sibility Study

Pueno Ri@ D€p!ftneor ofPublic Works

Iteno Ri6 tlplrnnellr of ljealrh

tuerto Rico Rur6l D€velophdt CorPoration

Pueno Ri.o Ttusn S.feiy Conoission
PuenoRicoDepdtn€ of Labor

Pueao Ri@ Trcaury Depairnent - gfleral hld
Pleflo Rico D€p8lnqn of Re@alim dd Srons
Pueno Ri@ Enssacy M&a:€mmt Asency

Pu€no Ri6 Administl8tion fo. Int e6l Ca€ dd
D.vel@mar ofchilden

Puerto Ri.o Dov.lopmot Bok - PINI
Pueno Ri@ Sp.cial Comm6i1i6 Ollie

Toi6l intergovnnotal Beivabl6

Inte rgN m N 
" 

ta I para b L t :

Parroll wifiholdings (gned nnld):

U.S. Dep6rtnmi ofTEEury - Inten.l R.vdE S.Nie
P@no Ri@ TE6ury Deparhot
Pueno Ri@ Child Supporr Agency

Eaploye.s A$@iarioo ofrh. Govmmsr ofrh€
Comnonmalth of Pu.iro Ri@

Employ.6 R.iiffienl Srst m of $e Covemmot of tte
Commonrcalil ot PEno Rio

Itcno Ri@ t)€petrneir of kbor
Utilitid (g.ndil tund):

Pueno Ri@ Aq@dud dd Swer Authnity
Pueito Ri@ Elftric Po*.r Aulhority
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t0,000
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18, t68
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48957
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242,633
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-$--5918-$ 592,963 592,961

Intergovemmental receivables and payables represent the pending settlements ofthe aforementioned
intergovemmental transactions,

At June 30, 2010, the eamed and unavailable intergovemmental grant and contributions (defened
revenues) reported in the accompanying general fund, amounted to 989,086.
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7. Inter-fund TransactioDs

The composition of inter-fund balances at June 30, 2010 and for the fiscal year then ended is as

follows:

vrjor gor.mn.trtrl lund!

orher Tot l

C.r.dl Rolu.io6 gov.nne rl 3N€mre .l
lun& tu(b

Major govflmnt'l lEds:

CDSC tund

t320
20.n4

-i320
- 20,n4

10159 109,289

- 214349

- 914341

ksEldive joinr 6lutions lund 1,6s0

274.49

No.-moior sovdmmEl tu.ds: 333,126 50,221

I tt33,o0j 50t4t t0?,6J4 t 1,147,081

ort.r Tot'l
Cntr.dl ary.tuddLl g@.dn.n&a

AdNftdin: lnd luI.l aon&

M.ior xov€6m.td tur{,s:

Non-m.lor govhnerftal frnLs $ I,195,755 t I,195,755

CDBC fund 8,959 8,959

I I,195,755 3959 I 1204,714

The principal purposes of inter-firnd receivables and payables are:

r Recognize in the general firnd the outstanding balance of the loans granted to CDBG fund
($20,77E), head start fund ($278,349), legislative joint resolutions tund ($1,650), and non-
major funds ($888,126) to temporarily cover the payroll and other operating costs of several

federally and state funded programs.

. Recognize in the legislative joint resolutions fund the amounts due from general fund ($320),

due from the non-major funds ($50,221), and due to the non-major funds ($107,639) mostly
for errors in the disbursements and deposits process.

The principal purposes ofinter-firnd tmnsfers are to:

. Make a routinary tmnsfer ofresources, amounting to $1,195,755, from the general fund to the
other govemmental fiinds principally to cover solid waste disposal expenditures for the fiscal
year 2010-2011.

. Make a routinary tmnsfer ofcash from ihe non-major firnds, amounting to $8,959, to CDBC
funds, to cover partially principal and interest payment of the Section I 0E loan.

Inter-fund aeceivables and payables represent the pending settlements ofthe aforementioned transfers
at June 30, 2010
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The Municipality did not have complete and accumte accounting records ofcapital assets at June
30, 2010.

The infrastructure assets recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets for $4,558,288
(net of accumulated depreciation of $2,408,223) do not include a substantial portion of rhe
Municipality's general infrastructure assets that \rr'ere constructed or acquired by the Municipality
from 1980 through June 30,2010.
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Several real prop€rty assets, including buildings, stuctures, land and land impmvements have not
been recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets at June 30, 2010.

Depreciation and amortization expense ofgovemmental activities for the fiscal year ended June

30, 2010 was charged to functionvprogra s in the accompanying statement of activities as

Geneml govemment
Public safety
Economic and urban development
Health and san;tation
Culture, recreation, and education

Total depreciation and amortization expense

b) Busine$s-tupe Acliviries

130,816
r41,006
786,9t2

t6,354
1,078,583

__$___L!!1{Z_'

Qpi$l .rsetx .ot being d€prcided - Ied
Total apiul a*a. .or b€i.g dep@iated

Capi&l 6s.ts, b.ing &pEciatedl
Buildings, slru.trs, dd imprev.mmts

Machi.q &d equipme4 6d tumiturc

Toral apiral 6s€ri, bei.g drpdiar€d

Tolrl cGl bais ol capital Nrs

li$.|yd. Incrds

96.729 96229

96,229

3,453,388

241.M6

459

20.519 (2:10)

3,458,087

J07,t35

3.140.431 25.218 (2r0) 3,165,422

s 3,836.663 25,218 (2:t0) 3,861.651

Accunulared d€prc.iarion dd monizdion:
Buildinss, st ucoB, od inpovemols
Mehirery Md .quirmen! @d

tumituE dd fixturs

Tolal &clmulaled d.pEcialio.
Nd @pir,l ssrs, b6in6$t ?€

acitilis

Depreciation and amortization expense
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, was

accompanying statement of activities.

2,418,426 lti.626 2.594..152

--!-_]M!ll ------cqql ero) --l-----]?!1]L

of business-type activities, amounting to $1 15,626 for the
charged to the public housing and welfare function in the

s 7222.448

2s6J78

109,879 2,332)11

262,t25
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June J0, 2010

9. D€f€rred Rev€nues

At June 10, 2010, deferred revenues recorded in the CWFS and the govemmental fund financial
statements are as follows:

To.rt St r.m.trt
G...dl NorErjo. gove.loeoi.l ol n.t
fuud fundi funds

Meetubk drd ur@andbl.

Inlergovemm.nlal Cimls
tudo ribuliom $ E9.0E6 89.0E6 S -

ht .govnmenlal grats

Tota: u.med Ev.oB

lnavailableBen@ 89,086 89,086 -

1,67t,525 - 1,671.525 1,61t.525

46t923 461523 46t,E23

, 1,67t,525 46t923 2.t33.44A 2.1)3.44E
Toraldefered retenuB $ 1.760,611 461,923 2.222.534 $ 2,113.2t48

This Space Has Been Lelt Blank I entionally

62



MUNICIPALITY Of JUANA DiAZ"
COMMONWEALTH OT PUf,RTO RJCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

10. Irng-Term Oblig.tions

The general long-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 is as follows:

Or

9eEry!@-sfulllrL

General obligalion serial bonds

Pubtic inprovemnt sqial bonds

Seclim 108 lom $@lee.ots

Pueito tu@ He.lih s.eic
Adminislralion (PRHSA)

Municipal Rd€nue Coll*rio. Ce.kr
t w No. 146 ofocrobd ll.200l
t d Infomarion MaEgeme.r Srst m

S€ft l€ndr Slaremmr 2008-2009

S€nlenent SIar€ndt 2009-2010

Pueno Ri6 Depdr,ne.I ofTreaury:
Finacing agem€.t lo pay legsl
judem iJAC-%{341(603)

Fin cing agrede.l b pay leg6l

iudpmmt JAC-2002-02{2,
PE-20024223. 63-013-066&133516

Finecine aeement for parr. olihe
€xe$ ofprop€rty lar adv 6 ov€r
collcdions lhrough 1992

Obligrlior3 uder ctpiol leK

Tot ls for govemmertal dtrviliB

B u s I n es s-fi oe a.1 it it i e s :

Mortsrg. nor6 p.y l.:
Seclion 5l5lo0no 001

S.cdon5l5l@m 002

ToBls for busin6s-it?€ actiYilies

$ 15,672,0n0

1,693.000

2.970.000

r.083,410

5t7,ll8

?62,000

r6 r,000

s r 7,880,000

1.532,000

$ 595.000

174,000

5,400,000

316,882

227236

7,876

t.502J01

t60.15 t

78.656

| )75

27,163

2,1t6,99r

50,0@

156.8E2

9,880

45,089

51,082

54,169

t,)75

22,492

5@,115

5,350,000

217)56
12,181

1.502,303

1.083,430

t@269

2),8E7

50,000

9.880

41,8|
t,502,303

1,083,430

58.534

23.881

4,27t

2)t3,554

4271

550,000

s 409J 
'6

$ 21.s7),E31 2,015.144 _ll9g1r1

$ r, r63J25
123,003

3 t,186,626

124,955

2l_201

1.951

27,864

2,136

! l,3lt,58l 25.151 $ 1.286,128 $ :10,600

Historically, the general fund has been used to liquidate the notes payable to CRIM, the Puerto Rico
Health Services Administmtion and the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury, compensated absences,
obligations under capital leases and any other long-term liabilities other than bonds.
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MUNIcIPALITY oF JUANA DiAz
CoNTMoNwf,ALTH oF PUERIo RICO
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

a) Debt Limirotion

The Municipal Legislature is legally authorized to approve the contracting of debts of the
Municipality. Nevenheless, the laws and regulations ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico also
provide that:

. Direct obligations ofthe Municipality (evidenced principally by bonds) are backed by the full
faith, qedit and ta-xing power ofthe Municipality; and

. Direct obligations are not to be issued by the Municipality ifthe amount ofthe principal of,
and the interest on, such bonds and bond anticipation notes (and on all bonds and notes issued
thereafter) which are payable in any fiscal year, together with any amount paid by the
Municipality in the preceding fiscal year on account of tronds or bond anticipation notes
guaranteed by the Municipality, exceed l0 percent ofthe total assessed value of the property
located within the Municipality phs the balance of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service
fuod, for bonds payable and bond anticipation notes to be repaid with the proceeds of
property ta,xes restricted for debt service.

Bonds Paydble

The Municipality issles geneml obligation and public improvement serial bonds to finance the
acquisition, construction and improvement of capital assets, as well as, to finance certain
operating needs, including the payment to suppliers in certain circumstances.

The laws and regulations ofthe Commonwealth provide that the Municipality's public debt will
constitute a first claim on the available revenue ofthe Municipality. Public debt is composed of
bonds payable. The good faith, crcdit and taxing power of the Municipality are irrevocably
pledged for the prompt payment ofthe principal and interest ofbonds.

As more fully described in Note 4, the Municipality levies an annual additional special prcperty
tax of 2.00 percent of the assessed value of personal and real property. The proceeds of this
additional special tax are deposited in a sinking fund established at the Govemment Development
Bank for Puerto Rico, fiscal agent, whereby sufTicient funds are set aside to redeem the bonds
payable ofthe Municipality in minimum annual and semiannual principal and interest payments.
The collections ofthis special tax are recorded in the Municipality's debt service fund.

This Space Has Been Lel Blonk Inlenlionall!
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For financial reporting purposes, the outstanding balances ofbonds represent the total principal to
be repaid. Bonds payable is composed as follows at June 10, 2010:

Outltanding
balance

General Oblisatiotr Botrds:

1996 serial bonds (face amount of$1,180,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $25,000 to $l10,000: plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable mtes (6.2yo at June 30, 2010)
through July, l, 2016.

1999 serial bonds (face amount of $2,270,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $45,000 to $215,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (5.86% at June 30,2010)
through July, l, 2019.

1999 serial bonds (face amount $1,025,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $40,000 to $115,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable fites (4.3yo at June 30, 2010)
through July, l, 2014.

2003 serial bonds (face amount $900,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $15,000 to $75,000: plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (4.3yo at June 30, 2010)
through July 1,2026.

2003 serial bonds (face amount of $215,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $5,000 to $15,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable mtes (4.3yo at June 30, 2010)
through July 1,2026.

2003 serial bonds (face amount of $1,510,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $25,000 to $120,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (4.5% at June 30, 2010)
through July 1,2027.

2004 serial bonds (face amount of $785,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $15,000 to $65,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rutes (4.5o/o at June 30, 2010)
through July 1,2027.

2005 serial bonds (face amount of $E75,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging fiom $10,000 to $65,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable ntes (4.59o at June 10, 2010)
through July l, 202E.

$ 625,000

1,525,000

475,000

755,000

175,000

t,295,000

670,000

65
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MUNICIPALITY oT JUANA DiAZ,
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 10,2010

2007 serial bonds (face amount of$2,180,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging fiom $30,000 to $185,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (l.54yo at June 10, 2010)
through July 1,2031.

2007 serial bonds (face amount of$1,910,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $25,000 to $160,000; plus inte.ests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (1.54% at June 30,2010)
through July l, 2031.

2008 serial bonds (face amount of $255,000) due in annual principal
installments mnging from $5,000 to $20,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable "ates (l.54yo at June 30, 2010)
through July l, 2032.

2008 serial bonds (face amount of$4,642,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $83,000 to $390,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (1.54% at June 30,2010)
thmugh July l, 2032.

2010 serial bonds (face amount of $2,970,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging iiom $50,000 to $230,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 2010)
throuSh July l, 2034.

Total general obligation bonds

Public Improvemenl Bonds:

1995 serial bonds (face amount of$1,758,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $44,000 to $142,000; plus interests due in
annual installments at variable "ates (5.62yo 

^t 
lune 30, 2010) through

J^nrary 1.2016.

1995 serial bonds (face amount of $615,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $10,000 to $55,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable fttes (7.71yo at June 30, 2010)
through July l, 201E.

1996 serial bonds (face amount of $835,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $18,000 to $58,000; plus interests due in
annual installments at fixed rate of4.50oZ through Januar,/ 1,2019.

Total public improvement bonds

Outst3trding
balance

2,080,000

1,825,000

245,000

4,470,000

2,910,000
17,880,000

737,000

365,000

430,000

1,532,000

Total bonds payable
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Va able interest rates on serial bonds are reviewed periodically by CDB and are based on the
fluctuation of GDB'S weighted avemge rate for its commercial paper program. Under this
program, CDB issues commercial paper: (l) irl the taxable and tax-exempt markets ofthe United
States of Americ4 (2) in the Eurodoll.r market, and (3) to corporations having td{ exemptions
under the Commonwealth's Industrial Incentives Acts and, which qualiS/ for benefits provided by
the former Section 936 ofthe U.S. Intemal Revenue Code.

Interest expense on bonds payable amounted to $651,612 for the fiscal year ended June 10, 2010.
Annual debt service requirements of maturity for bonds payable are as follows:

Piscal year
elrding

Jutre 30, Pritrcipd Interest Total

20 $ 769,000 $ 1,055,715 $ t,824,71s
2012 820,000 l,l9l,El4 2,011,814
2013 875,000 t,t40,920 2,015.920
2014 938,000 1,086,314 2,024,314
2015 1,00E,000 1,026,926 2,034,926

2016-2020 4,317,000 4,270,1@ 8,587,109
2021-2025 3,715,000 3,035,582 6,750,582
2026-2030 4,47s,000 1,608,U7 6,083,041
2031-2035 2,495,000 2s7,225 2,7s2,22s
rotals __$__.!2Ll?{90 __$_14,672,6s2 _!___11{84.qt2_

c) Seclion 10E Loan Guaranlee Noles Paloble - Serie, 20U-A

On June 30, 2004, the Municipality entered into a loan guarantee commitment of$5,500,000 with
the U.S. Department ofHousing and Urban Development (HUD) pursuant to an application under
Section 108 ofthe Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (Section 108). Section 108

commitments are required to be supported by a credit subsidy appropriation pursuant to the
Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990 (Credit Reform Act) and implementing guidance issued by
the U.S. OIfice of Management and Budget (OMB). Tlerefore, in connection with its glarantee
of these notes, HUD obligated appropriated funds to cover the credit subsidy cost of the loan
guarantee, as required under the Credit Reform Act. Under the Credit Reform Act procedures,
such funds are disbursed into a financing account as loan proceeds are disbursed by the lender (a
commercial bank). The financing account is in some respects equivalent to an intemal loss
reserve for the federal govemment. Each disbursement into the financing account is equal to the
loan advance times the credit subsidy rate, which is part ofHUD's budget appmved by OMB and
the Congress.

The proceeds of $5,500,000 ofthe loan guarantee commitment are used by the Municipality to
finance the construction of the Fine Arts Center and to provide low-income communities with
another source of financing for the economic development, housing rehabilitation, public
facilities and large-scale physical development projects. The notes on the loan guarantee
commitment bear interest at various rates ranging from 3.50 percent to 6.70 percent. The
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proceeds and uses of the loan guarantee comltl itment are accounted for in the Section I 08 loan
guarantee, a non-major capital projects llnd. The loan guarantee commitment is repaid with grant
awards received from the Community Development Block Grants - Entitlement Grants progmm
(CDBG), administered by HUD. Principal and interest on these notes arc accounted for in the
Section 108 loan guarantee fund, a non-major capital projects firnd. At June 30, 2010, the
outstanding principal balance ofthe loan guarantee commitment amounted to $5,350,000.

Interest expense on the Section 106 loan guarantee notes payable amounted to $307,000 for the
fiscal year ended June 30,2010. The principal and interest maturities on the Section loE loan
guarantee commitment are as follows:

Fiscal year
Ending

June 30, Pfincipal Interest Total

20t1 $ 50,000 304,778
2012 100,000 301,240
2013 100,000 296,365
20t4 150,000 290,0'75
201s 150,000 282,372

2016-2020 1,800,000 t,179,420
202t-2025 346,'100

$ 354,778
401,240
396,365
440,075
432,372

2,979,420
3,346,700

__q___qrq2i0Totals $ 5,350,000 3,000,950

d) Notes Palable to Municipot Revelue Collection Cerrte,

The Municipality had the following notes payables to Municipal Revenue Collection Center
(CRIM, by its Spanish acronym) at June 30, 2010:

. Latrd Informaliop Mrrasemert Svstem (LIMS) - On July 10, 2001, the Municipaliry
entered into a financing a$eement with CRIM for the payment of the Municipality's share
of the cost of an information management system, acquired by CRIM on behalf of all
municipalities, for the management of a digital database of t&\payers properties located in
Puerto Rico. The face amount of the loan was $363,542 and bears no interest. The note is
payable in monthly installments of $2,972 through November 28, 201l. This note has an
imputed interest rate of 5.95yo. At June 30, 2010, the balance of this note, net of the
unamortized discount of$4,373, amounted to $72,7E7.

. Law No. 146 - On September 24, 2002, CRM, on behalf of the municipalities of Puerto
Rico, entered into a financing agreement with GDB pursuant to the provisions of Law No.
146 of October 11,2001, as amended (Law No. 146). The purpose of this financing
agreement was to extinguish in advance certain bonds payable issued by Public Finance
Corporation (PFC), a subsidialy of the Govemment Development Bank for Puerto Rico,
which were originally issued to pay certain property tax receivables owned by the
municipalities ofPuerto Rico through 1996, which were acquired by PFC with recourse.
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The original face amount ofthe note allocated by CRIM to the Municipality was $736,727,
for a term not exceeding 30 years. The note bears interest at 6.50 percent during its firsl five
years. Subsequently, from years 6 through 30, the loan shall bear variable interest at a rate

of 125 points over the 5-year LIBOR rate, which will be adjusted every five years. During
the first five years ofthe note, commenced on July I, 2003, the Municipality shall pay only
interest, except for property ta,y receivables collections related to the transaction explained
in the above paragraph, which will be applied as principal payment to reduce the debt
balance. At the end ofthe first five years ofthe note, the repayment terms and conditions of
the note shall be renegotiated to allow the Municipality to pay the outstanding balance ofthe
note in equal installments ofprincipal plus interest, through maturity. Interest payments on
this financing agreement arc accounted for in the generalfund. The outstanding principalof
the note payable to CRIM amounted to $217,156, at June 30, 2010. Interest expense on
these notes amounted to $ I 4, I 34 fo. the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 I 0.

. Fiscal Year 200&2009 Settlemetrt Statemetrt - On December 16, 2009, CRIM, as

required by law, prepared the final settlement for the fiscal year 2008-2009, whereby a
comparison was made between the amounts advanced to the Municipality and amounts
actually collected from t&xpayers. According to the final settlement, advances to the
Municipality exceeded the amount actually collected by the CRIM, and therefore, according
to law, a payable to the CRIM amounted to $1,502,303 should be recorded in the GWFS at
June 30,2010. But, although such debt was recorded in the CWFS as recommended by
extemal auditors, the Municipality started an adminisfative and legal proceeding to claim
for a revision offinal settlement for the fiscal year 2009-2010.

. Fiscal Year 200q2010 Settlement Statement On December 23, 2010, CRIM, as

required by law, prepared the final settlement for the fiscal year 2009-2010, whereby a
comparison was made between the amounts advanced to the Municipality and amounts
actually collected from taxpayers. According to the final settlement, advances to the
Municipality exceeded the amount actually collected by the CRIM, and therefore, according
to law, a payable to the CRIM amounted to $1,083,430 should be recorded in the CWFS at
June 30,2010. Bu! although such debt was recorded in the GWFS as recommended by
extemal auditors, the Municipality started an administrative and legal proceeding to claim
for a revision offinal settlement for the fiscal year 2009-2010.

e) Noles Paloble lo Pueno Rico D.parlment o.[ T.easary

. Fin.ncitrq Aqreemetrt to Settle Lesal Judsmerts (JAC-960341 (603) - On February
20,2002 the Municipality obtained a loan from the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury to
pay a legal judgment. The face amount ofthe loan was $361,005, and bears no interest. The
note is payable in monthly installments ranging liom $i,000 to $10,055 through February l,
2012. This note has an imputed interest mte of6.50%. AtJuneS0,20l0,thebalanceofthis
note, net of the unamortized discount of $6,767, amounted to $109,269. Discount
amoftization recorded as interest expense on these notes payable amounted to $8,91E for the
fiscal year ended June 30,2010, which are recorded in the general firnd.
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Puerto Rico Department ofTreasury to pay three legal judgments. The face amount of the
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Total futur€ minimum lease payments
Less: amounts reprcsenting ftrture interests

at a rate ranging from 4.20o/o to 7.50%
Present value of minimum lease payments

at June 30, 2010
Less: current portion ofobligation under capital leases
Obligation undercapital leases, excluding cunent ponion

loan was $291,338, and bears no interest. The note is payable in monthly installments of
$4,855.83 through November l, 2010. This note has an imputed interest rate of6.50%. At
June 10, 2010, the balance ofthis note, net ofthe unainortized discount ofg39l, arnounted to
$23,887. Discount amortization recorded as interest expense on these notes payable
amounted to $3,499 for the fiscal year ended June 10, 20t0, which are recordej in the
general fund.

J) Lease Obligqtiorrs

The Municipality is obligated under capital leases witl third parties that expirc through 201I for
the acquisition of machinery and equipment. At June 10, 2010, the capitalized costs and the
related accumulated depreciation ofthe leased machinery and equipment;mounted to $207,06g
and $202,721, respectively, which are accounted for as capital assets in the accompanying
statement of net assets. Amortization charyes applicable to capital leases and included within
depreciation exp€nse amounted to $21,599 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The present
value of the future minimum capital lease payrnents reported in the accompanying slatement of
net assets is as follows:

Fiscal year
Ending

Jupe 30,
201I

Amount
$ 4,341

4,341

(70)

4,271

{4,271')
$-

Interest expense on the obligations under capital leases amounted to $9g2 for the fiscal year
ended June 10, 2010, which is recorded in rhe general fund.

g) Compenssted Absences

At June 30, 2010, the govemment-wide statement of net assets - govemmental activities includes
a liability amounting $2,313,554, ofwhich $ 1,441,167 represents accrued sick leave benefits, and
$872,3E7 represents accrued vacation benefits, represenling the Municipality,s commitment to
firnd such costs from future operations. The Municipality did not have accumte and updated
records of compensated absences (accrued vacations and sick leave). In addition, the liabiiry for
compensated absences, recorded in the accompanying statement ofnet asse6 for $2,313,554, does
not include the accumulated compensatory time ofall employees ofthe Municipality, which are
required by CASB No. 16.
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h) Mortgoge Notes Poloble - Section SIS (business-rype activitieg

The long{erm debr of Viltas del parque (FmHA project No. 63_033-0690660049) consist of two
mortgages notes, collateralized with land and buildings, payable to the U.S. Department of
Agriculture Rural Development in morthly installmenls ;f $8,gg0 and $1,094, respectively,
includ ing interest at an annual rate o f g.00yo and lO.OOyo, respectively, (reduced to 7.00% and
O.00o/o. respeclively) through December 201 l.

l_, _Jy"_ 
JO 2010. lhe ourstanding principal balance of the two mortgage notes amounted to

$1,163,425 and $121.001. respectively. The mortgages notes are subjec-t to various positive,
negative and restrictive covenants rhat the Municipaiity has complied witih at June j0, 2010.

Interest expense on these notes amounted to $96,61g for the fiscal year ended June j0, 2010,
which is recorded in the accompanying statement of activities and the statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in fund net assets - proprietary fund.

11. Employees' Retirement Syslems

a) Plan Descriptioi

The Municipality's employees participate in the Employees, Retir€ment System of the
Govemment of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities leRS; a cost-sharing multi-employer (as
related to the Municipality,s reporting entity) defined pension plan 

- 
estabt ished 6y tL

commonwealth. substantiarly aI fufttime emproyees of thi commonwearth and substanrialv
all municipalities are covered by ERS under the tems of public Act No . 44.1 of May 15, l9il,;:
amended (Acr No. 447). All regular and temporary employees ofthe Municipaliry become pian
members ofERS at the date ofemployment, while it is optional for officen apiointed.

MUNIcIPALITY oF JUANA DiAz.
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This Space Has Beea Lefr Blank Intentionally

7I



MUNICIPALITY oF JUANA DiAz,
CoMTIoNWEALTH oT PUERTo fuCo
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June J0,2010

ERS members, other than those joi.ing it after March 3 I, 1990, are eligible for the benefits
described below:

. Retiremerrt Annuiy

ERS members are eligible for a retirement annuity upon reaching the following age:

Policemen and firemen:
50 with 25 years ofcredited service
58 with 10 years ofcredited service

Other employees:
55 with 25 years ofcredited service
58 with l0 years ofcredited service

ERS mernbers are eligible for monthly benefit payments determined by the application ofthe
stipulated benefit ratios to the member's average compen*rtion. Average compensation is
computed based on the hiShest 16 months of compensation recognized by-enS. it e annuity,
fo_r which a member is eligible, is limited to a minimum of $30-O per month and a maximum
of 75 percent ofrhe a\ erage compensalion.

. l{eri, Anrruily

ERS members are eligible for merit annuity with a minimum of30 years or more ofcredited
service. The annuity for which the plan member is eligible is limied to a mininum of 65
percent and a maximum of75 percent ofthe average compensation.

. DeIe.red Retiremen, Annuity

A participating employee who ceases to be an employee of the Municipaliry after having
accumulated a minimum of ten years of credited s€rvice qualifies for reti;ment benef.its
provided hiyher contributions are left in ERS until reaching 5il years of age.

. Coordinated Plan

On the coordinated plan, by the time the employee reaches 65 years old and begins to receive
social security benefits, the pension benefits are reduced by the following: "

(a) $ 165 per monrh, ifretired with 55 years ofage and 30 years ofcredited service.

(b) $ I I 0 per rnonth, if retired with less than 55 yeals of age and J 0 years of credited
service.

AII other between $82 and $100 per month.

Disability annuities under the coordinated plan are also adjusted at age 65 and in
some cases can be reduced over $165 per month. -

(c)

(d)
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. Non-Cootdinoted Plal

On lhe non-coordinaled plan.the participating employee and does not have any change on the
pensron beneltts upon receiving social security benefits.

. Reve^iorraty Annuiq,

An ERS member, upon retirement, could elect to receive a reduced retirement annuity giving
one or more benefit pa)ments to his/her dependents. The life annuity payments would start
after the death of the rctiree for an amouni not less tfran SZ+O per y"i.'o. greu". tfran tfre
annuity payments being received by the retiree.

. Occupotiorral Disability Annuity

A panicipating employee, who as a direct resurt of the performance of hiyher occupation istotally and permanently disabled, is eligible for a dis;biliry annuity of SO percent of tle
compensation r€ceived at the time ofthe disabilirv_

. Nonoccaporional Dbabiliq, A nuiy

A panicipating ernployee. totafiy and permanentry disabred for causes not rerated to hivher
occupation and with no less than l0 years 

-of 
credited service, is eligible for an annuity of

1.50 percent ofthe average compensation ofthe first 20 years of credi-red services, increased
by 2 percent for every additional year of creditei service in excess of 20 vears- '

. Dealh Benefrts

Occupalional:

(a) Sqrviyirg soguse - anntity equal to 50 percent of the participating employee,s
salary at the date ofthe death.

(b) Children - $10 per month for each child, minor or student, up to a maximum
benefit per farnily of$100.

Nonoccupdional:

Benefici.rw the contributions and interest accumulated as of the date of the death plus an
amount equal to the annual compensation at the time ofthe death.

B_eneficiary w-itl surviring spouse age 60 or over and a child. lg or under, up to l0 Dercenr(ou percenl tt nol covered under title Il ofthe Social Security Act)lincreasei to 50 oercent
effective January l, 2005) of retiree,s pension or otherwi; the excess, 

- 
if'any, 'of the
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accumulated contributions at the time of retirement over the total annuity benefits received
before death. limiled to a minimum ofg750.

. Relurrds

A participating employee who ceases hivher employment with rhe Municipality without the
righr ro a reriremenr annuiry has rhe right to a r;fu;d ofthe contributions'to iRS plus any
interest eamed thereon-

. Cost ofliving Adjustn entlor pension Benefrrs

Public Act No. l0 ofMay 21, 1992 (Act No. l0) provided for increases ofJ percenr every
three or more years of retirement. Act No. I0 requires further legislation io grant ttris
increase every three years subject to the presenlation of actuarial *ra"i.. ."g"rjing'it. 

"os"and the-source of financing. To protecl the financial health of ERS, rhe ir"."u"i" gro*"a
durin€ 2001 and the one granted on January t,2005 are being financed ty,f," fr,uni"ipufity
and the other participating employers.

To 
-avoid 

any economic impact on ERS, the employers are responsible for contributing to
ERS the amounts to cover the benefit payments and tire employer'and erploy"" 

"oriaiUutlon"with respect to the participants covered until the participants reach the noinui ,.tir"_"r, ug".

. Amendmerrt to Act No. 117 eflecrive Januory l, 2000 to create a Delirred Contriburion
Plan

On September 24, 1999, public Act No. 305, an amendment to Act No. 44?, was enacted to
establish a defined connibution plan. known as Slstem 2000. ,o .or"r.rnploy.",joining
ERS on or after January l, 2000.

Emplolees rhal panicipated in the original plan as ofDecember I I. 1099. had rhe opportuniry
lo elect lo either stay in lhe defined benefil plan or tmnsfer to Slslem 2000. Emollvees Oatjoined $e Municipality on or after January l, 2000, were only;llo*.a ro U"cori.-ire.fers
of System 2000.

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. Under
this new plan, there is a pool ofplan assets, which is invesred by rhe System, tJse;er with
those of the_cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefir plan. i.lelttrer'* com-monweattfr
nor the Municipality guarantee benefits at retirement age. The annuity is based on a formula
which assumes thar each fiscal year the employee's c-ontribution (with a .in;mu_ of S.Zt
percent ofthe employee's salary up to a ftaximum of l0 percent) is invested as instructed by
the employee in an account which either: (l) eams a fixed mte based on the two_year
Constant Maturity Treasury Notes, (2) eams a rate equal to ZS percent of the reli of theERS' investment portfolio (net of management fees), or (3) 

"u.s 
u 

"omUinatlon 

-of 
Uottr

aremarrv€s. Participants receive periodic account statements similar to those of defined
contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability benefits a." not g.unt"d ,rd".
System 2000. rarher are provided lo those panicipants that vojuntarily et".r to p'uni"iout in 

"pflvale lnsumnce tong-lerm disability progmm. lte employers. contributions 19.2g percent

74



MuNlcrpALtry oF JUANA DiAz
coMMoNwEALTH oF PUERTo fuCo
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscalyear Ended June J0.20lO

of.the employee's salary) with resp€ct to employees under Sysrem 2000 will continue and
will be used to fund the cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefrt plan.

System 2000 reduced the retirement age lrom 65 years to 60 for those employees whojoined
lhe currenl plan on or afier Januar) l, 2000.

Historically, the state government of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico has reported ERS
and System 2000 in its basic financial statements as pension trust funds. Accordingly, the
Commonwealth is.cunently assuming any actuarial deficiency that may exist or arise relatedto !he. Municipaliry's participating employees because EnS does not allocate to the
Muntcrpality any acruarial deficiencies penaining to pa(icipating municipal emplo\ees. The
Municipality is only required by law to make statutory contri-bulions ar the rates detailed
below.

. RecenlArnendme s lo Act No.147

The Senate and the House of Representatives of the Commonwealth of pueno Rico have the
authority for establishing or amending the contribution requirements of System 2000 by
approving the necessary amendments or laws, subject to the llnal approval of ihe Covemor of
the Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico.

In June and July 2003, the Covemor of the Commonwealth signed th.ee public Acrs that
provided the following certain benefits to retirees:

(a) Increase in minimurn monthly pension payments to $300, effective January l,
2005.

(b) Triennial3 percent increase in all pensions, effective ranuary 1,2005.

(c) Increase in widow and/or beneficiffies to 50 percent of the benefit received by
the deceased pensioner, effective January l, 2005.

All the benefits granted will be funded through budgetary assignments in the Municipality,s
general fund with respect to its retired employees.

The Board of Trustees of ERS approved, effective November 17, 2003, an increase in the
amount granted on personal loans to panicipating employees from $3.000 to $5.000.

This Space Eas Been Lell Blqak Inte ionally
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b) Funding Policy

The contribution requirement to ERS is established by law and is not actuarialry detemined.
These contributions are as follows:

Municipality and 9.28 percent ofapplicable payroll
other employers
Employees:
Coordination plan: 5.78 percent of gross salary up to $6,600

per year, plus g.2g percent gross salary in
excess of96,600.

Supplemenration 8.28 percenr of gross salary. This is theplan: only choice available o policemen,
firemen and mayors

The contribution requirement to Sysrem 2000 is also established by law and is not actuarially
determined. These contributions are as follows:

Municipality and 9.2E percent ofapplicable payroll
other employers
Employees: 5.78 percent ofgoss salary up to $6,600

per year, plus g.2E percent gross salary in
excess of$6,600.

c) Aclual Conrribuions

The actual.combined employer and employee conrributions to ERS and System 2000, which are
equal to the statutory required contributions, were approximately $441,147 and $346,57j,
respectively.

During the fiscal years ended June 10,200g,2009, and 2010, rhe Municipality and the
participating employees contributed at reasr r00 percent ofrhe required conrriburions to ERS and
System 2000. The authority under which obligations to contribute ro ERS and System 2000 bythe plans' members, employers and other lontributing entities (i.e., slare or municipal
contributions) are established or may be amended by law by the House of Representatives, ihe
Senare and lhe Co\emor ofthe Commonwealth ofpueno Rico

Reade6 can obtain copies of the audited basic financial statements (CAAP basis) of ERS and
system 2000 by writing to the Retirement sysrems Administration of the commonwearth of
Puerto Rico (the entity rhat administers ERS and Sysren 2000) at pO Box 42003, Minillas
Station, Santurce, Pueno Rico 00940.
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12. Lardfill Closurc ard postclosure Care Costs Obligatiotrs

The Municipality_owns amunicipal solid wasre landfill. However, rhe Municipality has not adopted
the required provisions of Slatement No.- lg, ,., ccountin7lor Municipal Solid iaste Lanrtlll Closure
and Postclowe Care Cos6, issued by the Covemmental Accounting Standards Board (CASB No.
1.8) and_the regulations set forth by the U.S. Environment protectiJr Agencj lefA) in its .,Solid
Waste Disposal Facility Criteria-, issued on October 9, 1991. Accordi"ng io these standard and
regulations, the Municipality is required ro pl6ce a final cover on rhe Minilipality,s solid waste
landfill site when it-stops accepting waste, and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the site for 30 years after closure. The Municipality has not F,erformed an independenl
study of the activities that need to be implementea at thi Municipality,s solid waste landfill to
guarantee the ma-ximum yield of available space and to comply with applicable state and federal
regrlations and, accordingly, the accompanying statement of n;t;ssets does not include the required
liability for crosure and postcrosure care costs ;f the solid waste landfi using chrrent costs alocated
based on rhe actual landfillcapacir) us€d ar June 10,20 t0.

The Municipality has a contract with a privare company to opemre its municipal solid waste landfill
for a period oftwenty (20) years started on June I, 2b04'. As part of ils conrracito operare the randfiI,
the private company ageed to provide closure and posiclosure care subject to the following
conditions: (l) the private company will be operaring rhe iandfill up to rhe term-ination of the space o-f
the landfill; (2) the landfill will not b€ ordered to stop accepting waste in the firct ten (10) years of
contract term; (3) ifduring the contract period, the company is ordered to close the landfill to develop
any other altemate facility for waste disposition, the privaie contractor wir have preference status to
operate it.

However, because as owner of a solid wasie landfill rhe lvlunicipality is primarily liable under
applicable federal, state, or local law and regulations. rhe Municipaliry, as part 6fthe evaluation ofthe
proposah submitted by private companies interested to operare the iandfill, partially considered the
financial capability and stabirity ofal of interesred privalecompanies ro meet crosure and postcrosure
care obligations when they are due. However, since the indepe;dent required study refenid to above
has not been prepared at June 30, 2010, the Municipality was unable ro veriry the economic impact of
the closing and postclosing care costs, which remain undetermined at J;ne 30, ?010. It is the
management's conclusion that the private company selected and aclualry operating the randfiI will be
able_to meet its conaactuar obligations abour the crosure and postcroiu.e.u.e;osts, subject to the
conditions listed above.

13. CommitmeDts, Cotrtingenci$ erd Utrcertaitrtieg

Cldms and Judgmetrtj

The Municiparity is defendant in various legar proceedings pertaining to matters incidental to the
performance of routine govemmental operzrions. Under Ait No. 104;fJune 25, i955, as amended,
persons are allowed to sue the Municipality only for causes of actions set forth in said Act to a
maximum amount of 975,000 or $150,000 if it involves actions for damages to more than one person
or where a single injured party is entitled to severalcauses ofaction. unier certain circumstances, asprovided in Act No. 9 ofNovember 26, 1975, as amended, the Municipality may provide its orficers
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and employees with legal representation, as well as assume rhe payment ofanyjudgment that may be
enrered againsl rhem. Ihere is no limitation on the paymenr ol.iuchjudgment. 

- _

The Municipality is a defendant in a numberof lawsuits arising principally from claims against the
Municipality for alleged improper actions, and other legal mafi;that arise in the ordinaryiourse of
the Municipality's activities. With respects topending-or threatened litiSation, the Muni;ipality has
reported no liabilities as ofJune j0,2010. Management believes, basei on tie advice oithe legal
counsel,_ that the potential claims against the Municipality not covered by insurance will not
materially affecl the financial resources for ils palmenr.

Encumbmnces

Th: Mr{lcifili? E: r:porte4 outstanding encumbmnces amounting to $167,237 in the general fund
at June 30, 2010. The Municipaliq/ intends to honor these encumb;nces, which will continue to be
liquidated under the cunent year,s budget during a lapse period that extends into the subsequent
fiscal year.

Federal Financiallv Assisted Prosrams

The Municipality receives financial assistance fiom the federal govemment in the form of grants and
entitlements. Receipts ofgrants are genemlly conditioned upon iompliance with terms and conditions
of the grant agrcements and applicable federal law and regulations, including the expenditure of
resources for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants are s;bject to audit ,ndir Circular .4_133 of
the Office of Management and Budget of.the United States of America (OMB Circular 4_133).
Disallowance as a result ofthese audits may become liabilities ofthe Municipality

The Municipality maintains entered into a management agreement with GR Management Corp., for
the adminisrration of Villas del parque (FmHA project N;. 63_033-0690660049). Management fees
amounted to $43,848 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 and consist ofa monthly fixid payment
established in the Administrative Notice pR AN No. 125 (lnst. 1930_C).

14. Subsequent Evetrtj

Special Obliqation Bonds Issuance

On March 12, 201 I the Municipality's Legislative branch authorized the issuance of $g35,000 of
special obligaiion bond. The net proceed will be used principally ro finance statutory debts with other
govemmenlal entities and suppliers. The interest rate on the bond is prime rate variable plus 1.50
percent and maturiq date isJuly 1.2036.

On March 12,20ll the Municipality's Legislative branch authorized the issuance of $755,000 of
special obligation bond. The net proceed will tr used to carry out certain capital improvements
programs authorized by law. The interest rate on the bond is prim; rate variable plus l.5O percent and
maturity date is July l, 2036.
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Gcheral Oblipation Botrd Issuance

^O1YT:1,]2.?O,l 
the [4unicipality's Legislative branch authorized the issuance of gt,060,000 of

-C:l:il' ::119",9," 
bond.,I he nel proceed will be used principa y to carry out certain acquisition of

caprtat assets authorized by law. Ihe interest rate on the bond is prime rate variable plus L50 percent
and maturity date is July l, 2036.

End o! Notes lo Basic Financial statemenrs
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Revcou€s:

Prop€rty taxes

Municipal license ta\es

Sales and use taxes

Constsuction excise hxes

Intergovemmenlal granrs aod cofltribulions

Interest on deposits

Charges for services

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditues and encumbmncesi

Geneml govemment

Urban and economic development

Heallh and sanitation

Public safety

Public housing and welfare

Cukure, reqeation and education

Capital outlays

Total expenditw€s
Revenues over (under)

expenditures and encumbrances

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfer to other govemmental ftnds

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net idcrease (decreas€)

in fimd balance (deficit)

I, t95.755 1.637 921

( I,195,755) { t.t95-755r
( r, t95,755) ( t. t95.75s)

442,166 S 412 t66

$ 16,834,r r8

CoMMONWEALTH oFPUTRTo RIco
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June J0. 2010

Budg€t€d amounts

Original

2.102,480

1,666,000

1,371,084

4,688,3 r I

t70,000

508,771

395,700

14,433,618 16,419,047

Actual amounts Vrrirnce wirh

Firal

(budgerary

basis)

1,341,445

2,t76,245

1,738,031

2.163,529

5,408,159

t48,061

524,531

334,1I I

r6,834,118

5,480,464

5.225,834

I,O34,964

1,787,760

226,310

I,220,808

220,057

t5,t96,t97

finrl lrudget -
ov€r (under)

$-
t38,631

12,3t7

91,974

33,966

28,433

4,341,145

2,037,6t4

1,t33,656

2,151,t52

5,308,844

50,093

490,565

30s.678

5.337,260

4,462,103

t,028,4U

1,980,t87

248,836

I,175,60 r

201,141

14,43t,6r8

5,655,624

s,157,771
't.029,454

I,710,997

232,74t

l,t 87,530

4ls,o7l

175,160

(68,063)

(5,510)

<16,763)

6A3t
(33,278',)

(30,882)

27,095

442,166

189,175

t5,223,292

Reconciliation of dirTerenc€s:

Sourcevinflows of financial resources:

Actual amounts (budgeEry basis) "available for appropriations,,

from the budgetary comparison schedule

Differ€nces - budgetary basis to cAAp:
Differences in bases ofaccounting:

CAAP adjustmenrs ro revenues

Total revenues reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances

341
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule -General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Rcconciliation of ditTerences (conctudcd):

Usevoutflows of financial resouces:

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) ,,toial charges to approprialions,, from
the budgerary comparison schedule $ 16,191,952

Timing differences:

Curent year encumbEnces recorded as exp€nditures for budgetary purposes f6:, .236.)
Pdor year €ncumbrances recorded as expenditures for CAAP purposes 230,82 I

Entiiy differences

v Non-budgeted exp€nditures 94.t71
Total expenditures and other financing sources reported on the statement

ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances $ 16.699-70S

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUf,RTO R]CO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA D|AZ

SCHEDULE OF f,XPENDITURXS OF FfDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNI 30.20IO

Federal
Federsl Grantor/ Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Etrtity tdendrying Federal

ProgBm or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Pass-through the Department ofEducation of
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico:

Child and Adulr Care Food Program 10.55E CCC_250 472.t85
Tolal l'.S. Deparrmetrt ofAgriculture llZ,AtS
U.S. DEPARTMf, NT OF TRANSPORTATION:

Pass4hrough the Transil SafeD Commiscion
ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico:

Alcohol tral]ic Safery and Drunk Driving
Prevention Incentive Grants 20.601 N/AV 80.459
Pass{hrough lhe Puerto Rico Highway and
Tmnspo(ation Authority:

Federal Transit Technical Studies Grants 20.505 2j-Og/ 2OOB-00|452 72,639
Total U,S, Departmetrt ofTransportation f$O9t
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF IIOUSING AND

URSAN DEVELOPMf,NT:
Direct Programs:

Community Development Block Grants/
Entitlement Grants t4.2t9 l,7o8.lt I
Community Development Block Grant
ARRA Fnlillement Cranls (CDBG-R) .

(R€covery Act Furded) t4.253 420,392
TotalCDBC - Entitlement Grants Cluster

Section 106 Loan Guarantee

Section E Housing Choice Vouchers
Progmm

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-
housing Program (Recovery Act Funded) 11.25j

Pass-through the Omce ofthe Commissioner
ofMunicipal Affairs ofthe Commonwealrh of
Puerto Rico:

Community Development Block Cranty
State's Program

Total U.S. Depantment ofllousing and
Urban Developm€nt

14.218

14.871

2,t28,703

t,302

115,E76

4 7,834

14.22E N/AV _ 50.421

2,941,112



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUAI\A DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF EXPEN'DITURES OT TEDf,RAL AWARDS (CONTINUATION)

FOR THf, FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,20IO

Federal
Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Crantor/ CFDA Entity Identirying Federal

Program or Cluster Title Number Number fxDeoditures

U.S. Df,PARTMENT OP IIEALTH AND
HUMAN SfRVICN:
Pass-Through the Administration for Integral
Care and Derelopment ofChildren oflhe
Commonrvealth of Puerto Rico:

Community Sewices Block Grant 93.569 N/AV
Head Start Program

ARRA- Head Start Program

Total Head Start Cluster

Child Care and Development Block G.anr 9f.575 N/AV
ARRA Child Care and Development
BIock Crant

Total Child Care and Development Block
Grant C,uster

17,775

148, t 00

Pass-Through the Municipality ofPonce, P.R.

HIV Emergency ReliefProject Grant 91.914 N/AV
Total U.S. Department ofHealth and
Huma[ Service 6,420)19
Df,PARTMENT OF HOMELAND

SECURITY
Direct Programs:

Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention
Program

91.600 241-20t0-000195 5,951,698

91.708 24 t-20t 0-000136 143.t 16

6,094,8r4

130,325

93.7t3 N/AV

91.074

I].995

163.4r0

6,618

j 1!,0t1,$q

37,',7 42

Pass-Through the Govemo.'s Office ofthe
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 N/AV 6.626
Totrl Departm€nt of Homeland Security 41364
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICf,:

Pass-Through - Department ofJustice ofthe
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico:

Recovery Act Edward Byme Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program 16.E03 2009-SU-AEJUA-01 6.618

Total Department of Justice

TOTAL EXPENDITURf, OF FEDERAL AWARDS

See accompanying Notes lo Schedule of Expendirures ofFederal Awards
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NOTES TO THf, SCHEDULE OE EXPf,NDITURf,S OF TEDf,RAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR f,NDf,D JUNf, JO,20IO

NOTf, I _ GENf,RAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the
Municipaliq ofJuana Diaz, Puerto Rico (Municipality) and is presented on the modified accrual basis. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-lll,
Audits ofStates, Local Govemments, and Non-Pmfit Organizations. Therefore. some amounts presented in
this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the prepamtion of, the general-purpose
financial statements- The reporting entity is defined in Note (l) (A) to the general-purpose combined
financialstatements.

NOTE 2 _ SUMMARY OF SIGNITICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1, The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared from Municipality's
accounting records and is not intended to pres€nt financial position or the results ofoperations.

2. The Municipality in accordance with the terms records the financial t.ansactions and conditions ofthe
grants, which are consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America,

3. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the liability is incured, ifmeasurable or
when actually paid, rvh ichever occurs first.

NOTf, 3 _ FEDIRAL CFDA NUMBER

The CFDA numbers included in this Schedule are determined based on the program name, review of grant
contract information and the Office of Management and Budget's Catalogue of Federal Domestic
Assistance.

NOTE 4 - PASSTHROUCH CRANTOR'S NUMBER

State or local go\remment redistribution of federal arvards to the Municipality, treated as if they were
received directly from the federal govemment. OMB Circular A-ll3 requires the schedule to include the
name of the pass-through entity and identirying number assigned by the pass{hrough entity for federal
awards received as a sub recipient. Numbers identified as N/AV are not available.

NOTES-MAJORPROGRAMS

Major programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results Section ofthe Schedule ofFindings and

Questioned Costs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVTR FINAIICIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIAIYCE AI\D OTHf,R MATTERS BASED ON AII AT]DIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVf,R}IMENT
AUDITING STAI\DARDS

To the Ilonorable Mayor and
Members of the Municipal Legislature
Municipality ofJuatra Diaz, Puerto Rico

we have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities' each

major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Municipality of Juana Diaz' Puerto Rico
(Municipality), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 10, 2010, which collectively comprise the

Municipality's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 29, 201l. Our

report includes a refefence to other auditors. The report on ihe governmental fund financial statements was

unqualified. In addition, the report on the govemmental wide financial statement has an adverse opinion

because we were unable to obtain competent evidential matter related to the capital assets including the

infrastructure, the liability related to the solid waste landfill and the balance of compensated absences

accumulated in the financial statements. we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards

generally accepted in the unit€d states of America and the standards applicable to financial audits

iontaitid in Giremment Autliting Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Other

auditors audited the financial statements of Villas del Parque (FmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049), a

business-type activity (proprietary fund), as d€scribed in our report on the Municipality's financial

statements. This report does not include the results of other auditors' testing of intemal control over

financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors'

Ioternel Control Over Financial Reportins

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Municipality's intemal control over financial

reporting ai a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose ofexpressing our opinion on the

fi;anciai statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Municipality's intemal control over financial reporting Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the

effectiveness ofthe Municipality's intema! control over financial reporting

our consideration of intemal conlrol over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the

preceding paragraph and was not design to identiry all deficiencies in intemal control ovel financial

reporting tirat might be significant deficieocies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no

".ru.uni" 
thut all deficieniies. significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified.

Howeve., as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs' we identified

certain deficiencies in intemal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A. defrcie cy in interndl c.,rrlo/ exists when the design or operation ofa controldoes not allow management

or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct

misst;tements on a timely b^sis. A material vea,tzess is a deficiency, or a combination ofdeficiencies, in

intemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a malerial misstatement of the entity's

financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. we consider the

deficiencies rlescribed in the accompanying schedule of Findings and Questioned costs to be material

weaknesses. Findings l0-ll-01 to l0-lll-05.

P.O. Bor 858, PslE6r gtroot, lilit 68 North, Ou.y4aa, P.B. ooza5
Tel, (74?) 464.64so. Fsr (7a?) Bi4-66eo ' cp3poilroG@hotm.ll.coE



INDEPf,NDENT AUDITORS' RXPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVf,R FINANCIAL
Rf,PORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AI\D OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

rINANCIAL STATf,MENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS (CONTINUID)

ComDliatrce and Other Mrtrer

As part ofobtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Municipality's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, ue performed tests of its compliance \vith certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements! noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However. providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly. we do not express such an opinion. The
results ofour tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
rnder Goyernment Atuliting Std dards.

we noted certain matters lhat we reported to management ofthe Municipality in a sepamte letter dated
March 29,201 I.

The Municipality's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule ofFindings and Questioned costs. we did not audit the Municipality's response and, accordingryl
we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management, the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the l\4unicipal Legislature. others within the entity, and the Office of the Commissioner of
Municipal Affairs, federal awarding agencies and pass{hrough entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

F"#,{r,%K:
License Number 5200

Guayama, Puerto Rico
March 29,201 I

a5t5t8l
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT

COULD HAVE A DTRECT AND MATERIAL EFIECT ON EACII MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON

INTf,RI{AL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDAIICE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-
r33

To the Honorabl€ Mayor ard
Member of the Municipal Legislature
Municipality ofJuana Diaz, Puerto Rico

Comoliaoce

We have audited Municipality of Juana Diaz, Puerto Rico (Municipalily) compliance with the tlpes of
compliance requirements desiribed in the oMB citcular A- 133 conlpliance supplemer, that could have a

direit and material effect on each of Municipality's major federal programs for the fiscal year ended June

30, 2010. The Municipality's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results

section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Compliance with the

requirements of laws, r;guiatiJns, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is

thJ responsibility of thJ Municipality's management- our responsibility is to express an opinion on

Municipality's compliance based on our audit.

TheMunicipality.sbasicfinancialstatementsinctudethefinancialstatementsofVillasdelParque(FmHA
iroject No.'63-dll-0690660049) (Villas del Parque)' a proprietary fund which Single Audit report reflect

tota'l revenues and expenditures (expenses) of $423,325 and $477,573, respectively, for the fiscal yea.

"ra"a 
trn" 30, 2010. other auditois aud;ted the compliance of viltas del Parqu€, with the types of

comoliance requirements described in rhe U-5. Ofrce of Mdnagenent and Budget (OMB) Circular A'133

{:oipln*" Sipptenen that are applicable to the major program of villas-del Parque for the fiscal year

enaea lrne :0,'i'ot o. his report does not include the results of the other auditoB' testing ofcompliance or

intemal control over compliance that are reported on s€pamtely by those audilors

weconductedourauditofcomplianceinaccofdancewithauditingstandardsgenerallyacceptediflthe
UnitedStatesofAmerica;thestandardsapplicabletofinancialauditscontainedinGovemmentAditing
irarrl.r/s, issued by the Comptroller General of the United states; and oMB Citcular A'133' A di$ of
Stotes. Local Goremments, and Non'Prortt Organizolions. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133

,.qri." ifr" we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance

*iitr ,h. ,yp., oi"orpliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on

" .rj.. i"i"*f 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis' elidence about the

llr"i'"ip"iiry'. 
"..piirrce 

with those requirements and performing such other procedurei as w€ considered

n"""suf i,i ,tt" 
"1.*rstances. 

we believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion Our

uuait aoi, 
"ot 

proria" 
" 

lega, delermination on the Municipality.s compliance with those requirements.

As described in items l0JIl-07 and l0lll-08 ;n the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned

Co.tr, itr. t,trni.iput;ty did not comply with requirements regard;ng Reporting and^Special Test that are

"ffi"Ui" 
r. itt Cirn.unity Development Btock G.anF Entitlement Cmnts Cluster' Compliance with such

.Jiui..r"nt. i, no"ttury, in our opinion, for the Municipality to comply with the requirements applicable

to that program.

P.O. Bor 86r, P.lmet Btre.t, N18 68 North, GusysEr, P'E' oozaS
Tol. (7a7) 8a{.5{0o ' F&r (7s?) ao{'558o ' cpsp6droo@hotmrll'oor



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIRXMINTS THAT
COULD HAVtr A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON IACH MAJOR PROGRA.M AND ON
INTIRNAL CONTROL OVIR COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A.

133 (CONTTNUED)

As described in items I0JII-09. l0-lll-10, l0-lll-ll and l0-lll-12 in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. the Municipaliry- did not comply llith requirements regarding Allowable
Cost, Cash Management, Davis Bacon and Matching, Level of Effort and Earmarking that are applicable to
its Head Start Program Cluster. Compliance with such .equirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the
Municipality to comply with the requirements applicable 10 that program.

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in lhe preceding paragraphs, the Municipality
complied, in all malerial respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The
results of our auditing procedures also disclosed other instances of noncompliances with those
requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 10-lll-06, l0-lII-13,
l0-lll-14. l0-lll-15, l0lll-16. l0JIl-l 7 and l0lll-18.

Internal Control Over Comoliance

Management of Municipality is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws. regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs.
In planning and performing our audit. we considered Municipality's intemal control over compliance with
the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
intemal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-lll, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe Municipality's intemal control over compliance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identi& all deficiencies in intemal control over compliance
that might be significant deficiencies or material \veaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that
all deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as discussed

below, we identified certain deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we considered to be

material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficie (), in intefial control ovr conplidnce exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned

ftrnctions. to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timelt basis. A nuterial weukness in intemal control orer compliance ts 

^ 
deficiency.

or combination of deficiencies, in ;nternal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a mat€rial noncompliance with a type ofcompliance requirement ofa federal p.ogram will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in intemal
contrcl over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as

items I0-lll-07. l0-lll-08. l0-lll-09, l0-lll-10, l0-lll-11 and IoJII-12 to be material weaknesses.
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IN'DEPENDENT AUDITORS' Rf,PORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIRXMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AI{D MATERIAL EFFECT ON f,ACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-

133 (CONTINUf,D)

A sig ificdnt delciency in internal conlrol otet compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies. in intemal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal

progam that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important

enough lo merit attention by those charged with govemance. We considered the deficiencies in intemal

control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned costs as

items l0-lll-06, l0-lll-13, l0-lll-14, l0-lll-15, l0-lll-16, l0-lll-17 and l0-lll-18 to be siSnificant
deficiencies.

The Municipality's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the Municipality's responses and,

accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management, the Honomble Mayor and

Members of the Municipal Legislature, others within the entity, the Oflce of the Commissioner of
Municipal Affairs, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should

not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

License Number 5200

Cuayama, Puerto Rico
March 29, 201 I
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YIAR ENDED JUNE .30, 2OIO

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RISULTS

Financial Statements

Type ofauditor's report issued: Unqualified for fund lintncial
statemeot and adverse for
governmental-rvide Iinancial
statements

Intemal control over financial reponing:
Material weakness identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiencies identified? Yes None reported X

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes No X

Federal awards

lntemal Control over major progmms:
Material weakness identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiencies identified? Yes X None reported

Type ofauditor's report issued on compliance for Qualilied, except for Sectiol 8
major programsi Housidg Choice Voucher alld Child

Cere Food Program

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Circular A-IJJ, Section .510(a)? Yes X No

Identifi cstiol of maior oroqrams

CFDA N{mb€r Name ofFederal Program or Cluster

10.558 Child and Adu:t Care Food Program

14.218/ 14.253 Community Development Block Grants - Entitlement Crants
Chrsrer

14.871 Section 6 Housing Choice Voucher Progftm

93.6001 93.708 Head Slart Progam Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Tlpe B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$301,243

Yes No X

9l



COMMONWEALTH OF PUIRTO RJCO
MUNICTPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHfDULE OF FINDINCS AND QUtrSIIONED COSTS (CONTIT$Uf,D)

rOR THE FISCAL YEAR f,ND[D JUNf, 30, 20IO

SECTION II _ FINANCIAL STATf,MENTS FINDINGS

TINDING

REQUIREMENT

CONDITION

l0-II-01

ACCOUNTING Rf,CORDS AND R.EPORTING SYSTf,M

The Municipality did not maintain an accounting system that generates
accurate accounting information for the prepamtion of the financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(cAAP).

During our examination of the accounting cycle, we noted that ihe
Municipality has not established nor acquired an accounting system that
gene.ates accurate accounting information for the preparation of the
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The accounting records are
maintained in a cash and budgetary basis and at the end of year, personnel
of the finance department and extemal consultants summarized, in
electronic worksheets, the revenues, expenditures, encumbrances, capital
assets transactions, accounts receivables, accounts payable and long term-
debts. These worksheets are used for the preparation of the financial
stalements.

Also, we noted the following conditions during our evaluation of the
accounting cycle:

a. Accounting transactions are curently accounted simultaneously
through a manual and a computerized accounting system for which no
reconciliation procedures are made among them. These accounting
systems does not provide for a selfbalancing set of accounts for each
fund operated by the Municipality.

b. No adequate year-end closing entries procedures are made to account
for all transactions affecting all funds.

A(icle 8.010 (b) of State Act Number 8l- Zet, de Municipios Autononos
del Esteklo Libre Asociado de Puerto Rico ot Atgust 30, 1991, states that
the Municipality must maintain ils fund accounting in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America
(GAAP). In addition, Article 8.010 (c), states that unifonn accounting
system used by the Municipality must produce reliable refxrrts and
financial stalements, provide complete information about the results of
operations of the Municipality and include the necessary intemal controls
to account for all funds, capital assets and other assets-

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

92



COMMONWEALTH OF PUfRTO RICO
IIT \ICIPALITY OF JLANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FIN'DINGS AND QUf,STIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE ]0, 20TO

Sf,CTION II FINANCIAL SIATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDINC

REQUIRf,MENT

CAUSE

ETFECT

RECOMMENDATION

10-rI-0r (coNTINUED)

ACCOUNTING RECORDS AND REPORTING SYSTEM

The Municipality has not established effective intemal control procedures
ov€r the prepamtion of the financial statements and the transactions
recorded on its accounting records.

The Municipality is not in compliance with Article 8.010 (b) (c) of the
State Law Number 8l ofAugust 30, I99:.

We recommend management to establish the necessary intemal controls
and procedures in order to establish a complete accounting system that
provides for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with
GAAP.

As mentioned in prior year, the Municipality maintains two set of
accounting records; a manual system and a uniform computerized
accounting system provided in the past by the Office ofthe Commissioner
of Municipal Affairs (OCAM). Actually, all ol the transactions were
recorded in both systems, but the manual system is the primary financial
records for financial statements preparation purposes at the end of each
fiscal year, due to the fact that the computerized system real accounts

balances carried forward fiom prior years were aflected by accounting
enors in the first years of the system operation.

During lhe past year! our administration begins to implement new
accounting software in order to process the revenues transactions. This
system was used by oul extemal consultant to obtain the reveaues in the
cash basis form, for the financial statements preparation.

Implementation Date: June 30, 201 I

Responsible Person: Mr. Fmncisco Torres- Finance Depaftment Director

\l.\\1Gf,tIf,IT RESPO\SE

.l\D CORRECTIVE 1(]TIO]\ PL,\N
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIP{LITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINCS AND QUESTIONID COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE trISCAL YEAR f,NDf,D JUNf, 30, 2OIO

SECTION II _ FINANCIAL STATf,MINTS FINDINGS

FINDING NUMBf,R

REQUIREMENT

CONDITION

10-lt-02

ACCOUNTING Rf,CORDS- BAI\K RECONCILIATIONS

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

CAUSf,

The Municipality does not have effective intemal control procedures to
ensure that the bank reconciliations were prepared accurately, in a timely
manner and reconciled with the accounting records.

During our cash test, we noted that the Municipality docs not have

effective intemal control procedures to ensure the prompt preparation of
the bank reconciliations. During our audit procedures, we found that these

bank reconciliations were prepared several months after the end of the
fiscal year. ln addition, there was not a reconciliation process with the

accounting records, because the accounting personnel does not maintained
an updated Model 4a (the manual accounting system that summarized the
cash transactions ofthe Municipality), for the monthly cash tmnsactions of
the Ceneral Fund and the special revenue funds.

Chapter lV, Section 12 of th€ Municipal Administration Regulatory
Manual of the Puerto Rico Commissioner's Office for Municipal Aflair
(OCAM), establishes that the accounting system ofthe municipalities shall
provide for the timely and accurate preparation of bank reconciliations. In
addition. the Municipality shall prepare a monthly reporl of revenues and

disbursements, which has to be reconciled with the bank reconciliations.

The Municipality's intemal control procedures failed to assure that the
bank reconciliations were prepared in a complete manner and within the
time required by law and properly reconciled with the accounting records.

The Municipality is not in compliance with Chapter IV, Section l2 ofthe
Municipal Administration Regulatory Manual ofthe OCAM.

We recommend management to continue improving its inlemal control
procedures over the preparation ofthe bank reconciliations and assure that
accounling records are reconciled with these bank reconcilialions within a

reasonable amount ofiime, in order to maintain proper control over cash.

EFFECT

RECOMMf,NDATION
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNlCIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHfDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUSSTIONED COSTS (CONTIIruf,D)

FOR THE IISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2OIO

SICTION I! - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

TINDINC NUMBER TO-II-02 (CONTINUED)

Rf,QUIREMf,NT ACCOUNTINGRECORDS-BANKRECONCILIATIONS

I!AliACEt!E:TT RESBONSf,

_ .r\D (ioRRrcnvf, .\crro\ pLAN The fiscal staff in charge to prepare the bank reconciliations has been

properly advised of the need to reconcile these bank accounts with the
Municipality's, accounting records and in a reasonable lapse of time after
the end ofeach month, not to exceed thirty (30) days.

Implementation Date: June 10,201 I

Responsible Person: Mr. Francisco Torres- Finance Department Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
ML\ICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHIDULE OF FINDINGS AIID QUESTIONtrD COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDf,D JUNf, 30, 20IO

SECTION II _ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDING

REQUIRf,MENT

CONDITION

CONTf,XT

10-It-03

ACCOUNTING RXCORDS CAPITAL ASSETS

The Municipality does not have an effective system to account for capital
assets. including the infrastructure assets.

During our examination of the property records, we noted that the
Municipality does not have adequate intemal controls and procedures to
ensure that all capital expenditures and dispositions are recorded in the
capital assets subsidiary ledger. Also, the Municipality did not have
adequate supporting documentation of the cost of the capital assets

reported in the prop€rty records.

Article 8.010 (c) (3) of the Srate Law Number El- Ley de Municipios
Autonomos del Estado Libre Asociodos de Puerto Rico de l99l of August
10, 1991, stated that Municipality should maintain updated property
accounting records.

The Municipality did not maintain an adequate control of the
accountability of its capital assets.

The Municipality is not in compliaoce with Article 8.010 (c) (l) of the
State Law Number 8l of August 30, 1991.

We recommend management and the Property Division of the
Municipality to make an inventory of the capital assets, support it with
adequate documentation and reconcile it with the capital assets subsidiary
ledger.

As menlioned in prior year, the Municipality's Finance Depa.lment staffs
are still in the process of updating the cap;tal assets subsidiary ledger. in
orderto comply with the requirements €stablished in the GASB No. 3,1.

Implementation Date: December I I. 201 |
Responsible Person: Mr. Francisco Torres- Finance Department Director

CRITERIA

CAUSf,

EFFECT

RECOMMENDATION

lt,\\.\ct:\rt\'l Rr:sPo\sr:
\\D CORRI(n\'E 1( r rO\ Pr-.\\
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COMMONWEALTII OF PUIRTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUf,STIONf,D COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL Yf,AR f,NDfD JUNE JO, 20IO

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDINC NUMBER

Rf,QUIREMENT

r 0- -04

ACCOUNTING RIJCORDS-
LANDFILL CLOST,RE AND
MAINTENANCE COSTS

MI'NICIPAL SOLID WASTE
POSTCLOSI'RX CARX AND

The Municipality did not include in its govemment wide financial

statements the required liability for closure and post closure care costs'

based on an adequate study ofthe activities ofthe solid waste landfill-

At June 30, 2010, the Municipality did not realize the required study ofthe
available space and the estimated cost ofthe cloling and Post closing ofthe
Municipality's waste landfill, in order to include the req'rired liability in

the Statenent ofNet Assets.

Regulations set forth by the U.S. Environmental Proteclion Agency (EPA)

in its "solid waste Disposal Facility Criteria"; the Municipality is required

to place a final cover on the Municipality's solid waste landfill site when it
stops accepting waste, and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the site for 30 years after ctosure. GASB 18 requires the

Municipality to perform a study of the activities that need to be

implemented at the Municipality's solid waste landfill facilities to
guarante€ the maximum yield of available space and to comply with
applicable state and federal regulations. Based on this study, the

Municipality must recognize a liability in its statement of net assets at June

30- 2009.

The Municipality has not established controls lo account for the closure

and post closure care costs of Municipal solid Traste landfill. In addition,
the Municipalit"v did not perform the study required by EPA and CASB l8

The Municipality is not in compliance trith CASB I8 and the "Solid Waste

Disposal Facility Criteria" issued by the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency.

We recommend management to perform the study of the activities that
need to b€ implemented at the Municipality's solid waste landfill facilities
and determine the amount of the liability that should be reported in the
govemmental activities.

CONDITION

CONTEXT

CRITf,RIA

CAUSE

f,FFECT

RECOMMf,NDATION
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JU {NA DiAZ

SCHEDULf, OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONf,D COSTS (CONTII\ruED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNf, 30' 20IO

SECTION II _ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDINC NUMBf,R

REQUIREMENT

r0-II-04 (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTING RECORDS
LAIIDFILL CLOSURE AND
MAINTENANCE COSTS

MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE
POSTCLOST'RE CARJ AND

IIANTGEiIIE:{T Rf, SPONSE

aro ao**aat,nu 
^-roN 

Pl.rr As mentioned in prior year, the Municipality owns a solid waste landfill
("MSWLF) and has a contract with a private company to opemte its

MSWLF for a period of twenty (20) year staned on June l, 2004 As part

of its contract to operate the MSWLF, the private company agrees to

provide closure and postclosure care subject to the following conditions: a)

ihe private company will be operating the MSWLF up to the termination of
the air space of the MSWLF; b) the MSWLF will not be ordered to stop

accepting waste in the first ten (10) years ofcontract term; c) ifduring the

contract period is ordered to close the MSWLF and to development any

other altemate facility for waste disposition, the private contractor will
have preference status to operale it. However, because the Municipality

may be contingently liable under applicable federal, state' or local law and

regulations, as part ofthe evaluation ofthe proposals submitted by private

companies interested to oPerate the MSWLF, we will consider the

financial capability and stability ofall of these companies to meet closure

and postclosure care obligations when they are due. It's the Municipality's
conclusion that the Private company selected and actually operating the

MSWLF will be able to meet its contractual obligations about the closure

and postclosure care costs, subject to the conditions listed abov€'

Implementation Date: June 10, 201 I

Responsible Person: Mr. FranciscoTores-Finance Departmeni Director
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COMMONWEALTII OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUA\A DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUfSTIONED COSTS (CONTII\ruED)

FOR THf, FISCAL YEAR f,NDED JUNf, 30' 20IO

Sf,CTION II _ IINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDINC NUMBf,R

REQUIREMINT

CONDITION

CONTEXT

l0-II-05

ACCOI,INTINC RECORDS COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Municipality does not maintain accurate cumulative records of the

comp€nsated balances of the employees.

During our examination ofthe payroll process, we noted that the amounts

reported in the cumulative records of comp€nsated balances of the

Municipality's employees were incomplete and were not updated to reflect

the real balance ofthe accumulated vacations and sick leaves at June 30,

20 r0.

GASB 16, Accounting for Compensate Absences, issued by the

Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, establishes the standards for
accounting and reporting for compensated absences for state and local
govemments.

The Municipality did not maintain adequate internal control procedurcs to
assure that the time and attendance recotds are reconcile and updated on a

monthly basis.

Tle lr4unicipality is not in compliance with GASB 16, Accounting for
Compensate Absences, issued by the Covernmental Accounting Standards

Board.

We recommend management to update and reconcile, on a monthly basis,

the cumulative records of the employees' compensated balances, with the
time and attendance records.

During the past year, the Human Resources Department begin to update,

on a monthly basis, the cumulative records of compensated absences of
each Municipality's employees. we hope complete this process during the

culTent year.

Implementation Date: June 30,201l
Responsible Person: Mr. Fmncisco Torres' Finance Department Director

CRITERIA

CAUSE

EFFECT

RECOMMENDATION

\IANACEttEIi'T RESPOIS[

,\\D CORNE(TIVE.rCIIOI PL,\I
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MIJNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULf, OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONf,D COSTS (CONTDruED)

FOR THE FISCAL Yf,AR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OIO

SECTION III _ Tf,DERAL AWARD FI]\'DINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING

FEDERAL PROCRAM

IGIII-06

C0MIvIIINITY Df,VELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTS / STATE'S
PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 14.228) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF IIOUSING
AND UR3AN DEVELOPMENT PASS TTIROUGH STATE _
OFFICE OF COMMISSIONf,R OF MIINICIPAL AITAIRS - OCAM

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

ALLOWABLE ACTI!'ITIES
HOUSEKEf,PING SIRVICf,S

The Program failed to maintained appropriate supporting documentation
regarding the Housekeeping Services participant's files.

As part of our grant disbursement test, we examined ten (10)
Housekeeping Services participant's files and noted that the Program was

not revising and updatin& every six (6) month the information related to
the participants. In addition, there was no evidence that demonstrated that
the Program coordinator visited the participants' houses, during the months

of February 2010 through April 2010.

Code of Federal Regulations 24, 85.20 (a) ( I ) states that fiscal control and
accounting procedures of subgrantees, must be sufficient to permit the
tracing of funds to a level of expendituresadequate to establish that fu.ds
have not been used in violation of the restrictions and prohibitions of
applicable statutes. Also, the Municipality has an operational guide
"Manual Opemcional Programa Auxiliares del Hogar" that includes all
procedures and program's aequirements for housekeeping services.

The Program's intemal controls procedures lailed to assure that all
required information regarding participanls were obtained and that the
required interviews, visits and inspections to monitor the services were
realized in accordance with the operational guide.

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulation 24,
E5.20 (a, (l) and $ith rhe opemtional guide.

REQUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

CONTEXT

CRITfRIA

CAUSE

IFFf,CT
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUf,RTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHf,DULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONf,D COSTS (CONTINUf,D)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR f,NDED JUNf, 30, 20IO

Sf,CTION III_ Ff,DERAL AWARD FINDINGS AI{D QUf,STIONED COSTS

FTNDTNC 10-I[-06 (coNTII\ruf,D)

FEDERAL PROCRAM COMMUNITY DOVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTS / STATf,'S
PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 14.228) U.S. DEPARTMENT O[ HOUSING
AND URBAI\ DEWLOPMENT PASS THROUCH STATE _
OI'FICf, OF COMMISSIONER OF MUNICtrAL AFFAIRS - OCAIVI

REQUIREMENT COMPLIANCE AI\D INTERNAL CONTROL

NONCOMPLIANCE ALLOWABLf, ACTIVITIES
HOUSf, KEEPING Sf, R\'ICES

Rf,COMMENDATION We recommend management to implement adequate intemal controls and
procedures in order to assure that the progam staff completes all the

required forms and to inspect and monitor the services in accordance with
the regulations and the operational guide.

QUESTIONEDCOSTS None

TIAI\.'AC f,\I Ei\T Rf,SPONSf,
A\D CORREC-TIVE CIIOIi PLT|I

Immediately, we will give instructions to the Program's Director, in order
to revise all the participant's files, to update any information and should

continue monitoring the housekeeper activities through onsite lisits.

Implemenlation Date: Immediately
Responsible Person: Mrs. Ramonita Rentas- Program Director

t0t



COMMONWEALTH OF PUf,RTO RICO
MUNIClPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHIDULE OF FINDINGS AI\D QUf,STIONED COSTS (CONTINUf,D)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR INDf,D JUNE 30. 2OTO

SECTTON III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESIIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER IO-III.O7

FEDERAL PROCRAM COMMUNITY DEVf,LOPMINT BLOCK GRANT ARRA
ENTITLEMENT GRANTS (CDBG.R) (RECOVERY ACT FUNDf,D)
(CFDA NO. 14.253) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
UR}AN DEVELOPMtrNT

REQUIREMENT COMPLIANCE AND INTIRNAL CONTROL

NONCOMPLIANCf, REPORTING

CONDITION The Municipality did not maintain evidence ofthe submission to HUD, of
allthe quarterly repo(s applicable to ARRA CDBG.

CONTEXT During our Reporting test, we did not found evidence ofthe submission to
HUD of the Cash Transaction Report (SF-272) for the quarter ended
December 31. 2009-

CRITERIA Code of Federal Regulations 24,85.41 (a) (l) states that grantees will use
only the forms specified in paragraphs (a) through (e) of this section and
such supplementary or other forms as may from time to time be authorized
by OMB, for submitting financial repo(s to Federal agencies.

CAUSE The Program did not submit accurate quarterly reports in order to comply
with the Federal regulation

EFFECT The Municipality is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations
24, 85.41 (a) (l).

RECOMMENDATION We recommend management to submit the missing reports to HUD, in
order lo comply with the reporting requirement.

QUESTIONEDCOSTS None

tla\.\cLvL\t (LsPo\sL
.{ND coRRfcTlvf, rcrtoN phN As part of our correct ion action plan, we gave spec ific instructions to the

Program's accountant to assure that all the required reports are submitted
to the Federal agencies in the established dates and to maintain evidence of
lhis submissions.

lmplementation Date: April30, 201 I

Responsible Person: Mrs. Ramonita Rentas- Program Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUf,D)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OIO

SECTION III _ FfDf,RAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDINC NUMBER

FEDERAL PROGRAM

REQUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

r0-I[-08

COMMUNITY DE\'ELOPMf,NT BLOCK GRANT.
INTIILf,MENT GRANT (CFDA NO. I1.2I8) U.S. DEPARTMf,NT
OF IIOI]SING AND URBAN DIVELOPMENT

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

SPECIAL TEST- RXHABILITATION

The Program failed to maintain appropriate supporting documentation
regarding the inspections ofthe rehabilitation work upon its completion, in
accordance uilh the conkacls specifications.

During our Special Test- Rehabilitation, we examined eight (8)
participant's files and noted that there was no sumcient evidence of the
Prognm's inspector visits, to follow up the usage ofthe material given to
the participants. In addition, in seven (7) participant's files, the deficiencies
were nol incorporated in the contracts,

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Section 570.506 (b) state that at a

minimum, the gmntee should maintain records demonstrating that each

activity undertaken meets one ofthe three national objectives ofthe CDBG
Program. AIso, Code of Federal Regulations 24, Section 570.506 (b) (9)
states that when CDBG Entitlement Crant funds are used for residential
.ehabilitation activity to aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or
blight in a slum or blighted are4 the grantee must maintain records to
support the local definition of "substandard", must document a pre-

rehabilitation inspection report describing the deficiencies in each structure
to be rehabilitated, and must document the details in each structure to be

rehabilitated. and must document the details and scope of CDBC assisted

rehabilitation, by structure.

The Municipality's intemal controls and procedures failed to assure that
the required unit's inspections were performed in accordance with the
Fede.al regulation.

The Municipality is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations
24, Section 570.506 (b) and (b) (9).

We recommend management to follow its procedures in order that the
Program's personnel insp€cts the rehabilitation units to assure that is

canied out in accordance with the Federal regulation.

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

CAUSE

EFFECT

RECOMMENDATION

r0l



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULf, OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONID COSTS (CONTNruED)

FOR THE FTSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OIO

SECTION III _ T[Df,RAL AWARD FINDINGS ATID QUf,STIONED COSTS

FINDINC NUMBER

FEDf,RAL PROGRAM

l0-rrr-08 (coNTTNUED)

COMMUNITY DEI'ELOPMf, NT BLOCK GRANT-
ENTITLf,MENT CRANT (CFDA NO. 14.2IE) U.S. DEPARTMENT
OF HOUSING AI\D URBAI\ DEVELOPMENT

COMPLIANCf, AIID INTERNAL CONTROL

SPECIAL TEST- RXHABILITATION

None

As part of our corrective action plan, we gave specific instructions to the
program staff to assure that the procedures established in the operational
guide are followed. Thes€ instructions include advice the need to follow up
the usage ofthe material given to the participants through on-site visits and
to incorpomte in the contracts the deficiencies that are going to be
rehabilitated.

Implementation Date: April 30,201 I
Responsible Person: Mrs. Ramonita Rentas- Program Director

REQUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

QUESTIONED COSTS

IIANACETIEi{T Rf SPOXSf,

,\ND CORRECTIVf, .{C-IION PLAN
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUf,RTO RICO
MUNTClPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL Yf,AR ENDED JUNE 30,201O

SECTION III - FEDf,RAL AWARD IINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDINC NUMBER

FEDERAL PROCRAM

10-III-09

Hf,AD START (CFDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
Hf,ALTH AND HUMAN SIRVICES; PASS THROUGH
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICG ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL Df,Vf,LOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD
(ACUDEN)

COMPLIANCE AI\D INTERNAL CONTROL

ALLOWABLE COST/ COST PRINCIPLES

The Program does not maintain accurate cumulative records of the
accumulated vacations and sick leaves ofits employees.

During our payroll test, we examined twenty five (25) employees' files and
noted that the amounts recorded monthly in the cumulative records ofthese
employees were not updated to reflect the real balance ofthe accumulated
vacations and sick leaves at June 30,2010.

Code ofFederal ReSulation 45, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (6) states that
accounting records must be supported by such source documentation as
cancelled checks, paid bills, payrolls, time and attendance records, contract
and subgrant award documents, etc. ln addition. GASB 16, Accounting for
Compensate Absences, issued by the Covemmental Accounting Standards
Board, establishes the standards for accounting and reporting for
compensated absences for State and Local govemments.

The Program did not maintain adequate intemal control procedures to
assure that the time and attendance records are reconcile and updated on a
monthly basis.

The Progam is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulation 45,
Subpa( C, Section 92.20 (b) (6) and with CASB 16, Accounring for
Compensate Absences. issued by lhe Govemmental Accounting Standards
Board.

We recommend management to update and reconcile, on a monthly basis,
the cumulative records with the time and attendance records.

Rf,QUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

CAUSE

EFFECT

ROCOMMENDATION
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COMMONWEALTH Of PUf,RTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULf, OF FINDINCS AND QUf,STIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDf,D JUNf, 30. 2OIO

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AI\D QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER IO.III-09 (CONTIMIED)

FEDERAL PROGRAM HEAD START (CTDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTMENI OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVtCfSi PASS THROUGH
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO R]CG ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL DEVELOPMf,NT OF CIIILDHOOD
(ACUDE19

REQUIRf,Mf,NT COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

NONCOMPLIANCE ALLOWABLECOST/COSTPRINCIPLES

QUESTIONED COSTS None

TIANACf, \IENT RESP'ONSE

aNo coRRf,c-Trvr AcrtoN pLAx As part ofthe conective action plan, the Human Resources Department of
the ProgBm were instructed to update, on a monthly basis, the cumulative
records of compensated absences of each Municipality's employees.

Implem€ntation Date: April l, 201 I

Responsible Person: Mr. Gera.do Carrasquillo- Program Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MLNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINCS AND QUISTIONf,D COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDf,D JUNf, JO,2OIO

SECTION III _ Ff,DERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER

FEDERAL PROCR{M

REQUIREMINT

NONCOMPLIANCO

CONDITION

10-IrI-10

Hf,AD START (CFDA NO. 93.600) U.S. Df,PARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICESI PASS THROUCH
COMMONWEALTH OF PUf,RTO RICO- ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARX AND INTEGRAL DEVELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD
(ACUDEN)

COMPLIANCf, AND INTERNAL CONTROL

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Program did not minimize the time betueen the receiving of the
r€quest of funds from the pass{hrough entity and the disbursement of
funds.

During our Cash Management test, we noted that the Progmm maintained
an avemge cash balance of approximately $220,875 in book. ln addition,
the Program did not disbursed in a timely manner the request of funds
advanced by the pass-through entity.

Code of Federal Regulation 45, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) ( /) states that
the Program must maintain procedures for minimizing the time elapsing
between the transfer of funds from the U.S. Treasury and disbursement
made by grantees and sub gEntees when advance payment procedures are

used.

The Program did not maintain appropriate cash management procedures in
order to disburse the funds requested to the pass-through entity in a timely

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulation 45,
Subpart C. Section 92.20 (b) (7).

We recommended management to strengthen its disbursement procedures

to minimize the time between the transfer of funds by the pass through and

disbursement made by the Program.

None

C(}NTEXT

CRITERIA

CAUSE

EfFECT

RECOMMf,NDATION

QUESTIONf,D COSTS
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COMMONWf,AI,TH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHODULE OF T]NDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20IO

SECTION III _ FEDf,RAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDINC NUMBER

NEDERAL PROGRAM

REQUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

}I,TT.,AGf YENT Rf SPoNSE

,\ND CORRf,CTIVf, ACTION PLAN

l0-rrr-10 (coNTTNUED)

HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTMf,NT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES; PAss THROUGH
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO. ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARf, AIID INTEGRAL DEVELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD
(ACTTDEN)

COMPLIANCE AI\D INTERNAL CONTROL

CASH MANAGEMf,NT

As mentioned in prior years, the requisition of funds system established by
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Child Care and Developmeni
Administration (ACUDEN) has been designed to request funds on a
monthly basis. Therefore, each month, we complete and submil the request
of funds form provided by ACUDEN, requesting funds based on cash
received to date. cash outlay obligations and a forecast ofe\penditures for
the next month (payroll, fringe benefits, contmctual servicis, etc.). The
funds requested and received from ACUDEN each month are disbUrsed
during each month period principally to pay the payroll and fringe benefits
or to reimburse it to the Ceneral Fund, to pay the monthly portion of
contractual seIvices, and to pay for other expenditures related to the
Program administrative and programmatic activities. Therefore, is our
opinion that the requisition of funds system established by the pass-
through Grantor, that is the non-federal entity that should ex;rcise sound
cash management in firnds transfers to subgrantees, has been followed by
us in compliance with the grant agreement clauses.

Implementation Date: Nor Applicable
Responsible Person: Mr. Gerardo Carrasquillo- proglam Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL Yf,AR f,NDf,D JUNf, 30, 2OIO

SECTION III FtrDfRAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUISTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMEER

FEDERAL PROCRAM

t0-Ill-ll

ARRA. HEAD START (CMA NO. 93.708) U.S. DEPARTMENT OFHf,ALTH AND HUMAN Sf,RVICf,S; PASS THROUGH
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RIC(}, ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARf, AND INTEGRAL DEVf,LOPMENT OF CHILDIIOOD
(ACTTDEN)

INTERNAL CONTROL

DAVIS.BACON ACT

The Program disbursed funds without the payroll monitoring procedures
required by the Davis-Bacon Act.

During our gmnt disbursement test, we noted that the program incurred in
expenditures during fiscal yeat 2009-2010 amounting to $19.035 for
construction improvements in various Head Start centers and found that the
Program did not obtain and monitored the weekly certified payrolls from
the contractor.

Davis- Bacon Act. 42 USC 5l l0

The Municipality failed to apply all the moniroring procedures developed
to test applicable contractors with respect to the payment of prevaiiing
wages.

The Municipality is not in compliance with Davis- Bacon Act, 42 USC
5310.

Rf,QUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

CAUSE

f,FFECT

RECOMMENDATION

QUESTIONED COSTS

We recommended management to revise the contractorls payrolls to
document. adequately, that the wages paid by the contractors are in
accordance with $e wages established by the Department of Labor and to
realize the require interviews to the contractoB' employees.

None
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COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULf, OF FII\DINGS AND QUISTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNf, 30, 20IO

SECTION III _ Ff,DER{L AWARD FINDINGS AND QUISTIONTD COSTS

FINDING NUMBER

FEDERAL PROGRAM

REQUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

NIANAG E}' ENT RESPONSE
,rl\D coRRf, c vE.rcTto:! PL,{N

l0-nl-ll (coNTTNUED)

ARRA- HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.703) U.S. Df,PARTMENT OFHEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES; PASS THRoUGH
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCG, ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL DEVELOPMENT OF CHILDIIOOD
(AC[IDEN)

INTERNAL CONTROL

DA}'IS-BACON ACT

The responsible employee has been properly advised ofthe need to monitor
the contractor 

,certificated payrolls related to all construction projects
disbursed with Program's funds.

Implementation Date: June 30. 201 I
Responsible Person: Mr. Gerardo Carrasquillo- program Director
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COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUERTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINCS AND QUESTIONtrD COSTS (CONTINUf,D)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR f,NDf,D JUNf, 30,2OTO

SECTION III- TEDIRAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUtrSTIONED COSTS

FINDINC NUMBF,R

TEDERAL PROGRAM

REQUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCf,

CONDITION

l0-I[-12

HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTMf,NT OFHf,ALTH AND HUMAN SERVICESi PASS THROUGH
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO. ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARE AND INTf,GRAL DEVf,LOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD
(ACUDEN)

ARRA- HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.703) U.S. DEPARTMENT OFHIALTH AND HLIMAN SER!,ICES; PASS TIIROUGH
COMMONWEALTII OF PUf,RTO RICG ADMINTSTRATION
FOR CARf, AIID INTEGRAL DE!'ELOPMf,NT OF CHILDHOOD
(ACIDEN)

COMPLIANCE AND INTf,RNAL CONTROL

MATCHING, Lf,VEL OF EFFORT, EARMARXING

The Municipality did nor compl) $irh the requiremenls o[ malchins
established in the conracl with lhe pas)-through intity and in rhe Federa'i
regulation.

During our Matching tesl. \.re e\amined nro (2) monlhs (september 200s
and June 2010) ofthe in-kind contributions and noted rhat th; Munic;pality
did not match the funds in these months, in accordance with the contract
established 

-with 
the pass-rhrough entity. The Municipality matched in

September 2009 and in June 2010, 160/o and 12% respecrively, of the
Federal funds. In addition, we noted that for these months, the Municipality
does not provide adequate supporting documentation for $44.g02 of in'_
kind contributions. These conlributions were lor professional services, rent
and other miscellaneous expendilur€s.

In addition, the Municipality did not match the ARRA_ Head Stan funds
disbursed during the fiscal year 2009,2010.

Clause Ten ofthe contract between the Municipality and the pass_through
entity established that, quarte.ly the Municipatity strall suUmit ttre lrolit
Erpendilures Repon and should speciD lhe amount of matching in cash.
in-lind or a combination. in accordance \rirh the approved bud[et an the
certificarion provided by the Municipality. The locai matching ihould be
not less than the 20olo ofthe combined cosrs. In addition, CodJ of Federal
Regulation 45, Sections 1301.20 (b) stares that the non Federal share uill
not be required to e\ceed 20 percent ofthe totalcosts ofthe program.

CONTf,XT

CRITERIA

III



COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA D1AZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTION[D COSTS (CONTIIruED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR f,NDfD JUNE 30,20IO

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDINC NUMBER

FEDERAL PROCRAM

REQUIRf,MENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CRITERIA

CAUSE

ETFECT

09-III-12 (CONTINUED)

HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTMENT OFHEALTH AND HUMAII SERVICES; PAss THRoUGH
COMMONWEALTII OF PUf,RTO RICO. ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARf, ATID INTEGRAL Df,ITLOPMENT OF CHILDIIOOD
(ACUDEN)

ARRA- HIAD START (CFDA NO. 93.70E) U.S. Df,PARTMENT OFHEALTH AND HIIMAN Sf,RVICES; PASS THROUGH
COMMOI\WEALTH OF PUERTO RICO. ADMTNISTRATION
FOR CARX AIID INTEGRAL DEVf,LOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD
(ACrrDf N)

COMPLIANCE AND INTf,RNAL CONTROL

MATCHING, Lf,Vf,L OF EFFORT, EARMARI(NG

In addition, Code of Fedeml Regulation 45 Subpart C. Section 92.24 (b)
(6).states that costs and third party in kind contributions counting towards
saris[ ing a corl sharing or malching requiremenl must be rerifiible from
the recordl orgranlees and subgranlee or co.t- rlpe conlraclors.

The Municipality did not maintain an adequate control over the
maintenance ofthe documentsthatjustifies the in-kind contributions.

The Municipality is not in compliance with Clause Ten of the contaact
between the Municipality and the pass-through entity, Code of Federal
Regulation 45, Sections l30l.20 (b) and Code of Federal Regulation 45
Subpart C, Section 92.24 (b) (6).

We recommend management to strengthen the intemal controls and
procedures to ensure that the in-kind is processed and recorded in a timely
manner. In addition. we recommen.l man,gement to assure that adequai
documentation of the in-kind contributions made to the Head Start
Program is obtained.

RECOMMENDATION

QUESTIONf,D COSTS
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RTCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHIDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONf,D COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20TO

SICTION III _ F'EDf,RAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUf,STIONED COSTS

FINDINC NUMBER

FEDERAL PROGRAM

REQUIREMfNT

NONCOMPLIANCE

IIAIiAGETIEITI RTSPONSE

AND CORRECIIVE,\CTIO\ PL.Il!

l0-III-t2 (CONTINUID)

HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTMtrNT OFHEALTH AND HUMAN SfRVICf,S; PASS THROUGH
COMMONWEALTH OF PUIRTO RJCG, ADMINISTRATION
FOR CAR-O AND INTEGRAL DE!'ELOPMf,NT OF CHILDHOOD
(ACUDEN)

ARRA- HEd) START (CFDA NO. 93.708) U.S. Df,PARTMENT OrHEALTH AND IIUMAN SERVICES; PAss THRoUGII
COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUERTO RICO- ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARf, AND INTtrGRAL DEVELOPMf,NT OF CIIILDHOOD
(ACUDf,N)

COMPLIANCE AND TNTERNAL CONTROL

MATCIIING, LEVf,L OF EEFORT, EARMARKING

As part.ofthe corrective action plan, the Municipality,s management gave
insructions to the responsible employees, to verifi,'monthlylthe amiunt
of in kind collected and assure rhat it is compiying with the amount
required by the pass-through entity.

Implementation Dare: April 10, 201I
Responsible Person: Mr. Gerardo Carrasquillo- program Director
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COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHfDULf, OF FINDINGS AN'D QUfSTIONf,D COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THI FISCAL YEAR ENDf,D JUNf, 30,2O1O

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND OUf,STIONED COSTS

FINDINC

FEDERAL PROCRAMS

REQUIRf,MENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

l0-ltI-13

HEAD START (CmA NO. 9f,.600) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
Hf,ALTH AllD IIUMAN SERVICf,S; PASS THROUGH
COMMONWEALIU OF PUERTO RICO- ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL DEVELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD
(ACUDET0

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

PROCURXMf,NT AND SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT

The Program disbursed funds during fiscal year 2009-2010 not in
accordance with the adequate procurement process established by the
Federal and State regulations.

During our gmnt disbursements test, we examined forty seven (47) non
payroll voucher payments and noted the following conditions:

a. During the fiscal year 2009-20t0, the program maintained
contracts with two (2) dentists specialized in children, without
requesting proposals from an adequate number of qualified
professionals.

b. In si\ (6) non payroll voucher payments, we did not found
evidence oflhe quotations requested from an adequate number of
qualified supplieN or the acquisition process was not well
documented for the purchases ofgoods.

Code of Federal Regulations 45, 92.36 (c) (l), states that all procurcment
tmnsactions will be conducted in a manner providing firll and open
competition consistent with the standards of92.l6.

The Program does not performed an appropriate procurement process
because failed to request quotations from an adequate number ofqualified

Tle Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulalions 45,
92.16 (c)(l).

We recommend management to implement procedures in order to obtain
and maintain all the required documentation regards the procurement
process to comply with this requirement. AIso, the Municipality should be
aware lhat all the bidders are professionall) qualified and are bidding for
the services that are being requested.

CONDITION

CRITERIA

CAUSE

EFFECT

Rf,COMMENDATION

ll4



COMMONWf,ALTII OF PUf,RTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF IINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20IO

SECTION III - I]f,DERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONID COSTS

FINDINC

FIDf,RAL PROCRAMS

l0-rII-13 (coNTrNUf,D)

HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN Sf,RvIcEs; PAss THRoUGH
COMMONWEALTH OF PUIRTO RICO- ADMINTSTRATION
FOR CAR.E ATTID INTEGRAL DEVf,LOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD
(ACUDEN)

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

PROCUREMENT AND SUSPENSION AI'D Df,BARMENT

None

'Io correct this situation, we are going to request proposals from an
adequate numbers of professional and we are goi;g to eval;ale our metho;
of conducting this process.

Implementation Dater April 31,201 I
Responsible Person: Mr. Cerardo Canasquillo. program Director

REQUIRIMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

QUESTIONED COSTS

I'AliAC E}' ENT Rf,SPONSE

A:\ID CORRECTIVE A(]IIO]\ Pt,.tN

I l5



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OP JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULf, OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONf,D COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YfAR ENDf,D JUNE 30.201O

SfCTION III. FEDER-{L AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONfD COSTS

FINDINC NUMBER

FEDf,R-4.L PROGR-{M

l0-IIt-l,l

Sf,CTION 8 HOUSING CHOICI VOUCHERS PROGRAM (CFDA
I.I.E7I) U.S. DEPARTMf,NT OF HOUSING ATID URBAN
DEl'ELOPMENT

REQUIRf,MENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

CONTEXT

COMPLIANCf, AND INTERNAL CONTROL

REPORTING

The Pro$am did not maintain accurate records over its accounting
transaclions.

During our examination of the accounting records, we noted that the
Program inslalled new accounting software to account its financial
transactions. However, during our Repofing test, we noted that the
administrative expenditures transmitted to the Voucher. Management
System (VMS) during the fiscal year 2009-20t0 did not agree with the
amounts reported in the Program's trial balance. Also, we noted that one of
the bank reconciliations ofthe program did not agree with the accounting
records. ln addition, the Program did not maintain adequate procedurei
over the accounting tmnsactions that support the rolling-forward of the
equity accounts.

Code of Federal Regulations 24, 982.15E (a) states that pHA must
maintain complete and accurate accounts and other records for the program
in acco-rdance with HUD requirements, in a manner that permits a spiedy
and effective audit. The records must be in the form required by i{Uti,
including .equirements goveming computerized or electronics iorms of
record-keeping.

The Program failed to establish adequate intemal controls over the
transactions recorded on its accounting records,

The Program did not submit accurate quanerly reporrs in order to comply
with the Federal regulatjon.

We recommend management to continue improving the accounting records
cr€ated in the accounting software, peachtree and assure th-al those
accounting records are presented in accordance with program
requirements.

CRITERJA

CAUSE

EFFECT

RECOMMENDATION

QUESTIONED COSTS
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUIRTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ

SCIIEDULE OF FINDINCS AND QUISTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE I]SCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2OIO

SICTION III _ FEDfRAL AWARD FINDINCS AI{D QUESTIONED COSTS

FIIIDINGtruMBER I0_III_14(CONTINUED)

FEDERAL PROGRAM SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS PROGRAM (CFDA
I4.87I) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND U'RBAN
Df,Vf,LOPMENT

RXQUIRIMf,NT COMPLIANCE AND INTIRNAL CONTROL

NONCOMPLIANCE Rf,PORTING

ilANAGtllEr_TRf SPONSf,
nND coRR[cTrvf, AcTror PLAN During fiscal yea. 2009_2010, we implemented new accounting software

(peachtree), exclusively for the program transactions. Also, rela-ted to the
VMS condilion. the progmm.s accountant has been prope.ly advised ofthe
need lo identiry those differences and correct them

Implementation Date: June 30. 201I
Responsible person: Mrs. Magda Boglio_ program Coordinator
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA D1AZ

SCHEDULE OF FII{DINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

EOR THf FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2OIO

SICTION III _ FEDIRAL AWARD FTNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER

ff,DERAL PROCRAM

I O-III.I5

SICTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS PROGRAM (CFDA
I,I.87I) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND U'RBAN
DEVtrLOPMENT

COMPLIANCE AI\D INTERNAL CONTROL

SPECIAL Tf, ST- DEPOSITORY AGREf, MENTS

The Municipality failed ro enter in a deposirory agreement wirh irs
financialinstitution.

During our evaluation, wc did not identii, evidence of a depositary
agreemenr in the form required by HUD with the depository institution of
the Municipality.

Code of Federal Regulation 24, Subpart D, Sectioo 982.156 (a) states that
unleqs olherwise requirEd or permified b) HUD. all program receipls must
be promplly deposited $ilh a financial institulion selecled as depositor) by
the PHA in accordance with HUD requirements. tn adairion, Coae of
Federal Regulations 24. 982.156 (c) slares lhat the pHA murt enier inro an
agreement with depositary in the form required by HUD.

The Municipality's management failed to enter into agreements in the form
required by HUD with its financial iostitution.

Ihe Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulation 24,
Subpart D, Section 982.156 (a) and (c).

We recommend management to contact its financial institution and
formalize, as soon as possible, the depository agreement in the form
established by HUD.

None

REQUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

CAUSE

EFFECT

RECOMMENDATION

QUESTIONED COSTS

lar.rGE!tf\r REsPo\sf,
,\\D CORRf,CI'IVf ACTIO\ PL{r We gave instructions the management

financial institution and formalize the
require by HUD.

lmplementarion Dare: April l. 201I

of the Municipality to contact our
depository agrcement in the lorm

Responsible Person: Mrs. Magda Boglio- program Coordinator
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONf,D COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR f,NDf,D JUNE 30, 20IO

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDINC NUMBTR 10.I[-16

FEDERAL PROCRAM CHILD AND ADULT CARX FOOD PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 10.558)
U.S. DEPARTMf,NT OF ACRTCULTURE; PASS THROUGi
COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUERTO RICO- DEPARTMENT OF
f,DUCATION

Rf,QUIREMENT COMPLIAI'CEANDINTf,RNALCONTROL

NONCOMPLIANCE ALLOWABLf,COST/COSTPRJNCIPLES

CONDITION During the fiscal year 2009_2010, the program disbursed funds without the
appropriate supporting documentation.

CONTEXT During our grant disbursement test, we examined forty nine (49) non
payroll voucher payments and noled that in hlenty one (r1) paymen;s, the
purchases orders were issued after the goods were received.

CRITERIA Code of Federal Regulation 7, Subpart C, Section 3016.20 (b) (6) slates
that accounting records must be supported by such source documentation
as cancelled checks, paid bills, payrolls, time and attendance records,
contract and subgrant award documents. etc.

CAUSE The program failed to appropriately review the paymenl vouchers and all
the supporling documentation priorto the issuan"i ofth. p"y."nts.

EFFECT lhe program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulation 7,
Subpart C, Section j0t6.20 (b) (6).

RECOMMENDATION We recommend management to continue strengthening the intemal
controls and procedures designed to appropriately revieri the payment
voucher and all the supporting documenration prior to the issuance ofa
payment.

QUESTIONEDCOSTS None

!IAITAGE}IENI Rf SPONSE

r\DcoRRfcTrvE AcTto\ pL\\ To correct this condition, at the beginning ofthe current year we realized a
purchase order to obligate all the necessary food for the fiscal vear.

Implementation Date: Imnediately
Responsible person: Mr. Gerardo Carrasquillo_ prograrn Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUAI\A DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FIIIDTNGS AND QUISTIONED COSTS (CONTI}IUED)

FOR THf, FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE ]0, 2OIO

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDINC NUMBER

FEDERAL PROCRAM

REQUIRf,Mf,NT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

l0l-Ill-17

CHILD AN'D ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 10.558)
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURXi PASS THROUGi
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO- DIPARTMENT OF
f,DUCATION

COMPLIANCE AT{D INTERNAL CONTROL

CASH MANAGEMf,NT

The ProgEm did not minimize the time between the receiving of the
reque.t of funds frofi the pass-lhrough enrity and rhe disl,urs;enl of
firnds.

During our Cash Management test, we noted that during the fiscal year
2009-2010, the Program maintained an average monthly cash balance of
approximarely $187,226 in books. In addition, we noled that program
requested funds to the pass-through entity that were not disbursed 

-on 
a

reasonable lapse of time.

Code of Federal Regularions 7, Subpan C, Section 3016.20 (b) (7) states,
procedures for minimizing the time elapsing betr,reen the lranqfer of funds
lromrhe U S. TreasuD and disbur5emenl b) gl"antees and subgranrees must
be followed.

The Program and Finance Department ofthe Municipality did not maintain
appropriate cash management procedures in order to request funds to the
pass-through only for immediate needs_

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 7,
Subpart C. Section 3016.20 (b) (7).

W€ recommend management to strengthen its disblrrsements procedures to
minimize the time berw_een the transfer of funds bv the state and
disbursement made b) rhe Municipaliry.

None

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

CAUSf,

EFFECT

RECOMMINDATION

QUESTIONED COSTS
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COMMONWf,ALTH Otr PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUf,STIONf,D COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THf, FISCAL Yf,AR f,NDf,D JUNE 30,20IO

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER IGIII-I7 (CONTINUf,D)

FEDERAL PROCRAM CHILD AND ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM (CFDA NO. IO.55t)
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURf,; PASS THROUCIi
COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUERTO RICO- DEPARTMENT OF
f,DUCATION

REQUIREMENT COMPLIAN'CE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

NONCOMPLIANCE CASH MANAGEMf,NT

IIANAG EIIElT RESPONSE

rlDCORRf,cIlvr AcTtoN pt,,\N We gave instruciions to the program,s Finance Department and the
Finance Depaftment of the Municipality to issue the checks in
approximately three (3) days once the transfers offunds from the State are
received.

Implementation Date: April l, 201i
Responsible person: Mr. Gerardo Carrasquillo_ program Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF I'INDINGS AND QUESTIONID COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20IO

SECTION III. T[DERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER

FEDERAL PROCRAM

REQUIREMf,NT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

1O-III-IE

CHILD AND ADULT CARE FOOD PROCRAM (CFDA NO. 10.558)
U.S. Df,PARTMENT OF AGRTCULTUR_E; PASS THROUGIi
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO- DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION

COMPLIANCE AI\D INTERI'AL CONTROL

PROCUR.EMENT, SUSPENSION AND D[BARMf,NI TESTS

The Program did not include in the contracts, all the clauses required by the
Federal regulations._ln addirion, the program did not veri! if tie suppliers
were suspended or debarred by the Federal government.

During our Procurement- Contract Clauses test, we examined two (2) food
supplier contracts to verit/ the completeness of its clauses and noied that
vaaious clauses were missing.

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

In addition, there was no evidence that demonstrated
verified these suppliers in the Excluded parties List
maintained b) the Geneml Sen ice Adminisrration.

if the Program
System (EPLS)

Code of Federal Regulations 7, Section 226.22 (l) states that in addition lo
provisions defining a sound aod complete procurement contmct,
institutions shall include the contract provision; or conditions in ali
procurement contracts and subcontmcts as required by the provision,
Federal Larv or FNS.

In addition, Code of Federal Regulations 7, Subpart C, Section 3016.35
states that grantees and subgrantees must not make any award or permit
any auard (subgrant or contract) at any tier to any party which is detarred
or suspended or is otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation
in Fedeml assistance programs under Executive Order 12549, 

_-Debarment

and Suspension".

lhe Program did not maintain appropriate prmurement standard
procedures to assure that contracls include all lhe required clauses. ln
addition, the Pro$am is not verirying against the EpLS, lhat the contracts
formalized in excess of $25,000, awarded to those contractors- arc not
suspended or debarred.

CAUSE
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUf,STIONED COSTS (CONTINUf,D)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JfDIf 30.2OIO

SECTION III _ FEDf,RAL AWARD FTNDINGS AND QUISTIONED COSTS

TINDINC NUMBER

FEDERAL PROCRAM

l0-[r-lE (coNTTNUED)

CHILD AND ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 10.558)
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTUR-E; PASS THROUGIi
COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUIRTO RICO. DEPARTMENT OF
f,DUCATION

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

PROCT]REMENT, SUSPENSION ATI{D DEBARMENT TESTS

TheMunicipality h not in compliance with Code ofFederal Regulations 7,
Section 226.22 (l)and Subparr C, Secrion 3016.j5.

We recommend management to update the contract model according with
the Federal requirements. Also, we recornmend management to obdn the
EPLS every time the Municipality formalized a contmct and should verifi,
ifthe extemal parties are debaned or excluded.

None

Io correct this condition. we will modi6, our master contract to include all
the general clauses required by Federal and State laws. Also, we improved
our procuremenl procedures including a slep to reriff lhrough the
elecronic rersion available on the lnternet (hnpteols.amrt.sov) ;herher
or not the individual or entity is on the list ofparties excluded-from federal
participation in procurement aod non-procurement programs.

Implemenrarion Dare: April3l, 20t I

Responsible Person: Mr. Gerando Carrasquillo- program Director

Rf,QUIRfMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

ETTECT

Rf,COMMENDATION

QUESTIONED COSTS

}IA]\AGf, NIENI Rf, SPONSf,

AND CORRf,CTIVI AC-IION PLAN
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUf,RTO RJCO
1,lUNICTPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRJOR YEAR AUDIT FINDIGS

FOR THE FISCAL Yf,AR f,NDf,D JUNE 30, 2010

The follolring schedule conra;ns the original number and titre of each of the findings of federar awards
Incruded rn the R(porr un ('onpridnce nith Requiremenrs Appricabre to Each riajor progran und Inrer ar('ontrol over compliance in Accordance with oMB circular A-IJJ and the Schedule of irior years, Audit
Findings for the Fiscal Year ended June 10, 2010. The fo owing regend indicares the current starus of theprior years' audit findings:

ORIGINAL
TINDING CFDA
NUMBER NUMBIR TITLE

09-06 l,{.21E Davis- Bacon

Full corrective action was taken.

09-07 11.218 Special Test- Rehabilitation

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference l0-lll-08

09-08 91.600 Allowable Cost / Cost Pritrciples

Full corrective action was taken.

09 09 91.600 Cash Maragement

No corrective action has been taken.
The audilor reissued the finding forthe currentyear.
Finding reference I 0-lll- I 0

09- r0 91.600 Matching, Level of Effort and f,armarking

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the curent year.
Finding reference IOJII-t2

Procurement,Suspension and Debarment

Full corrective aclion was taken.

09-tI 93.600
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUAI\A DiAZ

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR Yf,AR AUDIT FINDICS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE .]0, 20IO

ORICINAL
FINDING CFDA
NUMBER NUMBER TITLf

09-12 93.600 procurement, Suspension and Debarment

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the cuftent year.
Finding reference I 0-lll- I 3

09-13 14.871 Reporting

Partially corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference IOJII-14

09-14 10.558 A owabte Cost / Cost principles

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference I 0_lll_ I 6

09-15 10.558 Cash Matragement

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the cunent year.
linding reference l0_ I-I 7

09-16 10.558 Procurement, Suspensiotr and Debarment

No correclive action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference I o-ttt-t I

09-l,7 10.558 Period ofAvaitabititv

Full corrective action was taken.

0E-08 ],4.218 Davis- Bacor

Full corrective action was taken.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR Yf,AR Af]DIT FINDIGS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL Yf,AR ENDED JUNE 30, 20IO

ORIGINAL
FINDING CFDA
NUMBf,R NUMBER TITLE

0E-l I 14-218 Special Test- Rehabilitatior

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference l0lll-08

08-12 14.871 Reporting

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current vear.
Finding reference I 0_lll_l 4

08- 13 93.600 Alloweble Cost / Cost pritrciples

Full corrective action was taken.

08-14 93.600 Cash Management

No conective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the fioding for the current year.
Finding relerence I 0_lll_ I 0

- 0E-15 93.600 procurcment, Suspensiotr and Debrmelt

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference I 0-lll_ l3

08-16 i0.556 Procuremelt, Sosp€nsioll and Debarment

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference I 0-lll_ I 8
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COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUf,RTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDIGS (CONTINUf,D)

FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDf,D JUNE 30, 20IO

ORICINAL
FINDINC CFDA
NUMBER NUMBER TITLf,

08-17 10.558 Procurement, Suspensiotr and Debarment

No corrective action has been taken.
The aoditor reissued the finding for the cument year.
Finding reference l0-lll- I E

07-09 14-218 Special Test- Rehabilitatior

The audit finding does not warant further action b€cause two years have
passed since the audit report in which the finding occumed wu. aub.itt.d to
the Federal clearinghouse.

07-10 14.248 Davis- Bacon

The audit finding does not warrant further action because two years have
passed since the audit report in which the finding occurred *". rrb.itt"d to
the Federal clearinghouse.

07-12 14.871 Reporring

Ihe audit finding does not warrant further action because two vears have
passed since the audit report in which the finding occuned was submined to
the Federal clearinghoose.

07-16 93.600 A owabte Cosr/ Cost primiptes

The audil finding does not warrant further action because two vears have
passed since lhe audil reporl in uhich rhe finding occurred rnas,ubmined to
the Iedeml clearinghou\e.

07-17 93.600 Cash Mrnagement

The audit finding does not warrant further action becaose two years have
passed since the audil report in which rhe finding occurred rvas submitted to
lhe Federal clearinghouse.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SUMMARY SCHf,DULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDIGS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR f,NDED JI]NE JO,2OIO

ORIGINAL
FINDING CFDA
NUMBER NUMBER TITLE

07-18 91.600 Matching,levelofeffort,earmarking

The audit finding does not uarmnt further action because two years have
passed since the audit report in which the finding occurred *rr.;br;J;
the Fedeml clearinghouse.

07-20 10.558 pmcnremert, suspensiotr alrd debarftetrt

The audit finding does not warrant further action because two years have
passed since the audit repon in which lhe finding occurred was submifted to
the fedeml clearinghouse.

07-21 10.556 procurement, suspension and deberment

The audit finding does not warmnt further action because two years have
passed since the audil reporl in which the finding occurred was submitted to
rhe fedeml clearinghouse.
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